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Bruker BioSciences Corporation in Billerica, Massachusetts is the parent company of Bruker AXS Inc., Bruker Daltonics Inc.
and Bruker Optics, Inc. Bruker AXS is a leading developer and provider of life science, materials research and industrial X-ray
analysis and spark-OES tools. Bruker Daltonics is a leading developer and provider of innovative life science 100ls based on
mass spectrometry, and also offers a broad line of chemical, biological, radiological and nuclear {CBRN) detection products for
homeland security. Bruker Optics is a leading developer, manufacturer and provider of research, analytical and process analysis
instruments and selutions based on infrared and Raman molecular spectroscopy technology.
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2006 was an exciting year for Bruker
BioSciences. Our customer-focused |
products and solutions strengthened our‘_ )
position in the markets we serve and |
generated strong organic revenue growth
from our core businesses. In addition, -
we completed several focused and highty
complementary acquisitions which signi-
ficantly expanded our technology base,
-product lines and addressable markets.
Overall, our 2006 revenue of $435.8
million was 17% higher than our 2005 - .
revenue, and our improved gross margins
as well as our continued ¢ost discipline
resulted in significantly improved opera-
ting margins, net income and earnings per
share.

We have been successful by remaining
true to our strategy to be a well-recogni-
zed, differentiated provider of innovative,
high-quality, high-performance products
and information-rich solutions. We conti-
nue our strong commitment to innovation,
and our significant investments in research
and development in order to broaden

our technology base, further enhance

our intellectual property and expand our
product lines and applications sclutions.

-~ We focus on selected, high-value market

| Bruker BioSciences Financial Performance

NET INCOME

$i5.5}

reholders

segments and applications where we have )

a deep understanding of our customers’
needs and can be a market leader with
a strong reputation for innovation and
integrity.

In 2006, we saw strong demand across
the various markets we serve, with parti-
cularly strong growth in materials research
and in our expanding industrial and applied
analysis business. The strategic acqui-
sitions we have completed enhance our
product and solution portfolios in these
additional high-growth markets, and
position us well going forward. In 20086,
we also continued to excel in our traditio-
nal areas of strength, including academic
and life science research, proteomics and
clinical molecular research systems.

Qur strong balance sheet and improved
operating cash flow enabled us to invest
over $160 million in 2006 on several
strategic acquisitions, which substantially
enhanced our capabilities to provide our
customers with integrated solutions. The
acquisition of Bruker Optics was by far the
largest, and increased our critical mass in
many of the markets we serve, created
revenue synergies with our existing
business, diversified our customer and
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revenue base and expanded our product
and service offerings. Bruker Optics also
provides us access to some fast-growing
new market segmenis and applications,
in¢luding pharmaceutical Process Analyti-
cal Technologies(PAT), ‘pharma-forensics’,
food & beverage and feed & agricultural

"analysis.

Other strategic acquisitions in 2006 inclu-
ded the addition of KeyMaster, a leader

in portable hand-held X-ray flucrescence
analyzers that identify the elemental com-
position of metals to meet quality control
and environmental standards. We also
acquired Quantron, an advanced metals
analysis company with high-performance
spark optical emission spectroscopy
(OES) technology, which complements our
existing X-ray fluorescence products. Each
of these acquisitions fits our strategy and
presents us with new addressable mar-
kets and additional opportunities to grow
our top and bottom-lines going forward.

While the integration of these acquisitions
into our business was and continues to be
an area of focus, equally important is the
need to innovate and drive revenue growth
from our existing businesses. We were
able to accomplish both of these suc-
cessfully because of the depth, breadth
and experience of our management team,
and the commitment and dedication of
our employees. We continue our long
tradition of developing innovative, practical
and easy to use products and solutions,
which continue to do well in a competitive
environment. Recent introductions from




our Bruker AXS business include the new
MICROSTAR ULTRA™, an ultra-bright
laboratory X-ray source for structural bio-
logy. The MICROSTAR ULTRA™ utilizes
novel electron optics and a revolutionary
cooling design to produce unrivaled X-
ray intensities, which are beneficial for

all aspects of in-house crystallographic
research, from high-throughput crystal
screening to structure determination.

Protein structure.

Another innovation from Bruker AXS inclu-
ded the next-generation liquid nitrogen-
free XFlash® 4030 Silicon Drift Detector
(SDD) for EDS microanalysis, which has

a larger area of 30 mm2 and can achieve
energy resclution of 133 eV at 100,000
counts per second. The XFlash® 4030
detector can be positioned very close

Fingerprint of a smartbeam laser.

1o the sample and can achieve up to a
threefold increase in detected signal at the
same beam current. This is ideal for low
beam current applications and for sen-
sitive samples in electron microscopes,

or for higher throughput in EDS analysis.
Also recently introduced was the signi-
ficantly enhanced 52 RANGER™ EDXRF
spectrometer, which incorporates our new
XFlash® SDD detector, and can analyze

all elements from sodium to uranium

in concentrations from 100% down to
ppm levels. Due to the superior energy
resolution at high count rates, the new

S2 RANGER™ with XFlash® SDD offers
better analytical performance for many
petrochemical, metals analysis and other
industrial applications.

Bruker Daltonics continues to expand

its capabilities with new appiications in
expression proteomics, clinical prote-
omics, molecular diagnostics research

and small molecule analysis markets.
Examples of recent introductions include
our novel MALDI BicTyper™ system which
identifies and classifies microorganisms
using protein “fingerprints”, precisely
measured by MALDI-TOF mass-spectro-
metry. Qur MALDI Molecular Imager™ is a
system for in-vitro imaging of peptide and
protein biomarker distributions, addres-
sing scientists’ needs for high-sensitivity
tissue imaging of the spatial distribution of
protein biomarkers in biological, pathclogy
and other clinical research. We also intro-
duced two next-generation mass spec-
trometers, our ultraflex [l and autoflex (I
MALDI-TOF/TOFs, reinforcing our strong
position as the leading provider of these
important life science tools. Moreover, our
highly-regarded instruments for nuclear,
biological and chemical detection continue
to provide us with new sales opportuni-
ties in homeland security, and in defense
worldwide.

Much of the success in 2006 was attri-
butable to our strong management team.
We are a company that understands our
greatest asset is our employees, and our
investments in this area have enabled

us to attract, develop and retain a solid
management team. This team has only
been strengthened further by the talent

that has joined us through our recent
acquisitions.

While 2008 was a year filled with signi-

MALD! Imaging of Zebrafish tissue section.
Zebrafish make ideal models for vertehrate
genetics research.

ficant milestones and achievements for all
of us at Bruker BioSciences, we are even
more excited about the future and believe
the drivers are in place to build on this
positive momentum. In 2007, we intend
to further strengthen our technology base
and innovative product lines, enter new
market segments and applications, and
further enhance our global distribution
and customer support capabilities. Our
primary financial goals continue to be
above industry-average revenue growth,
increased gross margins while leveraging
our expenses for significant operating and
net income margin expansion, as well as
proactive balance sheet management for
reducing our working capital and increa-
sing free cash flow.

On behalf of the over 1,900 employees of
Bruker BioSciences, | thank you for your
interest in cur company and-look forward
to what we believe is a bright future for
our customers and our shareholders.

T e

Frank H. Laukien, Ph.D.
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Bruker AXS

A Leading Provider of High-Throughput Advanced X-Ray Solutions
for Structural Proteomics and Advanced Material Research

MICROSTAR ULTRA™ is the world’s most
powerful home x-ray source, and was honored
by a Pittcon 2007 Editors' Choice honorabte
mention award.

Bruker AXS is building on its reputation as
a global leader in advanced X-ray techno-
logy for drug discovery and life sciences,
advanced materials and industrial applicati-
ons. Qur X-ray solutions are known world-
wide for delivering high quality data, high
throughput, ease-of-use and especially
refiable operation. Custorners include lea-
ding companies in pharmaceuticals, bio-
technology, semiconductors, chemicals,
superconductors, cement, and advanced
materials, along with government and
acadernic research. Our global infrastruc-
ture provides complete scientific and
technical support for the entire lifetime

of the instruments. We constantly strive
to improve the performance and quality
of our products, and introduce innovative
new products and more powerful new
analytical solutions that our-customers
need and expect from us.

Elemental and Process Analysis
X-ray fluorescence (XRF) is a popular,
non-destructive analytical technigue to
determine the elemental composition of
solids, powders and liquids. Bruker AXS'
cutting-edge product line of energy- and
wavelength-dispersive XRF spectrometers
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- the 52 RANGER, $4 EXPLORER, 54
PIONEER and high-end spectrometer 58
TIGER -~ serves industries like petrochemi-
cals, polymers, cement, metals, mining,
and ceramics. The new 52 RANGER

with XFlash offers significantly enhanced
analytical performance for all these appli-
cations, PETRO-QUANT, RoHS-QUANT
and GEO-QUANT are ready-made solution
packages, for a more reliable, accurate
and faster quantitative analysis in research
and industry laboratories. We continue to
develop even more high-end additions to
our XRF product family. The new Bruker
AXS instruments provide higher usability,
speed, and accuracy for the demanding
process control markets.

The §2 RANGER spectrometer now also incorporates an XFlash®
siticon drift detector.

Microanalysis Division

Microanalysis is new at Bruker AXS. Our
novel Bruker AXS microanalysis systems
let users determine the elemental compo-
sition of samples (in an electron micro-
scope, for example), over a wide range of
applications, including metallurgy, semi-
conductors, polymers, forensics, and other
R&D and QA/QC. Bruker AXS Microanaly-
sis leads in advanced cryogen-free spec-
trometers based on Silicon Drift Detector
technology. Our QUANTAX offers the

highest energy resolution, speed and ease-
of-use, without needing liquid nitrogen
cooling. Bruker AXS' ESPRIT software has
the most powerful algerithms available for
elernent quantification and mapping.

Crystallography in Life Sciences
and Pharmaceuticals

Powerful X-ray crystallography produces
accurate three-dimensional structural
madels of molecules, where knowledge
of molecular structure is the key to a
precise understanding of the function
and mechanism of actions of biological
compounds such as proteins, nucleic
acids, and membrane bound complexes.
We continue to lead in chemical crystal-
lography worldwide with
applications in pharmaceu-
tical, synthetic chemicals,
catalysts and minerals.
PROTEUM and APEX are
our flagship systems for
crystallography. The new
MICROSTAR ULTRA pro-
duces up to 30 times the
intensity of a conventional
rotating anode generator
for best structural biology
data. Qur AXIOM detec-
tor employs proprietary,
award-winning MikroGap™
technology with excellent
sensitivity for biological
screening and analysis. Our APEX I
ULTRA delivers 60 times normal intensity
for s'u_berb performance for chemical and
mineral samples. Bruker AXS now offers -
gven more compact and easier-to-use
systems. The benchtop Crystal Farm auto-
matically images protein crystal growth.
QOur X8 PROSPECTOR features the new
IuS compact microfocus source with
QUAZAR optics and a high performance
detector for faster, easier protein scree-
ning and absolute configurations of phar-




maceutical compounds. Our affordable
SMART BREEZE includes innovative
AUTOSTRUCTURE software, making
accurate chemical structure determinaticon
easy.

Advanced Materials Research
Bruker AXS X-ray diffraction (XRD) provi-
des material scientists with needed struc-
tural information to design, develop and
validate advanced materials. The broad
and growing bandwidth of our XRD dif-
fraction applications in advanced materials
research provides an excellent opportunity
to develop our business. Leptos S for XRD
and XRD? stress analysis and NanoFit for
nano structure modeling are the latest
application software tools that help the
customer to study the structure and mor-
. phology of a specimen. Our innovative
new generation silicon strip detector - the
LynxEye — is used for standard powder
diffraction experiments. It is ideal for
maximum resolution at highest count-
rates and scan-speeds. In concert our
sample changer now provides capacity
for up to 90 samples. The new detector
compleies our Super Speed Solutions, an
innovative line of XRD solutions that inclu-
des our Turbo X-ray Source, combined
with our novel VANTEC-1, VANTEC-2000
or H!-STAR detector.

Sy

In cement production, Bruker AXS XRF and
XRD instruments control the composition of
raw materials, in-process cement and final
products, along with optimizing the cement
production process.

Bruker AXS' DB SCREEN-
LAB is one of our X-ray solu-
tions for the pharmaceutical
industry. This one instru-
ment performs compre-
hensive palymorph screens
using the twao critical and
comptementary methods for :
the task: RAMAN and XRD?. !
This product enhances our product-line,
which includes leading analytical tools
like D4, 08 FOCUS, D8 ADVANCE, D8
DISCOVER, D8 DISCOVER with GADDS,
and our cutting-edge NanoSTAR. '

Bruker AXS mada great headway in the metall-
urgy market in 2006 with their XRF and XRD
instruments. XRF determines the composition ;
of raw and fabricated materials, while XRD
determines their structure - critical information !
in process and guality contral.

KeyMaster Handheld XRF '

We are particularly pleased to have
KeyMaster’s innovative and versatile, yet |
robust, technotogy for the handheld XRF
market. KeyMaster's technology perfectly,
complements our existing X-ray analysis |
partfolio. This technology enables us to
pursue new portable analytical solutions,
such as the fast-growing industriat appli— !
cations and the vigorous art and conserva-
tion markets. _ |

1

Quantron Spark-OES

Quantron strengthens the industrial analy-
sis business of Bruker AXS with its advan-.
ced spark-OES technology. Quantron’s
spark-OES systems and technology are
quite complementary to our existing sta-
tionary XRF systems for metal producers
and processors and our new handheld

Left: Technician inserts cast iron sample in

Q18 Coronado robot-based automated analysis
system, Right: Rick Adams, QC Managerat
Charter Steel, provides steel sample for analysis
in the company’s OB Magellan analysis system. -
Charter Steel is a leading integrated steel manu-
facturer of carhon and alloy steel bar, red, and
wire products.

XRF product line. Qur OES systems can
determine the elemental composition of
metals and alloys by providing a full che-
micat analysis in seconds. They provide
automated solutions on a turn-key basis.
for process control that reduce costs,
increase sample throughput and ensure
cansistent analysis quality. :

Our Q6 COLUMBUS™ is a benchtop
spark spectrometer for the elemental |
analysis of metals and alloys.

The Q8 MAGELLAN™ is a high perfor-
mance spark spectrometer optimized for
demanding applications with high resolu-
tion optical systems.

The Q8 CORONADQO™ is a compact auto-
mated analysis system for foundries with
integrated sample entry and registration,
handling, preparation, spectrometer and
sample archive.

Dr. Aniko Bezur using a Tracer Ii-V at a pre-Inca .
archaeoiogical dig in Peru.
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Bruker Optics

A Global Leader in Molecular Spectroscopy for
High-end Research and Quality Control

In the summer of 2006, Bruker Optics engine-
ers Tony Eng and Gregor Surawicz successfuly
instalted the Bruker Optics iFS 125HR high
resolution FT-IR spectrometer at the

PEARL - Polar Enviranment Atmospheric
Research Laboratory. The Bruker IFS 125HR is
the highest resolution commercially available
spectrometer system dedicated for high-end
research studies. This instrument is currently
being used by Prof. James R. Drummond,
Prof. Kimberly Strong and a team of scientists
from the University of Toronto.

Bruker Optics is now an integral part of
Bruker BioSciences, offering among the
most advanced infrared and Raman spec-
trometers for a wide range of research
and quality control applications. The
company's product line has been expan-
ding with instruments suitable for both
analytical and research applications, provi-
ding superior performance characteristics.
Bruker Optics has R&D and manufacturing
centers in Ettlingen, Germany and The
Woodlands, Texas, together with technical
support centers and sales offices through-
out Europe, America and Asia.
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Bruker Optics’ tra-
dition of innovative
high-end research
systems continues
today. Working to
improve the envi-
ronment, Bruker
Optics recently
installed an IFS
125HR high resolu-
tion stationary FT-
IR spectrometer to
observe atmosphe-
ric changes in
Canada. The Arctic
climate is chan-
ging more rapidly
than anywhere
else on earth, and
such rapid climate
change is expec-
ted to have a major impact on the Arctic
environment. The IFS 125HR measures
sunfight corming through the atmosphere
and can be utilized to study chemical
ozone loss at Eureka during each Arctic
winter-spring, and in the determination of
trends in ozone and related atmospheric
constituents.

Bruker Qptics is a leader in research grade
infrared and Raman spectrometers, and
well established in the academic and indu-
strial research and development faborato-
ries. To enhance its leadership position,
Bruker Optics has launched a series

of new research grade FT-IR (VERTEX
Series) and Raman spectrometers (RAMII,
RamanScope, SENTERRA™) over the past
few years.

Bruker Optics engineers and product
ranagers pay close attention to custo-
mer needs, and are constantly working to
implement new technelogies and trends
from other fields. Qur FT-IR and FT-NIR
spectrometers are ideal for investigating
the molecular composition of a wide

The PEARL observatory is located in the
rugged terrain of the Canadian High Arctic coid
desert, and houses specially designed scientific
instruments, including the IFS 125/HR. With

its ideal location for probing climate change in
the Arctic, as we!l as the dangerous thinning of
the protective ozone layer in the stratosphere,
this observatory is one of the world’s most
advanced laboratories for atmospheric research.
This observatory, located at 80N, 86W, 610 M
altitude, is one of the most northerly permanent
scientific instaltations on earth, 1,500 kilometers
above the Arctic Circle. Both photos courtesy

of Professor Kimberly Strong, Department of
Physics, University of Toronto.

variety of complex samples for quallity
assurance. Designed to maximize the
performance, quality and productivity

of critical processes, these rugged
instruments can alsc be placed in remote
locations to deliver real time process ,
results,

One such example is the growing food
and agriculture industry. Bruker Optics has
impiemented its know-how in dedicated
instruments for rapid and non-destructive
quality control for the feed industry. A
reliable analysis of feed and feed ingredi-
ents is the best way to ensure a balanced
feeding program and therefore the profita-
bility of any livestock operation.




Bruker Optics’ Fourier Transform Near
Infrared (NIR) spectrometers offer a

fast and cost-effective solution for the
non-destructive analysis of various feed
and feed ingredient samples for quality
control applications. Multiple parameters
can be obtained from a single measure-
ment, and samples can be anatyzed in
seconds, saving costs by reducing time
and reagent use. For the optimization of
the feed mixing process, various types of
sampies such as corn meal, soy meals,

wheat, rapeseeds, animal
meals and others can be
rapidly analyzed for parame-
ters such as protein, oil, dry
matter, fiber and ash. Grain
analysis is not only being
done for the feed and forage
industry, as Bruker Optics

is afso implementing similar
solutions for the growing bio-diesel and
the fuel ethanol market, analyzing various
grains and traits as well as monitoring its
fermentation control.

in 20086, Bruker
Optics reached an
agreement with the
People's Republic
of China - State
Food and Drug
Administration
(SFDA) for a farge
order of mobile
NIR instruments |
to be used in
determination of
fake and substan-
dard drugs in the
Chinese market.
Bruker Optics is !

Bruker Optics’ near infrared spectrometers

are integrated into the Chinese State Food and
Drug Administration's fleet of mobile taboratory
vehicles. These mobile laberatories travel across
China and run on-location inspections to detect
counterieit pharmaceuticals.

supplying over 300
instruments that
are being integrated
into a large fleet of
mobile laboratory,
vehicles deployed
across China for.
the rapid screening
of pharmaceuti-
cal products. The |
United States Food
and Drug Admini-
stration estimates
that counterfeit
drugs make up
more than 10% of
the global medicines market, and other
reports indicate that millions of Chinese
are hospitalized due to counterfeit drug -
usage each year. The SFDA project is the

* largest of its kind in the world, and has

ALPHA captivated the attention of many people
at the annual 2007 Pittcon conference, and
received the prestigious Pittcon editors’ bronze
award. The award was presented to Tim Rider,
Bruker Optics' North Amarican Sales Manager
by Dr. Matt Wilkinson, editor for Decision News
Media (UK) Ltd.

Bruker Optics has extended its FT-IR product
line with the new entry level ALPHA spectro-
mater. ALPHA is the world’s smallest laboratory
FT-IR spectrometer. It is designed for quality
controt and assurance apglications, as well as
teaching labs,

been led by the National Institute for the
Control of Pharmaceutical and Biological
Products of China. The project is the lar-
gest single order in Bruker Optics’ history,
and helped establish similar agreements
in other countries.

At Pittcon 2007, Bruker Optics expanded
its FT-1R product line by adding a new
class of instrument to its product iine. The
world’s smallest laboratory FT-IR spectro-
meter, the ALPHA, is ideal for academic
teaching and quality control labs and can
be used for raw material identification

of unknown materials, as well as quality
assurance for various industries.




Bruker Daltonics

Enabling Life Science Tools Based on Mass Spectrometry

Dr. Richard Caprioli's Research Group at Vander-
bilt University's Medical Center is focused on
the development of new mass spectromeiry and
data analysis techniques which can be apptied

to problems of medical significance. Professor
Caprioli's Research Laboratory is a pioneer in the
field of mass spectrometry imaging and profiling
directly from sectioned tissue.

Bruker Daltonics is a leading manufacturer
of innovative mass spectrometry-based
instruments and accessories widely

used by pharmaceutical, biotechnology,
proteomics and molecular diagnostics
companies, academic institutions, and
government agencies in their research.
Our cutting-edge mass spectrometers
(MS} include a complete variety of MALDI
(laser ionization)-TOF (time of flight),
MALDI-TOF/TOF, Qq-FTMS (fourier trans-
form), ESI (electrospray ionization)-lon
Trap, ESI-LC tliquid chromatography) /TOF,
and ESI-Q-g-TOF systems.

Turnkey system solutions provide inte-
grated sample preparation, consumables,
mass spectrometry and application-speci-
fic bioinformatics tools to enable scientists
to go from raw samples to high-content
information and answers. Qur solutions
deliver maxirmum information and produc-
tivity.
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Excellence in
Mass
Spectrometry
Qur MALDI-TOF
and ESI-MS/MS
core technologies
possess high
quality protein

ID and in-depth
characterization

in bio analytics.
Analytical challen-
ges in expression
proteomics that
we solve include

: high-success
protein 1D and characterization, top-down
sequencing of intact proteins, PTM analy-
sis and protein quantitation.

Our MALDI-TOF breakthrough is the
ultraflex It TOF/TOF™, with superb per-
formance in proteome analysis. With inno-
vative smartbeam laser technalogy, the
performance-leading TOF/TOF features
maijor advances in sensitivity, resolution
and mass accuracy for high-success
expression proteomics, quantitative prote-
omics, and advanced biomarker discovery
studies ~ making it the TOF/TOF leader.

The Adelaide Proteomics Centre, shown here
with Dr. Peter Hoffmann, is the premier facility
for protein and proteome analysis in South
Australia. The Centre is equipped with the latest
separation technologies for isolating single
proteins from complex mixtures and comparing
expression levels between samples.

The renowned Bruker Daltonic¢s ion trap
product line begins with our esquire series
of LC/MSn systems, bringing MS/MS
specificity to routine work and providing
high performance MSn for a broad range
of applications. Our HCTultra™ (High
Capacity Trap) ion trap technology takes
ion traps to a whole new level.

Prof. Etienne Waetkens, Prof. Jos Vandertey-
den and Prof. Jef Rozenski from ProMeta at
the K.U.Leuven Interfaculty Cenire for Prote-
omics and Metabolomics. The Centre deliver
proteome and metabolome analysis services
to academic research groups and the industry,
and performs research in the framework of
joint research projects between the centre and-
academic groups andfor industrial partners. The
Centre uses an ultraflex || TOF/TOF PROTE-
INEER fc, apex-Qe 9.4T with new Dual Source
& IRMPD and a micrOTOF-Q in its research.

High Capacity lon trap MS, with its capabi-
lity for multiple fragrmentation experiments
up to MSY, gathers structural informa-
tion on unknown ingredients of complex
mixtures. The HCTultra PTM Discovery
System™ provides excellent PTM charac-
terization features an Innovative ETD tech-
nique results in an amazing performance
in PTM discovery and de novo sequence
coverage.

in general pharmaceutical and chemistry
research, our state-of-the-art LC/MS
systems support structural and quanti-
tative analysis of analytes from complex
samples. Qur bench-top ESI-(Q)-TOF
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mass spectrometers provide exact mass archaea, yeasts or fungi.

measurements for any situation. micrO-
TOF™ and micrOTOF-Q™ provide sub-
ppm confidence in formula determination
far metabalite identification, toxicology
and doping analysis and pesticide scree-
ning.

With ultrahigh resolving power and accu-
rate mass capability, our well-regarded
Fourier Transform rmass spectrometers
{FTMS]) are synonymous with confident
identification of complex biological and
chemical compositions. Ease-of-use, sen-
sitivity and robustness are characteristics
of these top-of-the-line research instru-
ments, widely used in pharmaceutical
firms and universities. Superconducting
FTMS has become a standard in ultrahigh
resolution proteomics, up through 15 Tesla
electromagnetic fields.

Mass Spectrometry in the

Clinical Lab

Qur CLINPROT™ suite provides a com-
prehensive tool set for clinical proteomics.

-Effective sample preparation, robotics,

convenient visualization and pattern
analyses tools, and ID in protein biomarker
discovery are key features.

The MALDI Molecular Imager™ enables
the label-free visualization of the spa-
tial distribution of biomarkers in tissues
- providing a tremendous potential for
discovery of biomarkers in the clinical
laboratory. Furthermore, our newly
developed MALDI BioTyper allows fast
and reliable identification and classifica-
tion of microorganisms, such as bacteria,

MALDI image of &-amyloid peptides.

A pioneering universal
biosenser, the lhis TS000, is
manufactured and distri-
buted by Bruker Daltonics
and Isis Pharmaceuticals

in a strategic afliance. This
powerful new system
incorperates our renowned
micrOTOF ESI-TOF mass spectrometer,
for simuitaneous and fast identification of
infectious diseases in government, clinical
or pharmaceutical research, !

Dr. Carlos Bloch Jr. and his laboratary team at '
the Brazilian Embrapa Agricultural Genetics and;
Biotechnology Ressarch Center (Canargen)

in Brasilia use an ultraflex MALDI-TOF/TOF

to study amphibian toxin proteins, and use
Bruker’s MALDI imaging software for analysis '
of biological tissues. '

1

- Proteomics - Maximum

information Depth
PROTEINEER™ integrates our mass ‘
spectrometers with robotics and bioin- !
formatics to deliver maximum producti-
vity in high-throughput proteomics. Qur
PROTEINEER-LC™ is a comprehensive
LC-MS/MS-based, integrated platform
supporting all major LC-based proteomicsi
strategies, like LC-MALDI or our unique
LC-ESI-MALDI coupling for high informa- !
tion read-out from proteomics samples. !
ProteinScape™ organizes all relevant data |
for larger proteomics projects.

Shotgun proteomics is aided by our new !
Apollo™ il ESI-MALDI dual source for '
our ultra-high perfarmance apex FTMS
instruments. Equipped with the new
low-maintenance R-series magnets,

9.4T AS
* Actiely

0k

Scientists at SUNBOR, Suntory Institute for
Bioorganic Research, use the Bruker Daltonics
9.47 FTMS in their cell communications and
structurai biology research: Yoshiyuki Itoh, Ph.
0., Miki Hisada, Ph. D., and Takashi lwas-

hita, Ph. D., General Manager and Executive
Researchaer, Division of Spectroscopic and
Structural Research

these ultra-high resolution FTMS instru-
ments are eco-friendly and cost-effective.

Small Molecules & Metabolomics
- Performance in Profiling and
Compound ldentification

With our promising METABOLIC PROFI-
LER™ solution, Bruker Daltonics advances
hiomarker profiling to the metabolome
level to address metabolomic profiles as
powerful sensors reflecting situations at
physiological endpoints. In addition, our
AccuScreen™ for micrOTOF systems
allows screening experiments without
the need to know the target compound in
advance. With our SigmaFit™, unknown
targets can be readily identified.

Our unified Compass software environ-
ment for all our life science instruments
integrates instrument conirol, data
acquisition, processing and interpretation
— speeding research and enhancing pro-
ductivity. With Compass OpenAccess, an
automated walk-up LC/MS chemical for-
rmula generation system delivers an expert
analytical result — reliable and automated.
Support of our customers is guaranteed
with high-quality consumables, kits and
accessories, coverad by our CARE pro-
ducts.




Bruker Daltonics

Global Player in the Field of CBRN Detection,
Focusing on Homeland Security Markets

Bruker Daltonics stands ready to assist
governments worldwide in meeting their
nuclear, biological and chemical challen-
ges with a broad array of highly innova-
tive products and solutions designed for
defense and homeland security.

RAID-XP will be
integrated into Steyr-
Daimler-Puch’s Pandur
wheeled armored
vehicle to be delivered
10 ihe Czech Army,

Mobile Recon-
naissance Survey
and Detection
The Integration
of Bruker CBRN
instruments into reconnaissance vehicles
has long been a well established field of
application. Fast and reliable mobile detec-
tors for personnel protection can easily be
added to the vehicle detection systems.

MM2 mobile mass spectrometry provides
state-of-the-art technology for fire and
emergency services.

10

Bio-Threat Identification
The Bruker Daltonics CBMS
ion trap mass spectrome-
ter is widely used for the
detection and classification of biological
warfare agents (BWAs}. 120 CBMS Blockl
units have been sold to the U.S. Army as
part of the U.S. Army Biclogical integrated
Detection System.

Our newly developed BioProfiler software
is a promising tool for the detection of
biological warfare agents through the sta-
tionary and mobile evaluation of microbio-
logical agents measured with MALDI-TOF
mass spectrometers.

Naval Nuclear & Chemical
Detection

As part of shipboard nuclear and chemicat
detection systems, Bruker Daltonics RAID
instruments and the SVG2 radiation meter
can be integrated into complete CBRN
detection networks, which afso include
advanced ready networking monitoring
software solutions.,

The RAID-M flexible chemical detector is
well-suited for on-site control in industry.

Detection of microbial threat agents in minutes
based on the bacteria’s characteristic fingerprints.

Homeland Defense

Bruker Daltonics detection equipment
is preferred worldwide for fire brigade
services and first responders for their
personnel protection.

RAPID for real time stand-off detection of
suspicious chemical clouds for event security,

OPAG 33 and RAPID have been designed
for mobile infrared real-time remote sen-
sing and tomography of chemical agent
clouds over a distance of several kilomet-
res.

Protection of Critical Infrastructure
Bruker Daltonics RAID detectors are also
well suited to work as early warning tools
for civil and industrial applications or for
long term monitering of ambient air of
endangered areas
for the presence of
hazardous com-
pounds.
The RAID-AFM
represents state-of-
the-art technology to
protect key facilities
from chemical
accidents or potential
terrorist attacks.
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Any statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not statements of historical
fact may be deemed to be forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act). Without limiting the foregoing, the words “believes,”
“anticipates,” “plans,” “expects,” “seeks,” “estimates,” and similar expressions are intended to identify.
forward-looking statements. Any forward-looking statements contained herein are based on current
expectations, but are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties. The factors that could cause actual
future tesults to differ materially from current expectations include, but are not limited to, risks and
uncertainties relating to the Company’s-integration efforts, failure of conditions, technological approaches,
product development, market acceptance, cost and pricing of the Company’s products, changes in '
governmental regulations, capital spending and government funding policies, FDA and other regulatory
approvals to the extent applicable, competition, the intellectual property of others, patent protection and
litigation and other factors, many of which are described in more detail in this Annual Report on
Farm 10-K under Item 1A. “Risk Factors” and from time to time in other filings we may make with the




Securities and Exchange Commission. While the Company may elect t'? update forward-looking statements
in the future, it specifically disclaims any obligation to do so, even if the Company’s estimates change, and

readers should not rely on those forward-looking statements as representing the Company’s views as of any
date subsequent to the date of the filing of this report.

.l e
References to “we,” “us,” “our,” the “Company” or “Bruker BioSciences” refer to Bruker BioSciences

. . - . ge - ] ..
Corporation and, in some cases, its subsidiaries, as well as all predecessor entities.

Our principal executive offices are located at 40 Manning Road, Billerica, MA 01821, and our
telephone number is (978) 663-3660. Information about Bruker BioSciences is available at
www.bruker-biosciences.com. The information on our website is not in(];orporated by reference into and
does not form a part of this report. All trademarks, trade names or copyrights referred to in this report

are the property of their respective owners. »
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PART1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Our Business

We design, manufacture, service and market analytical and life science systems and associated . -
products to address the rapidly evolving needs of our customers in life science research, pharmaceutical,
biotechnology and molecular diagnostics research, as well as in materials and chemical analysis in various
industries and government applications. Bruker BioSciences Corporation is the publicly traded parent
company of Bruker AXS Inc., Bruker Daltonics Inc. and Bruker Optics Inc.

® Bruker AXS is a leading developer and provider of life science and advanced materials research
tools based on X-ray technology tools for advanced X-ray and spark-OES instrumentation used in
non-destructive molecular materials and elemental analysis in academic, research and industrial
applications.

* Bruker Daltonics is a leading developer and provider of innovative life-science tools based on mass
spectrometry and also develops and provides a broad range of field analytical systems for chemical,
biological, radiological and nuclear (CBRN) detection.

» Bruker Optics is a leading developer and provider of research, analytical and process analysis
instruments and solutions based on infrared and Raman molecular spectroscopy technology.

Competitive Strengths and Strategy
We believe our key competitive strengths include our:
¢ broad product and service offerings in the markets we serve;

s commitment to innovative, reliable and performance leading products and solutions for our
customers;

e premier global brand;
» extensive intellectual property portfolio; and
» worldwide global manufacturing, distribution and logistics networks.

QOur strategy is to capitalize on our proven ability to innovate and generate rapid revenue growth, both
-organically and through acquisitions. We believe our commitment to be an even more significant leader
within our markets, to maintain above industry-standard growth and to leverage our continued research
and development and distribution investments, will enhance our operating margins and improve our
earnings.

Business Segments

Since the integration of the Bruker Optics acquisition began, we have been changing the way we
manage our business and consider ourselves as a provider of instrumentation and solutions to life sciences
and industrial businesses throughout the world. We continue to focus more on addressing the markets we
serve and the needs of our various customers, including pharmaceutical, biotechnology, advanced and raw
materials companies, and academic and governmental institutions, and less on selling individual products
and technologies. As a result of this change in the way we manage our business, we may change our
segment reporting in the future. We currently report financial results on three reportable operating
segments: Bruker AXS, Bruker Daltonics and Bruker Optics.

Bruker AXS’ systems are advanced instruments that use extremely short wavelengths of energy to
determine the characteristics of matter and the three-dimensional structure of molecules. Depending on




the application, our X-ray systems utilize one of three core X-ray analysis methods: single crystal
diffraction, known as SCD or X-ray crystallography; polycrystalline X-ray diffraction, known as XRD or
X-ray diffraction; and X-ray fluorescence, known as XRF, Using our modular platforms, we often combine
each of these three technology applications with sample preparation tools, automation, consumables and
data analysis software. Our products, which have particular application in structural proteomics, drug
discovery, nanotechnology research and materials science fields, provide*our customers with the ability to
determine the three-dimensional structure of specific molecules, such as.proteins, and to characterize and
determine the composition of materials down to the dimensions used in nanotcchnology Qur customers
include biotechnology and.pharmaceutical companies, nanotechnology compames semiconductor
companies, raw material manufacturers, chemical companies, academic institutions and other businesses
involved in materials analysis. We market some of our handheld XRF systems through distribution
arrangements with a third party

t
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Bruker Daltonics’ mass spectrometers are sophisticated devices that;measure the mass or weight of
a molecule and can provide accurate information on the identity, quantity and primary structure of
molecules. Our mass spectrometry-based solutions often combine advanced mass spectrometry
instrumentation; automated sampling and sample preparation robots; reagent kits and other disposable
products, called consumables, used in conducting tests, or assays; and powerful bioinformatics software.
We offer mass spectrometry systems and integrated solutions for applications in muitiple existing and
emerging life-science markets including genomics, expression proteomics' clinical proteomics, metabolic
and peptide biomarker profiling, drug discovery and development, molecular diagnostics research and
molecular and systems biology, as well as basic molecular medicine resear;ch Our substantial investment in
research and development allows us to design, manufacture and market a broad array of products intended
to meet the rapidly growing needs of our diverse customer base. OQur customers include pharmaceutical
companies, biotechnology companies, proteomics companies, molecular diagnostics companies, academic
institutions and government agencies. In addition, we market some of our life science systems through
strategic distribution arrangements with Agilent Technologies, Sequenom and others. We are also a
worldwide leader in supplying mass spectrometry-based and other syetems for CBRN detection in
emergency response, homeland security and defense applications.

Bruker Optics manufactures and distributes research, analytical and process analysis instruments
based on infrared (IR), near-infrared (NIR), FT-Raman, Dispersive Raman and time-domain magnetic
resonance (TDD-NMR) spectroscopy. These products are utilized in mdustry, government and academia for
a wide range of applications and solutions for life science, pharmaceutlcallanalysm, food and agrictltural
analysis in research and development, quality control and proceSS'analysisi_applications. As with all
spectroscopic techniques, vibrational spectroscopy can be used to identify a compound and to investigate*
the composition of a sample. Bruker Optics utilizes Fourier Transform (FT-IR, FT-NIR and FT-Raman)
and the dispersive (Raman) measurement techniques on an extensive range of laboratory and process
spectrometers. Infrared spectroscopy is a type of absorption spectroscopy that uses the infrared part of the
electromagnetic spectrum. Raman spectroscopy relies on the Raman scattering of a monochromatic light
that yields similar and complementary analytical information. Infrared and Raman spectroscopy are widely
used in both research and industry as a simple, rapid, non-destructive and !reliable technique for basic
sample identification and quality control to advanced research. The Bruker Optics product line is
complemented by a wide range of sampling accessories and techniques whlch include microanalysis, high-
throughput screening and many others, to help users find the best suitable solutlon to analyze their
samples effectively.




Products and Solutions

Bruker AXS

Bruker AXS’ X-ray systems integrate powerful detectors with advanced X-ray sources, computer-
controlled positioning systems, sample handling devices and data collection and analysis software to
acquire, analyze and manage elemental and molecular information. These integrated solutions address
many of the matter characterization and structure needs of the life science, pharmaceutical,
semiconductor, raw material and rescarch industries across a broad range of applications. We provide high
speed, sensitive systems for a variety of areas, including three-dimensional structure determination, protein
crystal screening and molecular structure determination for the structural proteomics market as well as the
small molecule drug discovery market. Additionally, we provide high-speed, automated systems for
elemental analysis as well as high throughput, cost-effective systems for other areas, including
combinatorial screening. We also sell other systems such as thermal analyzers, primarily in Japan, which
measure the physical characteristics of materials as a function of temperature and can be used in
development, production and characterization of materials in a variety of industries.

Bruker AXS X-ray systems are based on the following five core technology applications:

¢ XRD—Polycrystalline X-ray diffraction, often referred to using the term X-ray diffraction;

* XRF—X-ray fluorescence, also called X-ray spectrometry, including handheld XRF systems;
* SCD—Single crystal X-ray diffraction, often referred to as X-ray crystallography;

o MA—X-ray microanalysis; and

* OES—spark—Optical emission spectroscopy for metals analysis.

XRD systems investigate polycrystalline samples or thin films with single wavelength X-rays. The
atoms in the polycrystalline sample scatter the X-rays to create a unique diffraction pattern recorded by a
detector. Computer software processes the pattern and produces a variety of information, including stress,
texture, qualitative and quantitative phase composition, crystallite size, percent crystallinity and layer
thickness, composition, defects and density of thin films and semiconductor material. Our XRD systems
combine modular, high precision and high quality ergonomic designs with broad applications for use in
basic research and industrial process control. Qur XRD systems contribute to a reduction in the
development cycles for new products in the catalyst, polymer, electronic, optical material and
semiconductor industries. Customers also use our XRD systems for analyses in a variety of other fields,
including forensics, art and archaeology.




We currently offer the following XRD systems:

Product

D8 SUPER SPEED
SOLUTIONS™

D8 FOCUS™

D8 ADVANCE™

D8 DISCOVER™,
Series 11

D8 DISCOVER CST™

D8 SCREENLAB™
D8 FABLINE™

D4 ENDEAVOR™
CRYSOTAX

VANTEC-1™ Detector

VANTEC-2000™
NanoSTAR™

LynxEye™ Detector

)
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Description i
High-speed and high throughput analysis based on high

power turbo X-ray source techno]ogy

Entry-level system for quant:tatlve and qualitative powder
diffraction apptications

General purpose diffraction system for quantitative and
qualitative analysis of polycrystalline samples

High resolution diffraction system for semiconductor and
thin film analysis ;
Diffraction system with high-speed 2D detector system for
combinatorial screening of libraries in life science and

materials research i

Diffraction system with high- speed‘ZD detector and
integrated Raman spectrometer for combinatorial screemng
of libraries in life sciences and materlals research using the
powerful combination of two dnalytlcal methods

X-ray diffraction metrology system for process control in
semiconductor fab lines

_Fully enclosed high throughput general purpose diffraction

system for quantitative and qualltatwe analysis of
polycrystalline samples

Benchtop ED-X-ray diffraction system for determination of
crystal lattice orientations in production and processing of
optical and semiconductor single crystals

High speed detector for all dlffractlon applications requmng
high speed measurements |

2D detector based on proprietary MikroGap™ technology
large active area, highest spatial reqolutlon low noise, and
large dynamic range

Small angle X-ray scattering for anz{ly'sis of polymers,
biological materials, fibers, and nanopowders in solutions of
10 to 1,000 Angstroems { .

General purpose high speed detector for all diffraction
applications
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XRF systems determine the elemental composition of a material and provide a full qualitative and
quantitative analysis. Our XRF systems direct X-rays at a sample, and the atoms in the sample absorb the
X-ray energy. The elements in the sample then emit X-rays which are characteristic for each element. The
~ system collects the X-rays, and the software analyzes the resulting data to determine the elements which
are present. Our XRF products provide automated solutions on a turn-key basis in response to the
industrial marketplace demand for automated, controlled production processes that reduce product and
process cost, increase output and improve product quality. Our XRF products cover substantially all of the
periodic table and can analyze solid, powder or liquid samples. In addition, our XRF products require
minimal sample preparation. We currently offer the following XRF systems:

Product
§2 PICO™

S2 RANGER™

S4 PIONEER™

54 EXPLORER™

S8 TIGER™

EQUA ALL

XMET

TRACER T V

Description
Transportable benchtop total reflexion ED-XRF

spectrometer for trace element analysis in pharma,
environmental, food, forensic and semiconductor
applications

All-in-one benchtop ED-XRF spectrometer for elemental
analysis

High performance WD- XRF spectrometer for use in
demanding process control and quality assurance -
applications

High performance plug-and-analyze WD-XRF
spectrometer for elemental analysis

Top-of-the-line high performance and high speed XRF
spectrometer with innovative control concept for use in
demanding process control and quallty assurance
applications

Solutions software which enables quantification of elements
in all concentration ranges when combined with the S2
RANGER

Hand held XRF spectrometer series sold as an OEM
product and distributed by a third party. The instrument
has various applications such as alloy sorting in metals and
in ROHS applications identifying trace heavy e]ements in
plastics

Hand held XRF instrument allowing for complete
portability in non destructive testing of works of art and
archaeological samples. A typical application shows that the
detected elemental composition can be corretated with
materials used at a specific time or by a specific artist

SCD systems determine the three-dimensional structures of molecules in a chemical, mineral or
biological substance being analyzed. SCD systems have the capability to determine structure in both small
chemical molecules and larger biomolecules. SCD systems direct an X-ray beam at a solid, single crystal
sample. The atoms in the crystal sample scatter the X-rays to create a precise diffraction pattern recorded
by an electronic detector. Software then reconstructs a model of the structure and provides the unique
arrangement of the atoms in the sample, This information on the exact arrangement of atoms in the
sample is a critical part of molecular analysis and can provide insight into a variety of areas, including how

.a protein functions or interacts with a second molecule. Qur SCD systems combine high sensitivity and




rapid data collection to quickly generate accurate structures for use in the life sciences industry, academic
research and a variety of other applications. We currently offer the followmg SCD systems:

t

Product ' Description |
APEXII™ CCD Consists of a CCD detector witH lower noise, higher

sensitivity and wider dynamic range as well as electronics
which are user selectable for ultra-fast or ultra-low noise
readout : !

MICROSTAR-H and X-ray source technology with rotating anode generators

MICROSTAR-ULTRA for protein crystallography in particular. Includes major
advances in anode design, electron and X-ray optics to
achieve extraordinary brightness'and X-ray intensity

X8 PROTEUM™ Rotating anode generator based lab system with highest
sensitivity CCD detector or latest generation AXIOM
detector and four-axis kappa goniometer for 3-D
structural determination of biological macromolecules

BruNo™ Robotics Robotic sample handling of frozen protein crystals for
: : high throughput screening and data collection

Nexus’ Crystal Farm™ Benchtop system with integrated incubation and imaging
system for high throughput protem crystallization
automation. Bruker AXS is the worldwide distributor for
Nexus’ Crystal Farm™ line of protein crystallography
products. The Crystal Farm is combmed with Bruker AXS’
PROTEUM X-ray system, MICROSTAR X- -ray source
and BruNo robotic sample handler to create a complete
system to produce and evaluate protein crystal structures

MA systems analyze the chemical composition of materials under investigation in electron
microscopes, utilizing the fact that atoms of different chemical elements irradiate X-rays of different,
characteristic energy. The evaluation of the energy spectrum collected by an energy dispersive X-ray
detector allows the determination of the qualitative and quantitative chemlcal sample composition at the
current beam position. This technique provides a very high spatial resolution since the information is
obtained from a very small sample volume in the order of only a few microns. MA systems allow for
simultancous analysis of all elements in the periodic table, beginning with atomic number 5 (boron). Qur
MA systems are used for a wide range of applications including nanotechnology and advanced materials
research, as well as materials analysis and quality control. Customers for MA systems include industrial
customers, academia and government research facilities. j




We currently offer the following MA systems:

Product Description
QUANTAX® Comprehensive and powerful modular EDS system for

qualitative and quantitative X-ray microanalysis in
scanning or transmission electron microscopes.
QUANTAX features innovative SDD X-ray detector
technology for high resolution, high speed X-ray detection
without the need for liquid nitrogen cooling. Our ESPRIT
software suite provides analytical tools for a variety of
applications

ARTAX™ Mobile ED-uXRF spectrometer for elemental analysis
with high spatial resolution for investigation of works of
art, in particular

OES Spark optical emission spectrometers (OES) are the ideal instruments for all types of metals.
From pure metals trace analysis to high alloyed grades, spark OES covers the complete range from sub-
ppm to percentage levels. All relevant elements can directly be analyzed simultaneously. The technology is
using an arc discharge to be ignited between an electrode and the compact metal sample, acting as a
counter electrode. The sample surface is remelted and applying energy causes atoms to jump to a higher
orbit. Upon falling back, energy is released in form of light. Atoms of a certain element emit light of
specific wavelengths. Dispersing this light by means of a grating or prism into a spectrum allows the
separation of wavelengths. By using very thin exit slits and photomultipliers the light of a distinct
wavelength can be quantified. This is directly representing the concentration of its element. Certified
standards are used to convert obtained light intensities into concentrations. Our spark OES systems use
the latest detector technology and offer the fastest and most accurate read-out. Currently we offer the
following models:

Product Description

Q6 COLUMBUS Bench-top vacuum spectrometer. Unique performance in
: this instrument class. The smallest system offering time-

resolved spectroscopy. Thus, it is ideally suited for single-
base applications in foundries, die-casters, secondary
smelters in the iron, aluminum, copper, zinc, nickel, and
many other metal businesses. The 400 mm focal length
optical system allows up to 32 detectors, covering the
complete wavelength range of interest, even allowing the
analysis of nitrogen in the low-UYV range

Q8 MAGELLAN Flagship model for highest analytical performance.
Stationary vacuum spectrometer with high-resolution 750
mm optical system. Equipped with all features for
optimised analysis of all types of metals. From single to
multi-base applications, the system offers a maximum of
128 channels. Unique combination of excitation and read-
out parameters with time-resolved spectroscopy and
single-spark detection open new fields of applications and
analytical performance. Besides all metal producing and
processing industries, also contract laboratories and
material-testing research are the target market
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Product
. Q8 CORONADO

Description !

Q8 CORONADO is a fully automated metal analyzer.
Just enter the sample, register onlthe touch screen and the
system starts. Sample preparation, transportation within
the system, spectrometrical analysis, archiving of samples,
communication of results; all this is part of the complete
process within CORONADO. Even self-control functions
including the anatysis of monitor $amples in intervals and
standardization if necessary, are covered by the system.
This helps to reduce sample turnaround times and ensures
consistent analytical quality. COR'ONADO is available in
different configurations for ferrous and non-ferrous
applications. High analytical performance is ensured by

using flagship OE spectrometer MAGELLAN within the
automation system J ’

——
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1




Other Systems Revenue

Other systems revenue relates primarily to the distribution of products not manufactured by Bruker
AXS, such as a Bruker AXS instrument combined with an NMR instrument manufactured by our affiliate
Bruker BioSpin or an FT-IR interferometer manufactured by our affiliate Bruker Optics. Sales of other
systems include sales in combination with a Bruker AXS instrument as well as sales of stand-alone systems.
Other systems revenue is typically generated in countries where our affiliates do not have a presence, such
as South Africa, Poland and Brazil. Sales of other systems contributed revenue of $7.6 million, $6.8 million
and $1.7 miilion in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. '

Bruker AXS’ Aftermarket

In addition to system and solution sales, Bruker AXS generates revenues from sales of service,
consumables and related products. Bruker AXS aftermarket sales contributed revenue of $47.3 million,
$34.1 miilion and $33.9 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Given the demands our products face
in the field, general maintenance and replacement of consumables such as X-ray tubes and other parts is
routine. We supply a large quantity of replacement X-ray tubes to customers over the lives of our systems.
Upon expiration of the warranty period, we generate service revenues from our customers through service
contracts, repair calls, training and other suppart services. Service revenue is generated either through
post-warranty service contracts or on-demand service calls. The number of customers entering into service
contracts varies by geographic region.

In addition to providing service, consumables and replacement parts, we generate recurring revenue
through the sale to our customers of a variety of accessory items, including sample handling devices,
temperature and pressure control devices, enhanced X-ray optics and software packages. We also provide
system upgrades to customers who desire to upgrade, rather than replace, older systems.

Bruker Daltonics

Bruker Daltonics has developed a suite of mass spectrometry instruments that address a wide range of
life sciences applications. Mass spectrometry is the method of choice for primary structure analysis,
including the determination of amino acid sequence and post-translational modifications and protein
guantification. Mass spectrometry is thus a key enabling technology of the expression proteomics
laboratory. Mass spectrometers are also increasingly used for the discovery of peptide, protein or
metabolite biomarkers and panels or patterns of biomarkers. These biomarkers can be used for toxicity
screening or to assess drug efficacy in pre-clinical trials in pharmaceutical drug development. They are also
used in clinical research and validation studies in an effort to develop the emerging field of protein
molecular diagnostics.

Mass spectrometers are devices for measuring the mass, or weight, of intact molecules and of
fragments of molecules which can provide structural information on the molecule. Mass spectrometry
systems employ an ionization source which creates charged molecules and a mass separation/detection
component that separates these charged molecules on the basis of mass to detect their presence and
quantity. Mass spectrometry has been used in physics and chemistry for over fifty years. Over the past [
fifteen years, mass spectrometry has emerged as a powerful research tool in the life sciences. For example,
mass spectrometers can determine the identity, amount, structure, sequence and other biological
properties of small molecules, like drug candidates and metabolites, as weil as large biomolecules, like ;
proteins and DNA. |
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Bruker Daltonics’ life science solutions are based on the following four core mass spectrometry
technology platforms: ’

!
e MALDI-TOF—Matrix-assisted laser desorption ionization time*of-flight mass spectrometry,
including tandem time-of-flight systems (MALDI-TOF/TOF); '

¢ ESI-TOF—Electrospray ionization time-of-flight spectrometry,‘including tandem mass
spectrometry systems based on ESI-quadrupole-TOF mass spec'tror'netry (ESI-Q-q-TOF);

o FTMS—Fourier transform mass spectrometry, including hybrld systems with a quadrupole front
end (Q-q-FTMS); and !
o ITMS—Ion trap mass spectrometry. !
Time-of- ﬂlght spectrometers measure mass based on the time it takes for charged molecules to travel
from the ionization source to the detection component. With the ablhty to analyze more than 10,000
samples per day, these mass spectrometers currently have the highest sa}mple throughput and can analyze
the broadest range of masses of any mass spectrometer for use in the fields of genomics and proteomics.
Our time-of-flight mass spectrometry solutions make use of this potential for increased speed by
automating various steps of the analysis. Our time-of-flight solutions combme high sensitivity, accuracy and
throughput to generate large volumes of accurate raw data, primarily for peptide analy51s and proteomics
in general. !

.

MALDI-TOF mass spectrometers utiiize an ionization process to analyze solid samples using a laser
that combines high sample throughput with high mass range and sensiti'yity. Our MALDI-TOF mass
spectrometers are particularly useful for: (a) oligenucleotide and synthetic polymer analysis; {b) protein
identification and quantification; (c) peptide de novo sequencing; (d) détermination of post-translational
modifications of proteins; (e) interaction proteomics and protein function analysis; (f) drug discovery and
development; and (g) fast body fluid and tissue peptide or protein biomarker detection. We currently offer
the following MALDI-TOF instruments: . - |

1

Product Description ‘
ultraflex III™ TOF/TOF ngh throughput protein |dent1fleat|0n by MALDI-TOF

using peptide mass fmgerprmlmg, followed by more
detailed protein chardcterlzdllon via further
fragmentation and secondary TOF/T OF detection

autoflex III™ TOF/TOF Vertical and relatively compact system which enables
high throughput routine protemildentlflcatlon by
MALDI-TOF peptide mass fmgerprmtmg, immediately
followed by more detailed protem characterization using
MALDI-TOF/TOF tandem mass spectrometry on the
same sample |

autoflex I11I™ MALDI-TOF instrument designled for industrial biology,
used in SNP analysis and proteomics. Incorporates
various performance, electronics! and software
enhancements, and can be optionally upgraded on-site to
full TOF/TOF capabilities |

!
microflex L.T™ Compact benchtop MALDI-TOF mass spectrometer for

clinical proteomics and routine analySIS of peptides,
proteins and other large molecules

|




O

Product

microflex™

OEM MALDI!-TOF for
Sequenom Compact
MassArray system

Description

Compact high-performance, research-grade benchtop
MAILDI-TOF mass spectrometer with gridless design of _
reflectron and microScout ion source for expression
proteomics and clinical proteomics

A benchtop, medium throughput linear MALDI-TOF
designed and manufactured by us for various DNA and
RNA analysis methods developed and distributed by
Sequenom

These products can also utilize our AnchorChip microarrays that prepare samples for analyéis. These
microarrays employ patented microfluidics technology that improves sensitivity and reduces analysis time
per sample by concentrating, or “anchoring”, the’sample in a precisely defined location.

ESI-TOF mass spectrometers utilize an electrospray ionization process to analyze liquid samples ThlS
ionization process, which does not dissociate the molecules, allows for rapid data acquisition and analysis,
of large biological molecules. ESI-TOF mass spectrometers are particularly useful for: (a) identification,
protein analysis and functional complex analysis in proteomics and protein function; (b) molecular
identification in metabonomics, natural product and drug metabolite analysis; (¢) combinatorial chemistry
high throughput screening, or HTS; and (d) fast liquid chromatography mass spectrometry, or LC/MS in
drug discovery and development. We currently offer the following ESI-TOF lnstruments

Product

micrOTOF-Q™

micrOTOF™

- Description

A compact benchtop system that offers resolution at
15,000 at full sensitivity (i.e. without any W-reflection
and the associated ion losses). The microTOF-Q also
features 3 ppm mass accuracy in MS/MS scans over a
wide dynamic range

Benchtop system with high resolution of 15,000 across a
broad mass range for small molecule accurate mass
measurement and automated candidate molecular
formula determination, as well as peptide biomarker
discovery from plasma and serum samples
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FTMS systems utilize high-field superconducting magnets to offef the highest resolution, selectivity,
and mass accuracy currently achievable in mass spectrometry. Our systems based on this technology often
eliminate the need for time-consuming separation techniques in complex mixture analyses. In addition, our
systems can fragment molecular ions to perform exact mass analysis on all fragments to determine
molecular structure. FTMS systems are particularly useful for: (a) the study of structure and function of
biomolecules including proteins, DNA and natural products; (b) complex mixture analysis including body
fluids or combinatorial libraries; (c) high throughput proteomics and metabonomics; and (d) top-down
proteomics of intact proteins without the need for enzymatic digestion of the proteins prior to analysis. We
continue to offer next-generation hybrid FTMS systems which combine a traditional external quadrupole
mass selector and hexapole collision cell, with a high-performance FFMS for further ion dissociation, top-

down proteomics tools, and ultra-high résolution detection. We currently offer the following FTMS

systems: - )

Product Description \
apex® ultra ' ~ Easy-to-use, compact hybrid Q-g-FTMS proteomics

platform with the Apollo IT high-sensitivity ion source
and integrated electron capturé dissociation tools for
“top-down” proteomics, in whlch intact proteins are
analyzed, and “bottom-up’ proteom:cs which involves
. enzymatically digesting protems into peptides and
identifying the protein from measurement of the
peptides !

Magnets, 7-15 tesla The apex® ultra can be configured with one of several

magnet options ranging in fields from 7-15 tesla (we
purchase these magnets from Varian/Magnex or from
our affiliate, Bruker BioSpin). Infrared multiphoton
dissociation (IRMPD) is also available as an option

|
i
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ITMS systems collect all ions simultaneously which improves sensitivity relative, to previous
quadrupole mass spectrometers. lon trap mass spectrometers are particularly useful for: (a) sequencing
and identification based on peptide structural analysis; (b) quantitative liquid chromatography mass
spectrometry; (c) identification of combinatorial libraries; and (d) generally enhancing the speed and
efficiency of the drug discovery and development process. We currently offer the following ITMS systems:

Product ) Description _

PTM Discovery The first commercial ion trép system with electron transfer
System™ dissociation (ETD) fragmentation for post-translational

modifications (PTM) of peptides and protein discovery and .‘
characterization, based on our HCTultra™

HCTultra™ The HCTultra provides optimal ion trap performance in
terms of sensitivity, speed and mass accuracy providing
enhanced proteomics and metabolomics data quality and gain
per unit time for LC-MS(MS) applications

HCTplus High capacity trap, or HCT, with enhanced ion transmission,
storage and detection capabilities and very fast scan speeds

HCT™ Combines high ion storage capacity with very fast scan modes
for small molecule analysis as well as proteomics

esquire6000™ Ion trap system provides standard and high performance MS
and MS(n) for liquid chromatography mass spectrometry
applications in drug discovery, drug development, academic
research and general LC/MS/MS with an m/z range up to
6,000 :

esquire4000™ . lon trap system provides standard and high performance MS
and MS(n) for liquid chromatography mass spectrometry
applications in drug discovery, drug development, academic
research and general LC/MS/MS with an m/z range up to
4,000

LC{MSD Trap (sold by Various OEM ion traps sold by Agilent
Agilent)
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Our mass spectrometcrs can be combined with solutions packages and sample preparation robots
designed to enhance throughput of genomics, proteomics and metabonomics analysis. Sales of our
solutions packages and sample preparation robots are included in combination of sales from our four mass

spectrometry platforms, as well as partly in our aftermarket business. We currently offer the followmg
solution packages: !

Product Description
ClinProt™ Provides a set of tools for the preparauon measurement and
visualization of peptide and protein blomarkers for clinical
| ) proteomlcs
: S . .
Proteineer™ Integrates our mass spectrometers with robotics and bioinformatics

to deliver maximum productivity in high throughput and high
information content expression proteomi'ics, including spot picking
from 2-D gels into 96 and 384 micro well plates, automated

_digestion of proteins, sample preparatlon ‘for mass spectrometric
analysis, and data interpretation :

Metabolic Combines the structural and quantitative strengths of nuclear |
Profiler™ magnetic resonance, or NMR, and the sensitivity and exact mass

hardware and processing software platform to create an integrated
system for metabolic research and drug development. This system
is co-marketed by us and our affiliate, Brukcr BioSpin

PROTEINEER The PROTEINEER sp robot enables automated spot plell‘lg from
sp™ - 2D gels into 96 and 384 micro well plates [

PROTEINEER  The PROTEINEER dp robot enables automated protein digestion

dp™ *and preparation of AnchorChip targets for MALDI-TOF analysis

‘ ‘ ProteinScape™ Organizes all relevant data for larger expressmn proteomics
|

‘ NMR/TOF capabilities of ESI-TOF mass spectrometry in an integrated

projects—including gel data, mass spectra, process parameters, and
search results ‘ o :
|

Chemical, Biological, Radiological and Nuclear (CBRN) Detection ' . !

We sell a wide range of portable analytical and bioanalytical detectic'?n systems and related products
for CBRN detection. Our customers use these devices for nuclear, biological agent and chemical agent
defense applications, anti-terrorism, law enforcement and process and fa(;:ilities monitoring. Our CBRN
detection products use many of the same technology platforms as our life;science products, as well as
additional technologies, such as infrared remote detection, or ion mobilit’y spectrometry for handheld
chemical detectors. We also provide integrated, comprehensive detection suites which include our muitiple
detection systems, consumables, training and simulators.

!
|
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We currently offer the following systems:

Product Description
- EM640™ Series  Transportable GC-MS ideal for emergency response

MM-1 and MM-2 Mobile MS for automatic detection of chemical substances

OPAG 33™ Remote infra-red sensor for atmospheric pollutants

RAID™ Series Portable and stationary automated ion mobility detectors for
chemical agents and toxic industrial chemicals detection

RAPID™ Long-range infrared detector for chemical substance clouds

(HAWK™) ’

SVG-2™ Solid-state radiation detector

Bruker Daltonics’ Aftermarket

In addition to system and solution sales, Bruker Daltonics generates revenue from consumables,
automation and separation products, training and services, and bicinformatics and software. Bruker
Daltonics aftermarket sales contributed revenue of $28.6 million, $30.6 million and $30.2 million in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. We sell consumables for preparing, purifying and processing samples prior to
mass spectrometric analyses as well as consumables for collecting samples for CBRN detection.

Upon expiration of the warranty period associated with a system sale, which is typically one year, we
also generate service revenues from our customers through service contracts, repair calls, training and
other support services. Service revenue is generated either through post-warranty service contracts or on-
demand service calls. The number of customers entering into service contracts varies by geographic region.

In addition to providing service, consumables and replacement parts, we generate recurring revenue
through the sale to our customers of a variety of accessory items. Among other things, we have automated
control software to integrate separation devices and robotics into our solutions, we provide bioinformatics
software to generate useable information from large volumes of raw data, and we offer intuitive data
acquisition and analysis software on a Microsoft Windows platform to make our systems accessible to non-
experts.
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Bruker Optics 1

Bruker Optics- manufactures and distributes research, analytical and process analysis instruments

based on infrared (IR), near-infrared (NIR), Raman and time-domain magnetic resonance (TD-NMR)
spectroscopy. These products are utilized in industry, government and academia for a wide range of
applications and solutions for life science, pharmaceutical analysis, food and agricultural analysis in
research and development, quality control and process analysis apphc:litlons As with all spectroscopic
technigues, vibrational spectroscopy can be used to'identify a compound and to investigate the
composition of a sample. Bruker Optics utilizes Fourier Transform (F_I‘ IR, FT-NIR and FT-Raman} and
the dispersive (Raman) measurement techniques on an extensive range of laboratory and process
spectrometers. Infrared spectroscopy is a type of absorption spectroscopy that uses the infrared part of the
electromagnetic spectrum. Raman spectroscopy relies on the Raman scattering of a monochromatic light
that yields similar and complementary analytical information. Infrared;and Raman spectroscopy are widely
used in both research and industry as a simple, rapid, non-destructive and reliable technique from basic
sample identification and quality control to advanced research. The Bruker Optics product line is
complemented by a wide range of sampling accessories and techniques which include microanalysis, high-

throughput screening and many others, to help users find the best sunable solution to analyze lhe:r
samples effectively.

Bruker Optics systems are based on the following four core technd]ogy applications:

* FT-IR - Fourier transform infrared spectroscopy is an interferometry-based IR technology;

e FT-NIR - Fourier Transform Near Infrared spectroscopy;

. i
 FT Raman - Raman spectroscopy is the measurement of the wavelength and intensity of

inelastically scattered light from molecules, utilizing an interferometry-based technology; and

¢ Dispersive Raman - Raman spectroscopy is the measurement of the wavelength and intensity of
inelastically scattered light from molecules, utilizing a grating- based technology.

FT-IR, or Fourier transform infrared spectroscopy, is an mterferometry—based IR technology offering
a faster, more sensitive means of analysis than traditional IR spectroscopy FT-IR is more time efficient
because an entire spectium is collected at once, rather than sequentially scanning from one wavelength to
another across the spectrum. Traditional FT-IR users include the pharmaceutical, petrochemical,
~ forensic/analytical, materials science and research sectors. We currently offer the following FT-IR
solutions:

0

Product Description :
TENSQR ™’ Entry level, routine spectrometer designed for use in analytical
Series taboratories, research and quality control |
VERTEX Series  Routine to research level instruments desfgned for demanding
(80V and 70) R&D experiments such as high resolution, ultra fast rapidscan and
. . step-scan. Spectral ranges include very Fa:r IR to UViis
measurements -
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Product
IFS 125HR

HYPERION"‘
Series

IRcube™

OPAG 22

Description
The IFS 125HR is designed for high-resolution spectroscopy

laboratories. In either absorption or emission mode, the 1FS
125HR can resolve highly complex spectra into discrete lines for
recognition and spectral assignment -

The HYPERION™ series FT-IR microscopcs are for infrared
microanalysis and chemical imaging

Compact, process ready OEM instrument, ideal for fiber optic
coupling and gas cells

The Open Path Gas Analyzer (OPAG 22) is for remote sensing of
hazardous atmospheric compounds. The system performance
allows real-time field screening analysis

FT-NIR, Fourier Transform Near Infrared spectroscopy is a more recent addition to laboratory NIR
technologies. This technological advancement is heavily utilized in pharmaceuticals, food/agriculture and
chemical industries. Given that FT-NIR instruments measure the entire spectrum simultaneously, they are
faster, and more sensitive, with lower noise levels. The inherent design of an FT-NIR system also provides
for an internal calibration on every scan and it is ideal for process environments. The pharmaceutical
industry is the leading user of FT-NIR instruments, and applications include quality control, research and
development, and process analytical technology. The food and agricultural industry is the second largest
user of FT-NIR instrumentation, with much of its demand derived from the large installed base of
conventional dispersive NIR systems that have long been used in that area. We currentiy offer the

following FT-NIR solutions:

Pr(;duct
MPA™

MATRIX™.F

MATRIX™-1 |

Description
Award winning MPA combines muitiple sampling techniques of

Near Infrared spectroscopy into a single unit for analyzing solids,
liquids, powders and tablets ' ‘

MATRIX™-F is a versatile instrument with applications ranging
from raw material identification to quality control of finished
products. It can be used as a standalone system for method
development and then move directly into a process application and

_ designed to withstand harsh environments

The MATRIX™-I is a rugged FT-NIR spectrometer designed for
QA/QC analysis and is equipped with an integrating sphere in the
sampling area which permits fast and easy analysis using the
diffuse reflectance technique. Samples can be measured directly in
their containers or poured into standard cups. This method is ideal
for measuring large amounts of materials and is particularly useful
for analyzing inhomogeneous samples or large particle size items
such as grains or seeds

FT-Raman spectroscopy is the measurement of the wavelength and intensity of inclastically scattered
light utilizing an interferometer. The Raman scattered light occurs at wavelengths that are shifted from the
incident light by the energies of molecular vibrations. Like FT-IR, the Raman spectrum provides
information on molecular structure. The mechanism of Raman scattering is different from that of infrared
absorption, in that Raman and IR spectra provide complementary information. Typical applications are in
structure determination, qualitative analysis and quantitative analysis. Raman is useful for the
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identification of both organic and inorganic compounds and functional groups. It is a non-destructive
technique, and can be used for the analysis of both liquids and solid surfaces. Raman is well suited for use
in the polymer and pharmaceutical industries, and has applications in the metals, electronics,
semiconductor and pulp and paper industries. The technique also has applications in the life sciences,
forensics and artwork authentication. We currently offer the following FT-Raman solutions:

|

Product ’ Description
RAMII o The RAM II module is a dual channel FT-Raman accessory for

Bruker Optics FT-IR spectrometers and is'designed for researchers

who seek flexibility of using different Raman laser wavelengths in

combination with FT-IR spectroscopy : ‘

RamanScopelll The RamanSCOpc FT-Raman Microscope’s high throughput optics
and unique liquid nitrogen cooled Germamum detector offers ultra-
low signal detection with minimal nmse assurmg excellent sensitivity

RamSys™ The FT-Raman spectrometer RamSys™ is a dedicated Raman
System for analytical process control applicétions. Rugged
components, such as hazardous environment protected Raman
probes, and the industrially hardened spectfometer parts makes the
RamSys™ ideal for use in process environm'.cnts

RFS 100/8 The RFS 100/S provides flexible sample handling and optimum
FT-Raman performance. Solid, liquid, and c::ven gaseous samples can
be measured in RFS 100/S’ large sample compartment by using the
variety of sample holders. A wide range of advanced sampling
accessories are also available for research applications, as well as
automatic sample changers of different sizes to optimize sample
throughput in industrial laboratories

Dispersive Raman spectroscopy is the measurement of the wavelength and intensity of inelastically
scattered light utilizing grating technology. The Raman scattered light occurs at wavelengths that are
shifted from the incident light by the energies of molecular vibrations. Dispersive Raman technology can
utilize a wide range of laser lines like 488, 532, 633, and 785 nm for a broad range of applications. Like
FT-IR, the Raman spectrum provides information on molecular structure. The mechanism of Raman
scattering is different from that of infrared absorption, in that Raman and IR spectra provide
complementary information. Typical applications.are in structure determination, qualitative analysis and
quantitative analysis. Raman is useful for the identification of both organic and inorganic compounds and
functional groups. It is a non-destructive technique, and can be used for the analysis of both liquids and
solid surfaces. Raman is well suited for use in the polymer and pharmaceuitical industries, and has
applications in the metals, electronics, semiconductor and pulp and paper1 industries. The technique also
has applications in the life sciences, forensics and artwork authentication. We currently offer the following
Dispersive Raman solutions: 1
Product Description '

SENTERRA The SENTERRA Dispersive Raman Microscope was designed to
provide the highest performance available in a compact and flexible
platform and is a full-featured confocal system that can
accommodate multiple excitation wavelengths with the highest
possible spatial resolution :

t
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Product
SENTINEL®

SPECTRO-
GRAPHS

Description

The SENTINEL® is a Raman spectrometer developed for process
control and automated lab applications and utilizes an On-Axis
spectrograph, optimized for Raman spectroscopy and one standard
grating covering the most widely used Raman signature range. The
system features aberration free imaging, low noise CCD and
innovative technology in signal processing result in excellent signal to
noise ratio and maximum performance. The SENTINEL® is
companble for a choice of laboratory, siteglass and process
immersion probes, allowing real time process monitoring from a
remote location

The SURE_SPECTRUM is an OEM dispersive raman imaging
spectrograph and scanning monochromator that features dual exit
ports for maximum flexibility. SURE_SPECTRUM imaging
spectrographs provide the complete computer control of all
mechanical and optical functions, using a standard RS-232C serial
port, GPIB and IEEE-488 parallel ports. CCD detector can also be
controlled with optional software
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Other Systems Revenue |
Other systems revenue primarily relates to the distribution of bench-top time-dormain nuclear
magnetic resonance (TD-NMR) systems that use low-ficld non-superconducting magnets for quality
control, process analysis, etc. These systems are developed and manufactured by our affiliate, Bruker

BioSpin Corporation. As of June 2006, Bruker Optics is the exclusive dlstnbutor for the TD-NMR systems
for a period of four years.

|
.

Bruker Optlcs ’Aﬁermarket i

In addition to system and solution sales, Bruker Optics generates revenues from sales of service,
consumables and related products. Bruker Optics aftermarket sales contributed revenue of $16.6 million,
$13.1 million and $10.8 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Given the demands our products face
in the field, general maintenance and replacement of certain parts is routine. Upon expiration of the
warranty period, we generate service revenues from our customers through service contracts, repair calls,
training and other support services. Service revenue is generated either through post-warranty service
contracts or on-demand service calls. The number of customers enterlng into service contracts varles by
geographic region.

In addition to providing service, consumables and replacement parts, we generate recurring revenue
through the sale te our customers of a variety of accessory items, including software packages. We also
provide system upgrades to customets who desire to upgrade, rather than replace, older systems.

i - f
t
Research and Development = ‘l

We commit substantial capital and resources to internal and collaborative research and development
projects in order to provide innovative products and solutions to our customers. Within Bruker
BioSciences, we conduct research primarily to enhance system performance and improve the reliability of
existing products, and to develop new innovative products and solutlons We expensed $50.0 million,
$47.5 million and $48.4 million in 2006, 2003, and 2004, respectively, for research and development
purposes, Our research and development efforts are conducted in the relevant products within Bruker
AXS, Bruker Daltonics, and Bruker Optics as well as in collaboration on areas such as microfluidics,
automation and workflow management software.

. Bruker AXS maintains technical competencies in core X-ray technologies and capabilities, including
detectors used to sense X-ray diffraction patterns, X-ray sources and opucs that generate and focus the X-
rays, robotics and sample handling equipment which hold and rnanlpulate the experimental material, and
software that generates the structural data. Recent projects included refmmg next generation high
brilliancy optics and microsources, developing new high power X-ray sources for X-ray diffraction and
protein crystallography applications, developing a system with combinedIXRD and Raman technology for
applications in high throughput combinatorial analysis, developing a new large solid angle, high resolution,
high throughput ED X-ray detector for microanalysis and creating a high sensitivity area detector system
and developing other solution-based technologies and software applications. In the past, Bruker AXS has
accepted some sponsored research contracts, mainly from private sources. The research and development
performed by Bruker AXS is primarily conducted at our facilities in Madison, W1, U.S.A,, Karlsruhe
Germany, Kleve, Germany, Kennewick, WA, U.S.A., and Yokohama Japan

Bruker Daltonics maintains technical competencies in core mass spectrometry technologies and
capabilities, including MALDI and ESI ion sources; TOF, TOF/TOF, and MS analyzers; bioinformatics;
and software. The research and development performed by Bruker Daltonics is primarily conducted at our
facilities in Billerica, MA, U.S.A., Bremen, Germany, and Leipzig, Germany. Bruker Daltonics also
accepts some sponsored research contracts from external agencies such as'; government or private sources.
Historically, we have been the recipient of significant government grants flrom the German and United
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States governments for various projects for early-stage research and development. We have generally
retained at least non-exclusive rights to any items or enhancements we develop under these grants. The
German government requires that we use and market technology developed under grants in order to retain
our rights to the technology. In 2006, 2005, and 2004, our Bruker Daltonics operating segment received
government-sponsored research and development grants in the amounts of $1.2 million, $2.1 million and
$2.2 million, respectively.

Bruker Optics maintains technical competencies in core vibrational spectroscopy technologies and
capabilities, inciuding FT-IR, FT-NIR, FT-Raman and Dispersive Raman. The research and development
performed by Bruker Optics is primarily conducted at our facilities in Ettlingen, Germany and The
Woodlands TX, U.S.A. Recent advancements include an application to detect counterfeit drugs in
conjunction with the Chinese State Food and Drug Administration (SFDA). Another recent development
is the ALPHA FT-IR, which is the worlds smallest FT-IR based on our patented and permanently aligned
ROCKSOLID interferometer design. In the past, Bruker Optics has accepted some sponsored research
contracts, mainly from the German government.

Customers

We have a broad and diversified global life sciences and advanced and raw materials customer base.
Our life science customer base is composed primarily of end-users and includes pharmaceutical,
biotechnology, proteomics, food/feed/agricultural biotechnology, molecular diagnostics and fine chemical
companies, as well as commercial laboratories, university laboratories, medical schools and other not-for
profit research institutes and government laboratories. We sell our X-ray materials research and infrared
Raman molecular spectroscopy solutions to the above customer groups as well as to a number of
semiconductor, polymer, automotive, cement, steel, alJuminum and combinatorial materials design
companies. Our customers generally do not have a need to buy numerous systems at one time, and
historically we have not depended on any single customer in the sale of our systems. No single customer
accounted for more than 10% of revenue in any of the last three fiscal years.

Competition

Our existing products and solutions and any products and solutions that we develop may compete in
multiple, highly competitive markets. Many of our potential competitors in these markets have
substantially greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do. They may offer or succeed
in developing products that could render our products or those of our strategic partners obsolete or
noncompetitive. In addition, many of these competitors have significantly more experience in the life
sciences and materials markets. Our ability to compete successfully will depend on our ability to develop
proprietary products that reach the market in a timely manner and are technologically superior to and/or
are less expensive, or more cost effective, than other products marketed by our competitors. Current
competitors or other companies may possess or develop technologies and products that are more effective
than ours. Our technologies and products may be rendered obsoiete or uneconomical by technological
advances or entirely different approaches developed by one or more of our competitors.

Bruker AXS competes with companies that offer analytical X-ray solutions and OES systems,
primarily Rigaku (a private Japanese company}, Oxford Instruments, Thermo Fisher Scientific,
Ametek/Spectro, Panalytical (formerly a division of Philips, now a division of Spectris, a public U.K.
company), Innov-X, WAS AG and others. Other competitors produce products based on some of the
technology platforms that we utilize; however, none of them produce products utilizing all of our major
technology platforms. Some of them have a greater market share than we have in particular technolo
platform areas. ‘ :
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Bruker Daltonics competes with a variety of companies that offer mass spectrometry-based systems.
Bruker Daltonics’ competitors in the life sciences area include Applied Biosystems/MDS Sciex, Agilent,
GE-Healthcare, Waters, Thermo Fisher Scientific (which includes megan) Shimadzu/Kratos, Hitachi,
JEOL and various automation companies. Bruker Daltonics’ CBRN detection customers are highly
fragmented, and we compete with a number of companies in this area, of which the most significant
competitor is Smith Detection in the UK. !

L

b

Bruker Optlcs competes with a variety of companies that offer molecular spectrometry-based systems,
including Thermo Fisher Scientific (which includes Nicolet), Perkin Elmer Varian, Foss, ABB Bomen,
Renishaw, Buchi, Shimadzu, JEOL and Oxford Instruments (TD- NMR) There are also several smaller
companies we compete with, specializing in various markets we sell to, '

We also compete with other companies that provide analytical or automation tools based on other
technologies. These technologies may prove to be more successful in méeting demands in the markets that
our products and solutions serve. In addition, other companies may choose to enter our field in the future.
We believe that the principal competitive factors in our markets are technology base applications expertise,
product specifications and functionality, marketing expertise, dlstrlbutlon capability, proprietary patent
portfolios, cost and cost effectiveness. ’

k

. |
Sales and Marketing -
. |

We maintain direct sales forces throughout most of North America] the European Union, Japan,
Asia/Pacific and Australia. We have well equipped application and demonstration facilities and qualified
application personnel who assist customers and provide product demonstrations in specific application
arcas. We maintain our primary demonstratlon facilities at our producuon facilities as well as in key
markets clsewhere.

We also utilize indirect sales channels to reach customers. We have various international distributors
and independent sales representatives, including affiliated companies and various representatives in parts
of Asia, Latin America, and Eastern Europe. These distributors provide #overage in areas where we do not
have direct sales personnel. In addition, we have adopted a distribution b}lsiness model where we engage in
strategic distribution alliances with other companies to address certain market segments. Bruker Daltonics
maintains primary distribution alliances with Agilent and Sequenom. As part of its strategic alliance with
Agilent, Bruker Daltonics manufactures an ion trap mass spectrometer Wthh Agilent incorporates into its
liquid chromatography mass spectrometry systems for distribution into varlous markets. Through
Sequenom, Bruker Daltonics sells medium throughput MALDI-TOF mass spectrometers into clinical
genomics markets for medium throughput DNA and SNP analysis. Bruker AXS’ KeyMaster Technologies
subsidiary sells handheld OEM XRF systems via a third party, which incorporate proprictary detectors,
software and application methods of the third party. !

1

Sales Cycle . {

Bruker AXS. The typical sales cycle for Bruker AXS’ products is anywhere from a few days for
handheld systems to six to twenty-four months. The sales cycle is three to twenty-four months for academic
products and six weeks to twelve months for industrial products. The length of Bruker AXS’ sales cycles is
primarily dependent on'the budgeting cycles of its customers. |

Bruker Daltonics.  The typical time between Bruker Daltonics’ first customer contact and its receipt
of a customer’s order for life science systems is three to six months for most product lines. However, this
sales cycle can be in excess of a year when a customer must budget the product into an upcoming flSCdl
year. CBRN detection products can have multi-year sales cycles for large productlon contracts.

'
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Bruker Optics. The typical sales cycle for Bruker Optics’ products is three to six months. The sales
cycle can be significantly longer for larger-scale orders, such as the order with the Chinese State Food and
Drug Administration, which we were awarded in December 2005. .

Seasonal Nature of Business

We experience highly variable and fluctuating revenues in the first three quarters of the year, while
our fourth quarter revenues have historically been stronger than the rest of the year. :

Intellectual Property

Qur intellectual property consists of patents, copyrights, trade secrets, know-how and trademarks. .
Protection of our intellectual property is a strategic priority for our business because of the length of time
and expense associated with bringing new products through the development process and to the
marketplace. We have a substantial patent portfolio, and we intend to file additional patent applications as
appropriate. We believe our owned and licensed patent portfolio provides us with a competitive advantage.
This portfolio permits us to maintain access to a number of key technologies. We license our owned patent
rights where appropriate. We intend to enforce our patent rights against infringers if necessary.

The patent positions of life sciences tools companies involve complex legal and factual questions. As a
result, we cannot predict the enforceability of our patents with certainty. In addition, we are aware of the
existence from time to time of patents in certain countries which, if valid, could impair our ability to
manufacture and sell products in these countries.

Bruker Daltonics is a party to an agreement dated as of August 10, 1998 with Indiana University’s
Advanced Research and Technology Institute (IU-ARTI), which is the technology transfer arm of Indiana
University, pursuant to which we have been granted an exclusive license to specified patent rights and
products including three patents that relate to time-of-flight mass spectrometry. We pay IU-ARTI royalties
under this agreement and have agreed to altow IU-ARTI to utilize any improvements that we make to the
licensed products for research and educational purposes on a non-exclusive, royalty-free basis. IU-ARTI
may terminate the agreement if we default on our obligations or become bankrupt. We may terminate the
agreement with six months notice. The license granted by the agreement expires at the later of August 10,
2008 or expiration of the licensed patent rights. In connection with a previous collaboration agreement
between Bruker Daltonics and 1U-ARTI, IU-ARTI has agreed to perform experiments for Bruker
Daltonics, as requested, in exchange for a flat fee and a percentage fee of any sales of products developed
for us by IU-ARTL '

Bruker Daltonics is also a party to an agreement with Applied Biosystems Group, an Applera
Corporation business, and IU-ARTI. The agreement is for the licensing of a portfolio of significant mass
spectrometry patents. As part of the agreement, we have been appointed the exclusive agent for licensing
this combined intellectual property to the life-science industry. These patent portfolios relate to
MALDI-TOF mass spectrometry and cover the significant technology called Space-Velocity Correlation
Focusing (SVCF), or Delayed Extraction. This technology improves both accuracy and sensitivity, and is
implemented in most modern MALDI-TOF systems. As licensing agent for [U-ARTI’s SVCF patents, we
have granted Applied Biosystems a sub-license in exchange for multi-year payments. Bruker Daltonics and
Applied Biosystems also have cross-licensed each other on their respective patent portfolios related to this
technology. In addition, as exclusive licensing agent, Bruker Daltonics has granted Waters Corporation a
sub-license for a portfolio of these SVCF patents owned by Indiana University, Applied Biosystems and -
Bruker Daltonics, in exchange for a one-time technology access fee and multi-year payments.

We also rely upon trade secrets, know-how, trademarks, copyright protection and licensing to develop’
and maintain our competitive position. We generally require the execution of confidentiality agreements
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by our employees, consultants and other scientific advisors. These agree:ments provide that all confidential
information made known during the course of a relationship with us will be held in confidence and used

only for our benefit: In addition, these agreements provide that we own all inventions generated during the

course of the relationship. i

Our management considers Bruker, Bruker BioSciences, Bruker AXS, Bruker Daltonics, and Bruker
Optics to be our material trademarks. ‘ § :

4
|

We are a party to various government contracts. Under some of these government contracts, the
government may receive license or similar rights to intellectual property. developed under the contract.
However, under government contracts we enter we general]y reccive no less'than non cxcluswe rights to
any items or technologles we develop. ]

I
Manufacturing and Supplies :

Several of our manufacturing facilities are certified under ISO 9001:2000, the most rigorous of the
international quality standards. We manufacture and test our mass spect'rométry products,.including
CBRN detection products, at our facilities in Billerica, MA, U.S.A., Bremen, Germany, and Leipzig,
Germany We manufacture and test our X-ray and OES products at our fac1lmes in Madison, W1, US.A,,
Karlsruhe, Germany, Berlin, Germany, Kleve, Germany, Kennewick, Walshmgton and Yokohama, Japan,
In addition, we manufacture and test our molecular spectroscopy products at our facilities in Billerica,
MA, U.S.A,, The Woodlands, Texas, U.S.A., and Ettlingen, Germany. Mgnufacturing processes at our
facilities in Germany include all phases of manufacturing, including machining, fabrication, subassembly,
system assembly, and final testing. Our other facilities primarily perform high-level assembly, system
integration, and final testing. We are insourcing the manufacturmg of crmcal components to ensure in-
house key competence. - - |

We purchase material and components from various suppliers that a}e either standard products or
built to our specifications. We abtain some of the components included in our products from a limited
group of suppliers or from a single-source supplier for items such as CCD area detectors, X-ray tubes,
magnets, ion traps, robotics and infrared optics, among other things. In 1998, Bruker AXS commenced
collaboration with Fairchild Imaging, Inc. for the development of CCD arca detectors for use in chemical
and biological X-ray crystallography. While Fairchild Imaging owns the Chlp included in the detector,
Bruker AXS has exclusive rights for use of the chip in the SCD and XRD fields, subject to minimum
purchase requirements. Bruker AXS also owns the rights to the camera in which the chip is placed. In
addition, Bruker AXS’ new detector family is based on Bruker AXS’ proprietary MikroGap™ technology
(VANTEC and AXIOM product families for XRD and SCD). Bruker AXS has an ongeing collaboration
and joint development project with the Siemens AG X-ray tube division (now Siemens Medical Solutions
Vacuum Technology Division) in Germany for the development of X-ray llubes. Bruker Daltonics has
historically purchased a substantial portion of its magnets from a single supplier, Varian/Magnex, and also
obtains certain key components for the manufacture of its ion traps from Agilent, the sole supplier of these
components. Bruker Daltonics also sources certain FTMS electronic modules from Bruker BioSpin, an
affiliated company. The Bruker AXS subsidiaries Bruker AXS Mlcroanaiy-;ls GmbH, Bruker-Quantron
and KeyMaster Technologics presently procure certain key X-ray delector,chlps certain OES optical
detectors and certain miniaturized X-ray sources, respectwely, from single;source suppliers,

fo .
Government Contracts ‘

We are a party to various government contracts. Under some of these,government contracts, the
government may receive license or similar rights to intellectual property developed under the contract.
However, under government contracts we enter we generally receive no less than non-exclusive rights to
any items or technologies we develop. i

|
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Although we transact business with various government agencies, we believe that no government
contract is of such magnitude that a renegotiation of profits or termination of the contract or subcontracts
at the election of the government would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial results.

Government Regulation

We are required to comply with federal, state, and local environmental protection regulations. We do
not expect such compliance to have a significant impact on our capital spending, earnings, or competitive
position. '

Prior to introducing a product in the U.S., Bruker AXS provides notice to the Food and Drug
Administration, or FDA, in the form of a Radiation Safety Abbreviated Report, which provides
identification information and operating characteristics of the product. If the FDA finds that the report is
complete, it provides us approval in the form of what is known as an accession number. We may not
market a product until we have received an accession number. In addition, we submit an annual report to
the FDA that includes, among other things, the radiation safety history of all products we sell in the U.S.
We are required to report to the FDA incidents of accidental exposure to radiation arising from the
manufacture, testing or use of any of our products. We also report to state governments products which we
sell in their statés. For sales in Germany, we register each system with the local authorities. In some
countries where we sell systems, we use the license we obtained from the federal authorities in Germany to
assist us in obtaining a license from the country in which the sale occurs. In addition, as indicated above,
we are subject to various other foreign and domestic environmental, health and safety laws and regulations
in connection with our operations. Apart from these areas, we are subject to the laws and regulations
generally applicable to businesses in the jurisdictions in which we operate.

Bruker Daltonics possesses low-level radiation licenses for facilities in Billerica, MA, U.S.A., and
Leipzig, Germany. Bruker AXS possesses low-level radiation materials licenses from the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission for our facility in Madison, Wisconsin, from the local radiation safety authority,
Gewerbeaufsichtsamt Karlsruhe, for our facility in Karlsruhe, Germany, from the local radiation safety
authority, Ministerie van Volkshuisvesting, Ruimtelijke Ordening en Miliuebeheer, for our facility in Delft,
the Netherlands, and from the local radiation safety authority, Kanagawa Prefecture, for our facility in
Yokohama, Japan, as well as from various other countries in which we sell our products. The U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission also has regulations concerning the exposure of our employees to radiation.

Working Capital Requirements

To effectively operate our business, we are required to hold significant demonstration inventory and
systems shipped but not yet accepted by the customer, or finished goods in-transit. We have well-equipped
application and demonstration facilities and qualified application personnel who assist customers and
provide product demonstrations in specific application areas. We maintain our primary demonstration
facilities at our production facilities as well as in key markets elsewhere. In total, we held $14.7 million and
$18.5 million of demonstration inventory at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. In addition, we
recognize revenue from system sales upon customer acceptance. Therefore, a significant percentage of our
inventory represents systems shipped but not yet accepted by the customer. Such finished goods in-transit
were $24.1 million and $25.2 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectively. There are no credit
terms extended to customers that would have a material adverse effect on our working capital.

Employees

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had 1,905 and 1,637 full-time and part-time employees
worldwide, respectively. Of these employees, 373 and 314 werc located in the United States as of
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December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The employees based OUtSldC of the U.S. are primarily located
in Europe.

i
Financial Information about Geographic Areas and Segments !
!

Financial information about our geographic areas and segments required by Item 1 of Form 10-K ma
be found in Note 16 to our Financial Statements in this Form 10-K, included as part of [tem 8 to this
report, which includes information about our revenues from external customers measure of profit and
total assets by reportable segment. .

; . .
Available Information '

{
- - . . l. .
Our website is located at www. bruker-biosciences.com. We make available free of charge through this

website our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K,
and amendments to those reports filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as soon as
reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnishe(;j to the SEC.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors should be considered in conjunction with the other information included in this :
Annual Report on Form 10-K. This report may include forward-looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. In addition to those risk factors discussed elsewhere in this report, we identify the following risk
factors, which could affect our actual results and cause actual results to differ materially from those in the
forward-looking statements.

If our products fail to achieve and sustain sufficient market acceptance across their broad intended range of
applications, we will not generate expected revenue.

Our business strategy depends on our ability to successfully commercialize a broad range of products
based on mass spectrometry, vibrational spectroscopy and X-ray technology for use in a variety of life
science, chemistry and materials analysis applications. Some of our products have only recently been
commercially launched and have achieved only limited sales to date. The commercial success of our
products depends on our obtaining continued and expanding market acceptance of our mass spectrometry,
infrared and Raman measurement techniques and, our X-ray analysis tools by our diverse industrial,
academic, medical research and governmental customers around the world. We may fail to achieve or
sustain substantial market acceptance for our products across the full range of our intended applications or
in one or more of our principal intended applications. Any such failure could decrease our sales and
revenue. To succeed, we must convince substantial numbers of potential customers to invest in new
systems or replace their existing techniques with mass spectrometry, vibrational spectroscopy and X-ray
techniques employing our systems. Limited funding available for capital acquisitions by our customers, as
well as our customers’ own internal purchasing approval policies, could hinder market acceptance of our
products. Qur intended customers may be reluctant to make the substantial capital investment generally
needed to acquire our products or to incur the training and other costs involved with replacing their
existing systems with our products. We also may not be able to convince our intended customers that our
systems are an attractive and cost-effective alternative to other technologies and systems for the
acquisition, analysis and management of molectlar information. Because of these and other factors, our
products may fail to gain or sustain market acceptance.

Our products compete in markets that are subject to rapid technological change, and most of our products are
based on a range of mass spectrometry, vibrational spectroscopy and X-ray technologies one or more of which
could be made obsolete by new technology.

The market for discovery and analysis tools is characterized by rapid technological change and
frequent new product introductions. Rapidly changing technology could make some or all of our product
lines obsolete unless we are able to continually improve our existing products and develop new products.
Because substantially all of our products are based on mass spectrometry, vibrational spectroscopy and
X-ray technology, we are particularly vuinerable to any technological advances that would make either
certain mass spectrometry, or certain vibrational spectroscopy or certain X-ray analysis tools obsolete as
the basis for analytical systems in any of our markets. To meet the evolving needs of our customers, we
must rapidly and continually enhance our current and planned products and services and develop and
introduce new products and services. In addition, our product lines are based on complex technologies
which are subject to rapid change as new technologies are developed and introduced in the marketplace.
We may have difficulty in keeping abreast of the rapid changes affecting each of the different markets we
serve or intend to serve. If we fail to develop and introduce products in a timely manner in response to
changing technology, market demands or the requirements of our customers, our product sales may
decline, and we could experience significant losses. :
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If we are unable to recover significant development costs of one or more of our products or product.lines, our
business, results of operations and financial condition may suffer. - ;

We offer and plan to continue to offer a broad product line and mcur and expect to continue to incur
substantial expenses for the development of new products and enhanced versions of our existing products.
Our business model calls for us to derive a significant portion of our revenues each year from products that
did not exist in the previous two years. However, we may experience dlfflcultlcs which may delay or prevent
the successful development, introduction and marketing of new products or product enhancements. The
speed of technological change in life science and other related markets we serve may prevent us from
successfully marketing some or all of our products for the length of time'required to recover their often
significant development costs. If we fail to recover the development costs of one or more products or
product lines, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be harmed.

We face substantial competitian !

We face substantial competition and we expect that competmon in alI of our markets w1ll increase
further. Currently; our principal competition comes from established companies providing products using
existing technologies, iicluding mass spectrometry, X-ray technology, OES technology, vibrational
spectroscopy, CBRN detection technologies, TD-NMR technologies and'other technologies, which
perform many of the same functions for which we market our products. Other companies also may choose
to enter our field in the future. In addition, some of our technologies indirectly compete for funding with
technologies and products provided by our affiliate Bruker BioSpin; this competition creates the potential
for actual or perceived conflicts of interest. Qur competitors may develop or market products that are
more effective or commercially attractive than our current or future products or that may render our
products obsolete. Competition has in the past and is likely in the future to subject our products to pricing
pressure.Many of our competitors have more experience in the market and substantially greater financial,
operational, marketing and technical resources than we do which could give them a competitive edge in
areas such as research and development, production, marketing and distribution. Our ability-to compete -
successfully will depend, in part, on our ability to develop proprietary products that reach the market in a
timely manner and are technologically superior to, less expensive than, or more cost-effective than, other
currently marketed products. -

Our operations are dependent upon a limited number of suppliers and contract manufacturers.

We currently purchase components used in our mass spectrometry, vibrational spectroscopy and
X-ray systems from a limited number of outside suppliers. Our reliance on a limited number of suppliers
could result in time delays associated with redesigning a product due to an mablllty to obtain an adequate
supply of required components and reduced control over pricing, quality and timely delivery. Any of these .
factors could adversely affect our revenues and profitability. For example, we currently purchase key
components used in our mass spectrometry, vibrational spectroscopy and X-ray systems from certain
suppliers. In particular, Bruker AXS obtains a sophisticated chip for use in its CCD detectors from
Fairchild Imaging which, to Bruker AXS’ knowledge, is the only source of a chip of this size and quality.
The X-ray microanalysis business of Bruker AXS, which manufactures and sells accessories for electron
microscopes, is partially dependent on cooperatlon from larger manufacturers of electron microscopes.
Additionally, Bruker Daltonics purchases certain magnets from a single supplier, Varian/Magnex, and also
obtains certain key components for the manufacture of its ion traps from Agilent, the sole supplier of these
components. Our Bruker-Quantron subsidiary purchases certain optical detectors from a single supplier,
PerkinElmer, Inc., the sole supplier of certain detector components. Bruker Optics purchases its focal
plane array detectors from a single supplier, Lockheed Martin Corporation, Because of the scarcity of
some components, we may be unable to obtain an adequate supply of components, or we may be required
to pay higher prices or to purchase components of lesser quality. Any delayor interruption in the supply of

31




these or other components could impair our ability to manufacture and deliver our products, harm our
reputation and cause a reduction in our revenues. In addition, any increase in the cost of the components
that we use in our products could make our products less competitive and decrease our gross margins. We
may not be able to obtain sufficient quantities of required components on the same or substantially the
same terms. Additionally, consolidations among our suppliers could result in other sole source suppliers
for us in the future.

Our business could be harmed if our collaborations fail to advance our product development.

Demand for our products will depend in part upon the extent to which our collaborations with
pharmaceutical, biotechnology and proteomics companies are successful in developing, or helping us to
develop, new products and new applications for our existing products. In addition, we collaborate with
academic institutions and government research laboratories on product development. We have limited or
no control over the resources that any collaborator may devote to our products. Any of our present or
future collaborators may not perform their obligations as expected. If we fail to enter into or maintain
appropriate collaboration agreements, or if any of these events occur, we may not be able to develop some
of our new products, which could materially impede our ability to generate revenue or profits.

If we lose our strategic partners, our marketing efforts could be impaired.

A substantial portion of our sales of selected products consists of sales to third parties who
incorporate our products in their systems. These third parties are responsible for the marketing and sales
of their systems. We have little or no control over their marketing and sales activities or how they use their
resources. Our present or future strategic partners may or may not purchase sufficient quantities of
products from us or perform appropriate marketing and sales activities. In addition, if we are unable to
maintain our relationships with strategic partners, our business may suffer. Failures by our present or
future strategic partners, or our inability to maintain or enter into new arrangemenis with strategic .
partners for product distribution, could materially impede the growth of our business and our ability to !
generate sufficient revenue and profits.

If we are unable to make or complete future mergers, acquisitions or strategic alliances as a part of our growth
strafegy or integrate recent or future mergers, acquisitions or strategic alliances, our business development may

suffer.

Qur strategy includes potentially expanding our technology base through selected mergers,
acquisitions and strategic alliances. In 2005, our indirect subsidiary, Bruker AXS GmbH, acquired Roentec
AG, an X-ray microanalysis instrumentation company based in Berlin, Germany, and our direct subsidiary,
Bruker AXS, acquired the microanalysis business of Princeton Gamma-Tech Instruments, Inc., a company
located in Rocky Hill, New Jersey. The acquired businesses were combined to form a new group within
Bruker AXS that focuses on the microanalysis market, a market not previously addressed by Bruker AXS.
In the first quarter of 2006, Bruker AXS GmbH completed its acquisition of Socabim SAS, a privately-held
Paris, France based company focused on advanced X-ray materials research and analysis software. On
July 1, 2006, we completed our acquisition of Bruker Optics. On July 18, 2006, Bruker AXS acquired
KeyMaster Technologies, Inc., a developer and manufacturer of portable hand-held X-ray fluorescence
(XRF) systems located in Kennewick, Washington. On September 6, 2006, Bruker AXS GmbH completed
its acquisition of Quantron GmbH, an optical emission spectroscopy company based in Kleve, Germany.

We may seek to continue to expand our technology base through mergers, acquisitions and strategic
alliances. If we fail to effect mergers, acquisitions and strategic alliances, our technology base may not
expand as quickly and efficiently as possible. Without such complementary growth from sclected mergers,
acquisitions and strategic alliances, our ability to keep up with the evolving needs of the markets we serve
and to meet our future performance goals could be adversely affected. However, we may not be able to
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find attractive candidates, or enter into mergers, acquisitions or strategic alliances on terms that are

favorable to us, or successfully integrate the operations of companies that we acquire. In addition, we may
compete with other companies for these merger, acquisition or strategic alliance candidates, which could
make such a transaction more expensive for us. If we are able to successfu]ly identify and complete a
merger, acquisition or strategic alliance, it could involve a number of risks, including, among others:

. L _— ; l . . .
» the difficulty of coordinating or consolidating geographically separate organizations and integrating
personnel with dlfferent business backgrounds and corporate cultures

o the difficulty of 1ntegrat1ng previously autonomous departments in accounting and finance, sales
and marketmg, distribution, and administrative functions, and expandmg and integrating
information and management systems; !

I
|

« the diversion of resources and management time;
* the potential disruption of our ongoing business;
l
¢ the potential impairment of relationships with customers as a result of changes in management or
otherwise arising out of such transactions; and .

» the significantly increased risk of key management or key employees ]eavmg the acqmred
companies within the first 1-2 years after the acquisition, 1nclud1ng the risk that they may complete
with us subsequently. |

If we are not able to successfully integrate acquired businesses, we nljlay not be able to realize all of the
cost savings and other benefits that we expect to result from the transactions.
Goodwill and other intangible assets are subject to impairment. !

As a tesult of the merger of Bruker Daltonics and Bruker AXS in July 2003, we recorded goodwill and
other intangible assets, which must be periodically evaluated for potential impairment. In addition, the
recent acquisitions of Roentec, Socabim, Bruker Optics, KeyMaster and Quantron and the microanalysis
business of Princeton Gamma-Tech Instruments resulted in additional goodwill and other intangible
assets. We assess the realizability of the goodwill and other intangible assets annually as well as whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the assets may be impaired. These events or circumstances
generally include operating losses or a significant decline in the earnings assocmted with the business
segment these acquisitions are reported within. QOur ability to realize the va]ue of the goodwill will depend
on the future cash flows of the business segment in addition to how well we integrate the businesses.

In addition fo the risks applicable to our life science and materials analysis prbducts, our CBRN detection
products are subject to a number of additional risks, including lengthy product development and contract
negotiation periods and certain risks inherent in long-term government contracts; our Fourier Transform
Infrared, or FT-IR, business with the Chinese State Food and Drug Administration, or SFDA, is also subject to
the risks inherent in long-term government contracts. : } '

Our CBRN detection products are subject to many of the same risks aseocnated with our life science
products, including vulnerability to rapid technological change, dependence on mass spectrometry and
other technologies and substantial competition. In addition, our CBRN detection products as well as our
FT-IR products are generally sold to government agencies under long-term contracts. These contracts
generally involve lengthy pre-contract negotiations and product development We may be required to
devote substantial working capital and other resources prior to obtaining product orders. As a result, we
may incur substantial costs before we recognize revenue from these produets. Moreover, in return for
larger, longer-term contracts, our customers for these products often demand more stringent acceptance
criteria. Their criteria may also cause delays in our ability to recognize revénue from sales of these
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products. Furthermore, we may not be able to accurately predict in advance our costs to fulfill our
obligations under these long-term contracts. If we fail to accurately predict our costs, due to inflation or
other factors, we could incur significant losses. Any single long-term contract for our FT-IR products, such
as Bruker Optics’ existing contract with the Chinese SFDA, or for our CBRN detection products, may
represent a material portion of our total business volume, and the loss of any such contract could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations. Failure to increase other business or to obtain
additional government contracts could cause our revenue to decline. Also, the presence or absence of such
contracts may cause substantial variation in our results of operations between fiscal periods and, as a
result, our results of operations for any given fiscal period may not be predictive of our results for
subsequent fiscal periods. The resulting-uncertainty may have an adverse impact on our stock-price.

If general health care spending patterns decline, our ability to generate revenue may suffer.

We are dependent, both directly and indirectly, upon general health care spending patterns,
particularly in the rescarch and development budgets of thé pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries,
as well as upon the financial condition of varicus governments and government agencies. Since our
inception, both we and our academic collaborators and customers have benefited from various
governmental contracts and research grants. Whether we or our academic collaborators will continue to be
able to attract these grants depends not only on the quality of our products, but also on general spending
patterns of public institutions. The proposed federal budget for fiscal year 2007 freezes spending for the
National Institute of Health (NIH) at $28.6 billion. Such a freeze or a potential decrease in the level of
governmental spending allocated to scientific and medical research could substantially reduce or even
eliminate our grants as well as decrease demand for our products from academic and medical research
customers, many of which receive funding from NIH.

Any reduction in the cap:tal resources or government ﬁmdmg of our customers could reduce our sales and impede
our ability to generate revenue.

A significant portion of our sales are capital purchases by our customers. The spending policies of our
customers could have a significant effect on the demand for our products. These policies are based on a
wide variety of factors, including the resources available to make purchases, the spending priorities among
various types of equipment, policies regarding spending during recessionary periods and changes in the
political climate. Any changes in capital spending or changes in the capital budgets of our customers could
significantly reduce demand for our products. The capital resources of our biotechnology and other
corporate customers may be limited by the availability of equity or debt financing. Any significant decline
in research and development expenditures by our life science customers could significantly decrease our
sales. In addition, we make a substantial portion of our sales to non-profit and government entities which
are dependent on government support for scientific research. Any decline in this support could decrease
the ability of these customers to purchase our products,

We are subject to existing and potential additional regulation and government inquiry, which can impose burdens
on our operations and narrow the markets for our products.

We are subject, both directly and indirectly, to the adverse impact of existing and potential future
government regulation of our operations and markets. For example, exportation of out products,
particularly our CBRN detection products, is subject to strict regulatory control in a number of
jurisdictions. The failure to satisfy export control criteria or obtain necessary clearances could delay or
prevent shipment of products, which could adversely affect our revenues and profitability. Moreover, the
life sciences industry, which is the market for our principal products, has historically been heavily
regulated. There are, for example, laws in several jurisdictions restricting research in genetic engineering,
which can operate to narrow our markets. Given the evolving nature of this industry, legislative bodies or
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regulatory authorities may adopt additional regulation that adversely affects our market opportunities.
Additionally, if ethical and other concerns surrounding the use of genetic information, gene therapy or
genetically modified organisms become widespread, we may have less demdnd for our products. Our
business is also directly affected by a wide variety of government rcgulap_ons applicable to business
enterprises generally and to companies operating in the life sciences industry in particular. We note that,
as a result of developing and selling products which are the subject of such regulation, we have been, are,
and expect to be in the future, subject to inquiries from the government agencies which enforce these
regulations, including the U.S. Department of State, the U.S. Department of Commerce, the U.S. Food
and Drug Administration, the U.S. Internal Revenue Service, the U.S. Department of Homeland Security,
the U.S. Department of Justice, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Federal Trade Commission,
the U.S. Customs and Border Protection and the U.S. Department of Defense, among others, as well as
from state or foreign governments and their departments and agencies. As a result, from time to time, the
attention of our management and other resources may be diverted to attend to these inquiries. In addition,
failure to comply with these regulations or obtain or maintain necessary permits and licenses could result
in a variety of fines or other censures or an interruption in our business operations which may have a
negative impact on our ability to generate revenues. Finally, our compliance with existing regulations, such
as the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, may have a material adverse impact on us. Under Section 404 of
Sarbanes-Qxley, we are required to evaluate and determine the effectiveness of our internal control
structure and procedures for financial reporting. Compliance with this legislation may divert
management’s attention and resources and cause us to incur significant expense.

If we fail to maintain effective systems of internal controls, we may not be able to accurately report our financial
results. As a result, current and potential stockholders could lose confidence in our financial repomng, which
could harm our business and the tradmg price of our stock.

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to provide reliable fi nancial reports If we cannot
provide reliable financial reports, our business and operating results could be harmed. We have in the past-
discovered, and may in the future discover, areas of our internal controls thal need improvement, For
example, in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, for the year ended Deccmber 31, 2004, we identified and
disclosed material weaknesses in our internal control over financial repornng at one significant subsidiary
whose operations and financial condition are significant to our consolidated financial statements, In
response to these matenal weaknesses identified, we took steps to strengthen our internal controls over
financial reporting at this significant subsidiary. These steps included the following:

*

* We evaluated and continue to evaluate the roles and functions within the significant subsidiary’s
accounting department and added additional resources to support the controls surrounding
inventory valuation and the financial statement close process. Temporary staff had been used to
perform additional procedures while management evaluated resources and systems and permanent
resources were in place by the end of the third quarter of 2005, Management believes that these
additional resources together with the existing accounting staff enable us to perform proper
financial reporting. . : - |

e In addition to augmenting our accounting personnel, management determined it was necessary to
automate and establish certain preventative controls through the implementation of a fully
integrated Materials Resource Planning (MRP) system. Management selectéd an MRP system
during the third quarter of 2005, and completed the tmplementatlon of the new system during the
second quarter of 2006, )

v

| .

Management believes that the above measures will address the material weaknesses described in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K, for the year ended December 31, 2004, in the near and long-term. The
material weaknesses identified and disclosed in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004 were remediated in 2005. The Audit Committee and management will continue to.

}
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monitor the effectiveness of our internal controls and procedures on an ongoing basis and will take further
action, as appropriate.

As part of our ongoing monitoring of internal control we may discover material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in our internal control as defined under standards adopted by the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board, or PCAOB, that require remediation. Under the PCAOB standards, a
“material weakness” is a significant deficiency or combination of significant deficiencies that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements
will not be prevented or detected. A “significant deficiency” is a control deficiency or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affect a company’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, proeess, or
report external financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such
that there is a more than remote likelihood that a misstatement of a company’s annual or interim financial
statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected.

]

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company include the results of Bruker Optics
Inc., a provider of research, analytical and process analysis instruments and solutions based on infrared
and Raman molecular spectroscopy technologies, Quantron GmbH, a spark-OES company based in Kleve,
Germany and KeyMaster Technologies, Inc., a handheld XRF technology company located in Kennewick,
Washington. Upon consideration of the date of the acquisition, and the time constraints under which our
management’s assessment would have to be made, management determined that it would not be possible
to conduct a sufficiently comprehensive assessment of the acquired business’ controls over financial
reporting. Accordingly, these operations have been excluded from the scope of management’s assessment
of internal controls.

Management has concluded, and our independent registered public accounting firm has attested, that
the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based
on criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsering Organizations of the Treadway Commission in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework. As noted above, however, the operations of three businesses we
acquired in 2006 were not included in management’s assessment of internal controls over financial
reporting and, accordingly, such internal controls may be ineffective. Any failure of internal controls
relating to these three businesses or any failure to maintain improvements in the internal controls over
financial reporting included in management’s assessment could cause us to fail to meet our reporting -
obligations. As a result, current and potential investors could lose confidence in our reported financial
information, which could have a negative impact on the trading price of our stock.

Our sucecess depends on our ability to operate without infririging or misappropriating the proprietary rights of
others.

Our commercial success depends on avoiding the infringement of other parties’ patents and
proprietary rights as well as avoiding the breach of any licenses relating to our technologies and products.
Given that there may be patents of which we are unaware, particularly in the U.S. where patent
applications are confidential, avoidance of patent infringement may be difficult, Various third-parties hold
patents which may relate to our technology, and we may be found in the future to infringe these or other |
patents or proprietary rights of third parties, either with products we are currently marketing or developing
or with new products which we may develop in the future. If a third party holding rights under a patent
successfully asserts an infringement claim with respect to any of our current or future products, we may be
prevented from manufacturing or marketing our infringing product in the country or countries covered by
the patent we infringe, unless we can obtain a license from the patent holder. We may not be able to obtain
a license on commercially reasonable terms, if at all, especially if the patent holder is a competitor. In
addition, even if we can obtain the license, it may be non-exclusive, which will permit others to practice the
same technology licensed to us. We also may be required to pay substantial damages to the patent holder
in the event of an infringement. Under some circumstances in the U.S., these damages could include
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damages equal to triple the actual damages the patent holder incurs. If we have supplied infringing
products to third parties for marketing by them or licensed third parties to manufacture, use or market
infringing products, we may be obligated to indemnify these third parties for any damages they may be
required to pay to the patent holder and for any losses the third part:es may sustain themselves as the
result of lost sales or license payments they are required to make to the patent holder. Any successful
infringement action brought against us may also adversely affect marketing of the infringing product in *
other markets not covered by the infringement action, as well as our marketing of other products based on
similar technology. Furthermore, we will suffer adverse consequences from a successful infringement
action against us even if the action is subsequently reversed on appeal, nullified through another action or
resolved by settlement with the patent holder. The damages or other remedies awarded, if any, may be
significant. As a result, any successful infringement action against us may harm our business.
. [
If we are unable to effectively protect our intellectual property, third parties may use our technology, which would
impair our ability to compete in our markets. |

| .

Our continued success will depend in significant part on our ability;to obtain and maintain meaningful
patent protection for our products throughout the world. We rely on patents to protect a significant part of
our intellectual property and to enhance our competitive position. However, our presently pending or
future patent applications may not issuc as patents, and any patent previously issued to us may be
challenged, invalidated, held vnenforceable or circumvented. Furthermore, the claims in patents which
have been issued, or which may be issued to us in the future, may not be sufficiently broad to prevent third
parties from producing competing products similar to our products. In addition, the laws of various foreign
countries in which we compete may not protect our intellectual property 10 the same extent as do the laws
of the U.S. Failure to obtain adequate patent protection for our proprletary technology could materially
impair our ability to be commercially competitive. |

In addition to patent protection, we also rely on the protectlon of trade secrets, know-how and
- confidential and proprletary information. To maintain the confldentmhty of trade secrets and proprictary
information, we generally seek to enter into confidentiality agreements with our employees, consultants
and strategic partners upon the commencement of a relationship with us: However, we may not obtain
these agreements in all circumstances. In the event of unauthorized use Qr disclosure of this information,
these agreements, even if obtained, may not provide meaningful protection for our trade secrets or other
confidential information. In addition, adequate remedies may not exist in the event of unauthorized use or
disclosure of this information. The loss or exposure of our trade secrets ‘Elil'ld other proprietary information
would impair our competitive advantages and could have a material adverse affect on our operating
results, financial condition and future growth prospects. Furthermore, others may have, or may in the
future independently develop, substantially similar or superior know-how and technology.

t
We may be involved in lawsuits to protect or enforce our patents that are broug}"tr by us which could be expensive
and time consuming and, if determined adversely, could adversely affect our patent position.

In order to protect or enforce our patent rights, we may initiate patent litigation against third parties,
and we may be similarly sued by others. We may also become subject to interfefence proceedings
conducted in the patent and trademark offices of various countries to detelrmme the priority of inventions.
The defense and prosecution, if necessary, of intellectual property suits, interference proceedings and
related legal and administrative proceedings is costly and diverts our techniical and management personnel
from their normal responsibilities. We may not prevail in any of these sunts An adverse determination of
any litigation or defense proceedings could put our patents at risk of bemg invalidated or interpreted
narrowly and could put our patent applications at risk of not issuing.
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Furthermore, because of the substantial amount of discovery required in connection with intellectual
property litigation, there is a risk that some of our confidential information could be compromised by
disclosure during this type of litigation. In addition, during the course of this kind of litigation, there could
be public announcements of the results of hearings, motions or other interim proceedings or developments
in the litigation. If securities analysts or investors perceive these results to be negative, it could have a
substantial negative effect on the trading price of our common stock.

We have agreed to share our na}ne, portions of our intellectual property rights and distribution channels with
other entities under common control which could result in the loss of our name and lock in the price of products
we may sell to these entities which may not be the best price available for these products.

We maintain a sharing agreement with 13 affiliated entities that requires us to share portions of our
intellectual property as it existed on February 28, 2000 and our distribution channels with these affiliated
companies and their affiliates. We also share the Bruker name with many of these affiliates. We could lose
the right to use the Bruker name if (a) we declare bankruptcy, (b) we interfere with another party’s use of
the name, (c) we take a material action which materially detracts from the goodwill associated with the
name, (d) we suffer a major loss of our reputation in our industry or marketplace, or (e} we undergo a
change of control. The loss of the Bruker name could result in a loss of goodwill, brand loyalty and sales of
our products. In-addition, we have agreed to maintain the price list on some products purchased from and
sold to these affiliates for a period of up to twelve years, subject to yearly adjustments in an amount no
greater than the increase in the Consumer Price Index.

Our manufacture and sale of products could lead to product liability claims for which we could have substantial
liability. '

The manufacture and sale of our products exposes us to product liability claims if any of our products
cause injury or are found otherwise unsuitable during manufacturing, marketing, sale or customer use. In
particular, if one of our CBRN detection products malfunctions, this could lead to civilian or military
casualties in a time of unrest, exposing us to increased potential for high-profile liability. If our CBRN
detection products malfunction by generating a false-positive to a potential threat, we could be exposed to
liabilities associated with actions taken that otherwise would not have been required. A successful product
liability claim brought against us in excess of, or outside the coverage of, our insurance coverage could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations, We may not
be able to maintain product liability insurance on acceptable terms, if at all, and insurance may not provide
adequate coverage against potential liabilities.

Responding to claims relating to improper handling, storage or disposal of hazardous chemicals and radioactive
and biological materials which we use could be time consuming and costly.

We use controlled hazardous and radioactive materials in our business and generate wastes that are
regulated as hazardous wastes under United States federal, and Massachusetts, California, Wisconsin and
Washington state, environmental and atomic energy regulatory laws and under equivalent provisions of law

‘in those jurisdictions in which our research and manufacturing facilities are located. Our use of these

substances and materials is subject to stringent, and periodically changing, regulation that can impose
costly compliance obligations on us and have the potential to adversely affect our manufacturing activities.
The risk of accidental contamination or injury from these materials cannot be completely eliminated. If an
accident with these substances occurs, we could be held liable for any damages that result, in addition to
incurring clean-up costs and liabilities, which can be substantial. Additionally, an accident could damage
our research and manufacturing facilities resulting in delays and increased costs.
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We are dependent upon various key personnel and must recruit additional qualified personnel for a number of
management positions. t

Our success is highly dependent on the continued services of key management, particularly our chief
executive officer, Frank H. Laukien, as well as technical and scientific personnel. Our management and
other employees may voluntarily terminate their employment with us at any time upon short notice. The
loss of the services of any member of our senior management, technical or scientific staff may significantly
delay or prevent the achievement of product development and other business objectives. Our future
success will also depend on our ability to identify, recruit and retain additional qualified scientific,
technical and managerial personnel. Competition for qualified personnel is intense, particulatly in the
areas of information technology, engineering and science, and the process of hiring suitably quatified
personne! is often lengthy. If we are unable to hire and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees,
our ability to conduct and expand our business could be seriously reduced.

Our chief executive officer and our senior vice president maintain relatmnsh:ps with the Bruker BioSpin group
which may impact their management of us.

Our chief executive officer, Frank H. Laukien, and our senior vice president, Dirk D. Laukien
currently are, and have been for over 10 years, management officers and directors of the Bruker BioSpin
group, which consists of several affiliated companies including Bruker BioSpin Inc., Bruker Physik AG,
Bruker BioSpin Invest AG, Techneon AG and their respective subsidiaries. Dr. Frank Laukien spends a
substantial amount of time rendering services to the Bruker BioSpin group as the group’s co-CEQ.

Dr. Dirk Laukien spends a substantial amount of time rendering services to the Bruker BioSpin group as
the co-president and a director of Bruker BioSpin Inc. and as a director of Bruker AG. Although Frank
and Dirk Laukien spend the majority of their time attending to our busingss, their involvement with the
Bruker BioSpin group reduces the time and attention they can devote to our management. Dr. Frank
Laukien and Dr. Dirk Laukien each beneficially own directly or mdlrectly more than 10% of our stock and
more than 10% of the stock of the Bruker BioSpin group. We colldborale with the Bruker BioSpin group
in selected product developments, and a portion of our customer base also does business with the Bruker
BioSpin group. We believe that alt agreements with the Bruker BioSpin group are at arm’s length
commercial conditions and pricing. However, Dr. Frank Laukien’s and Dr. Dirk Laukien’s relationships
with the Bruker BioSpin group could create an actual or perceived conflict of interest which could
negatively impact our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

'

3
We may not be able to maintain our sales and service staff to meet demand for our products and services.

We need to expand our direct marketing and sales force as well as our service and support staff. Qur
future revenue and profitability will depend in part on our ability to maintain our team of marketing and
service personnel. Because our products are technical in nature, we believe that our marketing, sales and
support staff must have scientific or technical expertise and experience. Competition for employees with
these skills is intense. We may not be able to continue to attract and retain sufficient qualified sales and
service people, and we may not be able to maintain and develop an efficient and effective sales, marketing
and support department. If we fail to continue to attract or retain qualified people, then our business could
suffer.

We plan significant growth, and there is a risk that we will not be able to manage this growth.
]

Our success will depend on the expansion of our operations. Effective growth management will place
increased demands on our management, operational and financial resources. To manage our growth, we
must expand our facilities, augment our operational, financial and management systems, and hire and train
additional qualified personnel. Our failure to manage this growth effective{ly could impair our ability to
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generate revenue or could cause our expenses to increase more rapidly than revenue, resulting in operating
losses.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from international sales and are subject to the risks of doing
business in foreign countries.

International sales account and are expected to continue to account for a significant portion of our
total revenues. Qur international operations are, and will continue to be, subject to a variety of risks
associated with conducting business internationally, many of which are beyond our control. These risks,
which may adversely affect our ability to achieve and maintain profitability and our ability to sell our
products internationally, include: |

» changes in foreign currency exchange rates;

s changes in regulatory requirements;

|
. legislatilon and régulation, including tariffs, relating to the import or export of high technology ‘
products; :

» the imposition of government controls;

» political and economic instability, including international hostilities, acts of terrorism and
governmental restrictions, inflation, trade relationships and military and political alliances;

» costs and risks of deploying systems in foreign countries;
» compliance with export laws and controls in multiple jurisdictions;
¢ limited intellectual property rights; and

¢ the burden of complying with a wide variety of complex foreign laws and treaties, including
unfavorable labor regulations, specifically those applicable to our European operations, as well as
U.S. laws affecting the activities of U.S. companies abroad.

While the impact of these factors is difficult 10 predict, any one or more of these factors could
adversely affect our operations in the future.

We may lose money when we exchange foreign currency received from international sales into U.S. dollars.

A significant portion of our business is conducted in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, which is our
reporting currency. As a result, currency fluctuations among the U.S. dollar and the currencies in which we
do business have caused and will continue to cause foreign currency transaction gains and losses. We
recognize foreign currency gains or losses arising from our operations in the period incurred. In addition,
currency fluctuations could cause the price of our products 10 be more or less competitive than our
principal competitors’ products. Currency fluctuations will increase or decrease our cost structure relative
to those of our competitors which could lessen the demand for our products and affect our competitive
position. We cannot predict the effects of exchange rate fluctuations upon our future operating results
because of the number of currencies involved, the variability of currency exposures and the potential
volatility of currency exchange rates. From time to time we enter into certain hedging transactions and/or
option and foreign currency exchange contracts which are intended to offset some of the market risk
associated with our sales denominated in foreign currencies. We cannot predict the effectiveness of these
transactions or their impact upon our future operating results, and from time to time they may negatively
affect our quarterly ecarnings. ’
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Various international tax risks could adversely aﬁect our earnings. .

e ————— — e

We'are subject to international tax risks. Distributions of earnings and other payments received from
our subsidiaries may be subject to withholding taxes imposed by the countrles where they are operating or
arc formed. If these foreign countries do not have income tax treaties with the United States or the
countries where our subsidiaries are incorporated, we could be subject to hlgh rates of withholding taxes
on these distributions and payments. We could also be subject to being tdxed twice on income related to .
operations in these non-treaty countries. Because we are unable to reduce the taxable income of one
operating company with losses incurred by another operating company located in another country, we may
have a higher foreign effective income tax rate than that of other companies in our industry. The amount
of the credit that we may claim against our U.S. federal income tax for forelgn income taxes is subject to
many limitations which may significantly restrict our ability to claim a credlt for all of the foreign taxes we
pay. '

We currently have reserves established on the statutory books of certain international locations.
Within our audited consolidated financial statements, which have been prelpared under U.S, generally
accepted accounting principles, the potential tax liabilities associated with these reserves have been
recorded as long-term deferred tax liabilities. If these reserves are challeng'ed and we are unable to
- successfully defend the need for such reserves, these liabilities could become current resulting in a negative
impact to our anticipated cash flows from operations over the next twelve months

l
Armed hostilities could constrain our ability to conduct business intefnationally and could also disrupt our U.S.
operations. ) i

The current world unrest, or the responses of the United States, may ks lead to further acts of terrorism
and civil disturbances in the United States or elsewhere, which may further contribute to the economic
instability in the United States. These attacks or armed conflicts may affect our physical facilities or those
of our suppliers or customers and could have an impact on our domestic and international sales, our supply
chain, our production capability, our insurance premiums or the ability to purchase insurance and our
ability to deliver our products to our customers. The consequences.of these risks are unpredictable, and

i

their long-term effect upon us is uncertain. ) ‘
The unpredictability and ﬂuctuatmn of our quarterly results may adversely affect the tradmg price of our common
stock.

Our revenues and results of operations have in the past and may in the future vary from quarter to
quarter due to a number of factors, many of which are outside of our conn;ol and any of which may cause
our stock price to fluctuate. The prlmary factors that may affect us include the following:

» the timing of sales of our products and services;

s the tin{ing of recognizing revenue and deferred revenue under U.S.?GAAP; '

e changes in our. pricing policies or the pricing policies of our compet:itors;

* increases in sales and marketing, pr,odﬁctl development or administ}atice exf,venses;
¢ the mix of eer\iices provided by us and third-party contractors;

o our ability to attain and maintain quality levels for our products;

i

» costs related to acquisitions of technology or businesses; and ‘

o the effectiveness of transactions entered into to hedge the risks asséciated with foreign currency and
interest rate fluctuations. 1
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Historically, we have experienced a decrease in revenue in the first, second and third quarters of each
fiscal year relative to the prior fourth quarter, which we believe is due to our customers’ budgeting cycles.
You should not rely on quarter-to-quarter comparisons of our results of operations as an indication of our -
future performance. It is likely that in some future quarters, our results of operations may be below the
expectations of public market analysts and investors. In this event, the price of our common stock may fall.

We face potential volatility of our stock price.

There has only been a public market for our common stock since August 2000. The market price of . -
our common stock may fluctuate substantially in response to various factors, many of which are beyond our.
control, including: : _ o

» quarterly fluctuations in results of operations, as described above;

¢ our ability to successfully commercialize our products;

« technological innovations or new commercial products by us or our competitors;

» developments concerning government regulatibns or proprietary rights which could affect the
potential growth of our markets; :

« material changes in our relationships with, or the viability of, strategic business partners;

» market reaction to trends in revenues and expenses, especially research and development; .
¢ changes in carnings estimates by analysts;

» volatility and uncertainty in the capital markets in general;

. loss‘of key personnel;

« changes in accounting principles;

e lack of trading volume in our stock;

o fluctuation within the life science and industrial analysis markets;

» sales of common stock by existing stockholders, particularly large institutional investors who cannot
hold stock traded at less than $5 per share; and

¢ cconomic and political conditions.

The market price for our common stock may also be affected by our ability to meet analysts’
expectations. Any failure to meet such expectations, even slightly, could have an adverse effect on the
market price of our commeon stock. In addition, the stock market, The Nasdaq Global Market and the
market for life science stocks in particular, has been and is subject to extreme price and volume
fluctuations. This volatility has had a significant effect on the market prices of securities issued by many
companies for reasons unrelated to the operating performance of these companies. In the past, companies
that have experienced volatility in the market price of their securities have been the subjects of securities
class action litigation. Any such litigation instigated against us could result in substantial costs and a
diversion of managements’ attention and resources, which could significantly harm our business, financial
condition and operating results, '
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Certain financial information incorporated by reference in this prospectus is presented on a basis different from
the basis on which our most recently published financial information is presented and is therefore not
comparable, ' o

We have incorporated by reference in this prospectus financial statements and other financial
information that do not include the financial position and results of opcrations of Bruker Optics and
Bruker BioSciences as a consolidated entity. These financial statements complied with apphcable
accounting requirements when they were initially filed and are incorporated by reference herein in
accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Our most recently
published financial information is presented on a combined basis and includes the financial position and
results of operations of Bruker Optics and Bruker BioSciences as if they had been a part of a consolidated

entity for all periods presented, even as to periods prior to the Bruker Optics acquisition. This presentation

also complies with applicable accounting requirements. As a result of the different bases of presentation,
however, the financial statements and other financial information published more recently are not
comparable to the financial statements and other financial information that excludes the combined
financial position and results of operations of Bruker Optics and Bruker BioSciences, and the latter should
not be relied upon in assessing our financial performance or in maklng!an investment decision with respect
to this offering. For more information, see “Cautionary Note Regarding Financial Information.”

Future sales of our stock may impact its market price. Lo

Sales of substantial numbers of shares of our common stock in the public market, or the perception
that significant sales are likely, could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Existing stockholders have significant influence over us. _
+
As of March 1, 2007, our majority stockholders owned, in the aggregate, approximately 52% of our
outstanding common stock. As a result, these stockholders will be able to exercise substantial influence
over all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors and approval of
significant corporate transactions. This could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control
of our company and will make some transactions difficult or impossible to accomplish without the support

of these stockholders.
Other companies may have difficulty acquiring us, even if doing so would beﬁeﬁt our stockholders, due to
provisions under our corporate charter and bylaws and as well as Delaware law.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation as amended, and our bylaws, as well as Delaware law
could make it more difficult for other companies to acquire us, even if domg so would benefit our
stockholders, Qur certificate of incorporation, as amended, and bylaws contain the following provisions,
among others, which may inhibit an acquisition of our company by a third party:

» astaggered board of directors, whereby stockholders elect only a minority of the board each year;

advance notification procedures for matters to be brought before stockholder meetings;

"a limitation on who may call stockholder meetings; and :

the ability of our board of difectors to issuc‘up to 5,000,000 shares b_f preferred stock without a
stockholder vote. ‘

i
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

There are no material unresolved written comments from the staff of the Securities and Exchange
Commission regarding our periodic or current reports received not less than 180 days before the end of
our fiscal year to which this Form 10-K relates.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
The location and general character of our principal properties by reportable segment as o
December 31, 2006 are as follows: '

Bruker AXS

Bruker AXS’ six principal facilities are in Karlsruhe, Berlin, and Kleve, Germany, Madison,
Wisconsin, USA, and Kennewick, Washington, USA, and Yokohama, Japan. These facilities, which
incorporate manufacturing, research and development, application and demonstration, marketing and
sales and administration functions for the analytical X-ray business of Bruker AXS, include;

» an owned 97,000 square foot facility in Karlsruhe, Germany;
» an owned 43,000 square foot facility in Madison, WI, USA;

a leased 16,000 square foot facility in Berlin, Germany;

a leased 15,000 square foot facility in Yokohama, Japan;

a leased 15,700 square foot facility in Kennewick, Washington, USA; and
o aleased 6,000 square foot facility in Kleve, Germany.

We lease additional centers for sales, applications and service support in: Delft, The Netherlands
(Bruker AXS BV); Coventry, United Kingdom (Bruker AXS Ltd.); Paris, France (Bruker AXS SA);
Salzburg, Austria (Bruker Austria GmbH); Milan, Italy (Bruker AXS S.r.L.); Johannesburg, South Africa
(Bruker (Pty) Ltd.); Ewing, NJ; Sdo Paulo, Brazil (Bruker do Brasil Ltda.); Singapore (Bruker AXS
Pte Ltd.); and Beijing, People’s Republic of China (Bruker AXS Representative Office).

Briker Dalionics

Bruker Daltonics’ three principal facilities are located in Billerica, Massachusetts USA, Bremen,
Germany and Leipzig, Germany. These facilities, which incorporate manufacturing, research and
development, application and demonstration, marketing and sales and administration functions for the
mass spectrometry and CBRN detection businesses of Bruker Daltonics, include:

» an owned 90,000 square foot facility in Billerica, Massachusetts U.SA;
» an owned 180,000 square foot facility in Bremen, Germany; and
» an owned 60,000 square foot facility in Leipzig, Germany.

We iease additional centers for sales, applications and service support in Fremont, California;
Coventry, United Kingdom (Bruker Daltonics Ltd.); Wissembourg, France (Bruker Daltonique S.A.);
Stockholm, Sweden (Bruker Daltonics Scandinavia A.B.); Faellanden, Switzerland (Bruker Daltonics
GmbH); Yokohama, Japan (Bruker Daltonics K.K.); Beijing, People’s Republic of China; Taipei, Taiwan
(Bruker Daltonics Taiwan Branch); Ontario, Canada (Bruker Daltonics Ltd.); Milan, Italy (Bruker
Dattonics Italiana SRL); Alexandria, Australia (Bruker BioSciences Pty Ltd.); Singapore (Bruker
Daltonics Pte LTDY); Bruxelles, Belgium (Bruker Daltonics NV); Seoul, South Korea (Bruker Daitonics
Korea Co. Ltd.); Madrid, Spain (Bruker BioSciences Espanola, SA) and Wormer, Netherlands (Bruker
Daltonics BV).




Bruker Optics

Bruker Optics’ three principal facilities arc in Ettlingen, Germany, Billerica, Massachusetts, USA, and
Houston, Texas, USA. These facilities, which incorporate manuf:alcturlng,l research and development,
application and demonstration, marketing and sales and administration functions for the business of
Bruker Optics, include: i
¢ an owned 75,000 square foot facility in Ettlingen, Germany; ;
s a leased 25,000 square foot facility in Billerica, Massachusetts USA; and
s 3 leased 15,000 square foot facility in Houston, Texas USA. !

We lease additional centers for sales, applications and service support in: Wlssembourg, France
{Bruker Optique S.A.); Stockholm, Sweden (Bruker Optics Scandinavia A B.); Milan, [taly (Bruker Optics
Italiana SRL); Faellanden, Switzerland (Bruker Optics GmbH); Ontario,; Cdndda (Bruker Optics Ltd.);
Kowloon, Hong Kong (Bruker Optik Asia Pacific Limited); Beijing, Pcople s Republic of China (Bruker
Instruments Beijing); Shanghai, People’s Republic of China (Bruker Optlcs -Shanghai); Taipei, Taiwan
(Bruker Optics Taiwan Ltd.); Bangkok, Thailand (Bruker Optik Thalldnd) Coventry, United Kingdom .
(Bruker Optics Ltd.); Tokyo, Japan (Bruker Optics K.K.); Wormer, Netherlands (Bruker Optics BV); and
Seoul, South Korea (Bruker Optics Korea Co. Ltd.); l

{
'
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS |

1
We may, from time to time, be involved in legal proceedings.in the ordmary course of business, We

are not currently involved in any pending legal proceedings that, either 1nd1v1dudlly or taken as a whole, .
are reasonably likely in our judgment to materially harm our business, prospects, results of operations or
financial condition. : '

ITEM 4, SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLbERS
None. . . - l

PART 11 ; '

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES S

1
Market Prices i

Qur common stock has been traded on The Nasdaq Global Market (formerly the Nasdaq National
Market) since August 4, 2000, the date that our common stock was first offered to the public. The
following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the high and low sale pr1ces for our common stock as
reported on The Nasdaq Global Market: |

. - High Low
FirstQuartcr2006............................‘............-l ..... $5.45 $4.24
Second QUArter 2006 . - .- .o o e $6.26 $4.52
Third Quarter2006. .. ... oot et P T $7.33  $5.19
Fourth Quarter 2006, ... ...t e ei e e e $847 3670

: : | High = Low’
First Quarter 2005 . . . oo o e e P $4.14 $3.16
Second Quarter 2005 .. ..o vt ... $4.49  $3.07
Third QUarter 2005 . . oo\t e L $4.69 $3.86
Fourth Quarter 2005. . . ..o\ v et e e . $5.60 $3.97
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As of March 9, 2007, there were approximately 96 holders of record of our common stock. This
number does not include the individual beneficial owners of shares held in nominee name or within
clearinghouse positions of brokerage firms and banks. The Nasdaq official closing price per share of our
common stock on March 9, 2007, as reported by The Nasdaq Global Market, was $9.77.

Dividends

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently anticipate that we
will retain all available funds for use in our business and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future. The terms of certain of our agreements regarding outstanding indebtedness prohibit us
from paying cash dividends. '

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

There were no unregistered sales of equity securities during the fourth quarter of fiscat 2006, We
previously reported sales of unregistered Company common stock during the 2006 fiscal year in our
Current Reports on Form 8-K. The foregoing sales were exempt from registration under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, pursuant to Section 4(2) thereof, on the basis that the transactions did not involve a
public offering, '

Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

On February 12, 2007, the Company and a group of seliing stockholders completed a public offering
of 11,960,000 shares of its common stock, pursuant to our registration statement on Form S-3, registration
number 333-139406, which was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on
February 6, 2007. 2,530,000 shares were sold by the Company and 9,430,000 shares were sold by four
selling stockholders, at $7.10 per share, generating net proceeds of approximately $17.0 million to the
Company and approximately $63.2 million to the selling stockholders, in the aggregate. The Company
anticipates using the net proceeds from this offering for the repayment of debt, general corporate purposes
and potential acquisitions. On February 21, 2007, the Company used a portion of the proceeds to pay off
the remaining $11 million of debt on its Citizens Bank revolving line of credit.

On April 28, 2004, the Company and a group of selling stockholders completed a public offering of
17,250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, pursuant to our registration statement on Form S-3,
registration number 333-113774, which was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission
on April 23, 2004. 3,450,000 shares were sold by the Company and 13,800,000 shares were sold by four
selling stockholders, at $4.50 per share. The net proceeds from the offering were approximately
$14.4 miilion to the Company and approximately $58.2 million to the selling stockholders, in the aggregate.
The Company used the net proceeds from this offering for general corporate purposes.

On August 3, 2000, our registration statement on Form §-1 (No. 333-34820) was declared effective by
the Securities and Exchange Commission. Pursuant to the registration statement, we offered and sold
9,200,000 shares of our common stock at an initial public offering price of $13 per share, generating gross
offering proceeds of approximately $119.6 million. The managing underwriters were UBS Warburg LLC,
CIBC World Markets and Thomas Weisel Partners LLC. In connection with the offering, we incurred
$8.4 million in underwriting discounts and commissions, and approximately $1.5 million in other related
expenses. The net proceeds from the offering, after deducting the foregoing expenses, were approximately
$110.0 million. No payments or expenses were paid to directors, officers or affiliates of the Company or
10% owners of any class of equity securities of the Company. We used a portion of the net proceeds of the
offering to fund our research and development activities, for working capital purposes, facility expansions
and other general corporate purposes. Additionally, we used approximately $7.0 million of the net
proceeds to pay off a portion of our outstanding bank debt. The balance was invested in a variety of
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interest-bearing instruments including investment-grade corporate bonds, commercial paper and money
market accounts. : i '

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities . !

There were no purchases made by or on behalf of the Company or any “affiliated purchaser,” as
defined in Rule 10b-18(a)(3) under the Exchange Act, of shares of out common stock during the fourth
quarter of 2006.
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA l

On July 1, 2006, the Company completed its acquisition of Bruker Optics. Both the Company and
Bruker Optics were majority owned by five affitiated stockholders prior to the acquisition. As a result, the
acquisition of Bruker Optics by the Company is considered a business combination of companies under
common control, and has been accounted for in a manner similar to a pooling-of-interests. See Note 3 to
the audited financial statements included in Item 8 in this report. The consolidated statements of -
operations data for each of the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and the consolidated
balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 have been derive'd from our audited financial
statements included elsewhere in this report. The combined statement of operations data and combined
balance sheet data for all other periods presented has been derived by combining amounts from Bruker
BioSciences and Bruker Optics historical audited financial statements. Historical results are not necessarily
indicative of future results.

'The data presented below has been derived from financial statements that have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and should be read with the
consolidated and combined financial statements and schedules, including the notes, and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this
report.

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In thousam‘is, except per share data)

Combined/Cansolidated Statements of

Operation Data: . ' ,
Product and service revenue. .. ............ $434,478 $369,923 '$354,650 $318,530 $237,311
Otherrevenue. .........cociioeeeeiiinn. 1,356 2330 2,339 1,438 227
Totalrevenue ...................oiiiuan 435834 - 372,253 - 356,989 319968 237,538
Total costs and operating expenses. ........ 405,172 349,831 . 350,395 325,645 230,777
Operating income (10ss)..........oovvunt. 30,662 22422 V6,594 (5,677) 6,761
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of '

change in accounting principle, net of tax . 18,481 9,747 (3,855)  (15,446) (5,388)
Net income (loss) available to common oL

shareholders . .............. . ooois 18,481 0,747 ' (3,855) (15,446) (6,005)
Net income (loss) per share available to J '

common shareholders.................. $ 018 § 010 § (0.04) § (017) § (0.07)
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During 2006, the Company recorded net gains on derivatives of $4.7 million, Bruker Optics
acquisition related charges of $5.7 million and stock-based compensation expense of $1.5 million. During
2005, the Company recorded net losses on derivatives of $2.8 million. During 2004, the Company recorded
charges of $2.3 million to write-off investments in other companies. During 2003, the Company recorded
special charges of $11.7 million in connection with the merger with Bruker AXS. During 2002, the
Company recorded a $10.9 miltion charge due to the write-down of investments in other companies.

As of December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except per share data)

Combined/Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term . :
investments........ e $ 52,147 $109,051 $ 86,564 § 82207 $106,023

Workingcapital ........ ... . oo ol 99,616 167,390 176,034 154,518 166,211
Totalassets . ... iiire i iiiineeennns 433,187 423,642 428,717 401,703 381,474
Totaldebt .......... ... .o 44,720 34,634 - 47836 51,704 41,133
Other long-term liabilities ................. 23,730 21,306 21,785 19,936 43,664

Total shareholders’ equity ................. 191,466 229,407 235,540 215,134 194,094

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis, or MD&A, describes the principal factors
affecting the results of our operations, financial condition, and changes in financial condition, as well as
our critical accounting policies and estimates. MD&A is organized as foliows:

o Executive overview. This section provides a general description and history of our business, a brief
discussion of our reportable segments, significant recent developments in our business and other
opportunities, challenges and risks that may impact our business in the future.

» Critical accounting policies and estimates. This section discusses the accounting estimates that are
considered important to our financial condition and results of operations and require us to exercise
subjective or complex judgments in their application. All of our significant accounting policies,
including our critical accounting pelicies and estimates, are summarized in Note 2 to our
consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this report on Form 10-K,

» Results of operations. This section provides our analysis of the significant line items on our
consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to 2005 and
. for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to 2004,

o Liguidity and capital resources. This section provides an analysis of our liquidity and cash flow and a
discussion of our outstanding debt and commitments.

o Transactions with related parties. This section summarizes transactions with entities which also use
the Bruker name and are affiliated through common shareholders..

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

On July 1, 2006, the Company completed its acquisition of Bruker Optics. Both the Company and
Bruker Optics were majority owned by five affiliated stockholders prior to the acquisition. As a result, the
acquisition of Bruker Optics by the Company is considered a business combination of companies under
common control, and has been accounted for in a manner similar to a pooling-of-interests. Accordingly,
the acquisition of Bruker Optics, as it relates to the portion under common ownership (approximately
96%}), has been accounted for at historical carrying values. The portion not under the common ownership
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i
1
|

|
of the five affiliated stockholders (approximately 4%) has been accoun‘}ed for using the purchase method -
of accounting (at fair value) on a pro rata basis. The excess purchase price of the interest not under
common control over the fair value of the related net assets acquired has been accounted for as goodwill
and intangible assets. Because this acquisition was essentially considered a pooling of interests, all one-
time transaction costs have been expensed as incurred rather than being added to goodwill. During the
year ended December 31, 2006, the Company incurred and expensed acquisition related charges totaling
$5.7 million, which consisted of investméent banking, legal and accounting fees, compensation earned by the
special committee of the Company’s Board of Directors and a Bruker Optics officer, and antitrust
regulation filing fees. The historical financial statements within this MD&A have been prcsented as if the

companies had always been combined. : 1

Bruker BioSciences and its who]ly-owned subsidiaries design, manufacture, market and service
proprietary life science and materials research systems based on mass spectrometry core technology
platforms, X-ray technologles optical emission spectroscopy (OES), and molecular spectroscopy
technologies. We also manufacture and distribute a broad range of fleld analytical systems for chemical,
biclogical, radiological and nuclear, or CBRN, detection. We currently report financial results on the basis
of three reportable segments: Bruker Daltonics, Bruker AXS and Bruker Optics. Since the Bruker Optics
acquisition, management has changed the way we manage our business and we arce currently reevaluating
the internal reporting structure. This may require a change to our segment reporting in the future and this
evaluation is expected to be completed in the first half of 2007. l

Bruker Daltonics is a leading manufacturer of innovative mass spec‘_trometry-based instruments and
accessories used by pharmaceutical, biotechnology, proteomics and molecular diagnostics companies,
academic institutions, and government agencies.in their research that can also be integrated and used
along with other analytical instruments. Bruker Daltonics also manufactiires and distributes a broad range
of field analytical systems for CBRN detection. Bruker AXS primarily er'}gages in the business of
manufacturing and distributing advanced instrumentation and automated solutions based on X-ray
technology and spark-OES with the purpose of addressing the needs of our customers in the discovery of
new drugs, drug targets and advanced materials, as well as industrial QAJQC applications. Typical
customers of Bruker AXS’ products and solutions include blotechnology and pharmaceutical companies,
semiconductor industries, chemical, cement, metals and petroleum compames raw material
manufacturers, and academic and government research institutions. Bruker Optics is a leading developer,
manufacturer and provider of research, analytical and process analysis instruments and solutions based on
infrared and Raman molecular spectroicopy technology. Typical customers of Bruker Optics’ products and
solutions include pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, cement and petroleum companies, food,
beverage and agricultural industries, and academic and government research institutions.

We maintain major technical and manufacturing centers in Europe, North America and Japan, we
have sales offices located throughout the world and our corporate headquarters is located in Billerica,
Massachusetts. Our business strategy is to capitalize on our proven ability to innovate and generate rapid
revenue growth, both organically and through acquisitions. Our revenue growth strategy, combined with
continued improvements to our gross profit margins and increased leverage on our research and
development, sales and marketing and distribution investments and general and administrative expenses,
are expected to enhance our operating margins and improve our earnings|in the future,

%
For the year ended December 31, 2006 our revenues grew by approximately 17% to $435.8 million. Of

this revenue growth, approximately 13% was organic and the remaining 4% due to acquisitions. We
continue to focus on improving our profitability and our gross profit margins for product and service
revenues improved from 44.2% in 2005 to 45.6% in 2006, reflecting improvernents realized from ongoing
gross profit margin improvement programs and contributions from our recent acquisitions. We continue to
invest in sales and marketing initiatives, primarily headcount increases, which has resulted in our sales and
marketing expenses as a percentage of product and service revenue to increase year-over-year. We expect
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these investments to result in increased revenues in future periods. Our ongoing cost control initiatives
resulted in decreases in both general and administrative and research and development expenses as a
percentage of product and service revenue during 2006 compared to 2005,

With the addition of Bruker Optics, we increased and diversified our market presence, technology
base, product line, globai distribution and customer support capabilities. We believe the addition of Bruker
Optics will help increase our ‘critical mass’ in many of the markets we serve, create revenue synergies,
diversify our customer and revenue base and expand our product and service offerings, all of which should
provide us with revenue growth opportunities and accelerate our drive to improve our margins, net income
and operating cash flow. The acquisition of Bruker Optics also provides us access to new market segments
and applications, particularly in pharmaccutical process analytical technologies and pharma-forensics, as
well as in food and beverage and feed and agricultural analysis.

On July 18, 2006, we acquired KeyMaster which will provide us with access to the fast growing
handheld and portable X-ray analysis market. We belicve the technologies KeyMaster has developed, and
the markets it serves, are highly complimentary to our core businesses.

On September 6, 2006, we acquired Quantron which will complement our existing stationary X-ray
fluorescence (XRE)} systems for metal foundries, as well as our new handheld XRF product line. We
believe Quantron’s spark-OES systems and technology will further strengthen the industrial analysis
business of Bruker AXS.

On January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R),
Share-Based Payment. This standard revised the measurement, valuation and recognition of financial
accounting and reporting standards for equity-based compensation plans contained in SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock Based Compensation. This standard required companies to expense the value of
employee stock options and similar equity-based compensation awards based on fair value recognition
provisions determined on the date of grant.

We adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective transition method, which required the
application of the accounting standard on January 1, 2006, the efféctive date of the standard for us. In
accordance with the modified prospective transition method, our consolidated financial statements for
prior periods have not been restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact of SFAS 123(R). The effect
of implementing SFAS No. 123 (R) was not typically material to the overall results of operations or
specific line items within the consolidated statement of operations, and as a result was not referenced often
within the discussions on results of operations in the accompanying MD&A. For the year ended
December 31, 2006, the $1.1 million, net of tax, in stock-based compensation expense was allocated as
follows (in thousands): - '

Year ended
December 31, 2006

Cost of Sales. .. oo v e SRR g $ 132
Sales and Marketing ........... e
General and Administrative .............. . .. i it
Research and Development................. e
Total stock-based compensation, pre-tax ........................
Tax benefit .......... A
Total stock-based compensation, netof tax . ..................... $1,087
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and resu]t§ of operations is based upon our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires
that we make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates its
estimates and judgments, including those related to revenue recognition, allowance for doubtful accounts,
inventories, goodwill, long-lived assets, warranty costs, and income taxes. We base our estimates and
judgments on historical experience, current market and economic conditions, industry trends and other
assumptions that we believe are reasonable and form the basis for mak'iﬁg judgments about the carrying
value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results could differ
from these estimates. ‘

We believe the following critical accounting policies to be both those most important to the portrayal
of our financial condition and those that require the most subjective judgment.

* Revenue recognition. We recognize revenue from system sales when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, the price is fixed or determinable, title and risk of loss has been transferred to
the customer and collectibility of the resulting receivable is reasénably assured. Title and risk of loss
is generally transferred to the customer upon receipt of a signed customer acceptance form for a
system that has been shipped, installed, and for which the customer has been trained. As a result,
the timing of customer acceptance or readiness could cause our reported revenues to differ
materially from expectations. When products are sold through an independent distributor, a
strategic distribution partner or an unconsolidated affiliated distributor, which assumes
responsibility for installation, we recognize the system sale when the product has been shipped and
title and risk of loss has been transferred. Our distributors do not have price protection rights or
rights to return; however, our products are typically warranted to be free from defect for a period of

_one year. Revenue is deferred until cash is received when a significant portion of the fee is due over
one year after delivery, installation and acceptance of a system. For arrangements with multiple
clements, we recognize revenue for each element based on the fair value of the element provided
all other criteria for revenue recognition have been met. The fair value for cach element provided
in multiple element arrangements is typicaily determined by referencing historical pricing poticies
when the element is sold separately. Changes in our ability to establish the fair value for each
element in multiple element arrangements could affect the timing of revenue recognition. Revenue
from accessories and parts is recognized upon shipment and service revenue is recognized as the
services are performed. ‘

'

o Warranty costs. We normally provide a one-year parts and labor warranty with the purchase of
equipment. The anticipated cost for this one-year warranty is accrued upon recognition of the sale
and is included as a current liability on the balance sheet. Although our facilities undergo quality
assurance and testing procedures throughout the production process, our warranty obligation is
affected by product failure rates, material usage and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a
product failure. Although our actual warranty costs have historically been consistent with
expectations, to the extent warranty claim activity or costs associated with servicing those claims
differ from our estimates, revisions to the warranty accrual may be required.

» Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined by the first-
in, first-out method for a majority of subsidiaries and by average-cost for a certain international
location. We maintain an allowance for excess and obsolete inventory to reflect the expected un-
saleable or un-refundable inventory based on an evaluation of slow 'moving products. If ultimate




usage or demand varies significantly from expected usage or demand, additional write-downs may
be required, resulting in a charge to operations.

e Goodwill, other intangible assets and other long-lived assets. We perform an evaluation of whether
goodwill is impaired annually or when events occur or circumstances change that would more likely
than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. Fair value is
determined using market comparables for similar businesses or forecasts of discounted future cash
flows. We also revicw other intangible assets and other long-lived assets when indication of
potential impairment exists, such as a significant reduction in cash flows associated with the assets.
Should the fair value of our long-lived assets decline because of reduced operating performance,
market declines, or other indicators of impairment, a charge to operations for impairment may be
necessary. ‘

o Allowance for doubtful accounts. We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of our customers to pay amounts due. If the financial condition of our
customers were to deteriorate, reducing their ability to make payments, additional allowances
would be required, resulting in a charge to operations. '

¢ Income taxes. We estimate the degree to which tax assets and loss carryforwards will result in a
benefit based on expected profitability by tax jurisdiction, and provide a valuation allowance for tax
assets and loss carryforwards that we believe will more likely than not go unused. If it becomes more
likely than not that a tax asset or loss carryforward will be used for which a reserve has been
provided, we reverse the related valuation allowance. If our actual future taxable income by tax
jurisdiction differ from estimates, additional allowances or reversals of reserves may be necessary.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared 10 Year Ended December 31, 2005

Revenue

The following table presents revenue, changes in revenue and revenue growth by reportable segment
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 {doliars in thousands):

Percentage
2006 2005 $ Change Change
Bruker Daltonics .......... e $159,744  $161,355 $(1,611) -1.0%
Bruker AXS ... . - 179,502 137,357 42,145 30.7%
Bruker Optics . ... ..oonieiie e iieiaiaercneaenns 105,530 78,701 26,829 34.1%
Eliminations (a) .. ... .ot (8,942 _ (5.160) (3,782)
Total. ..o e $435,834  $372,253  $063,581 17.1%

(a) represents product and service revenues between reportable segments.

Bruker Daltonics

Bruker Daltonics’ revenue decreased by $1.6 million, or 1.0%, to $159.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 compared to $161.4 million for the comparable period in 2005. The impact of foreign
exchange was not material. The decrease in revenue is a result of higher life science system revenues year-
over-year, offset by lower sales of CBRN systems during 2006 compared to 2005, lower grant revenue and
lower aftermarket revenues, which includes accessory sales, consumables, training and services. Included in
other revenue for 2006 and 2005 are grant revenues from various projects for early-stage research and
development projects funded by the German and United States governments. Life science systems, CBRN
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detection systems and aftermarket revenue as a percentage of Bruker, Daltonics’ product and service
revenue were as follows during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands):

: (
2006 .

2005

Percentage of
Segment Produict

Percentage of
Segment Product

Revenue and Service Revenue Revenue and Service Revenue -
Life Science Systems ................. $120,577 76.1%! $111,323 69.9%
CBRN Detection Systems. . ........... 9,426 5.9% { 17,370 10.9%
Bruker Daltonics Aftermarket. ........ 28,556 18.0% . 30,594 19.2%
Product and Service Revenue ....... 158,559 100.0% { 159,287 100.0%
Grant Revenue...................... 1,185 ‘ 2,068
TotalRevenue . ................... $159,744 $161,355

1
Bruker AXS 1
Bruker AXS' revenue increased by $42.1 million, or 30.7%, to $179.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 compared to $137.4 million for the comparable perlod in 2005. The impact of foreign
exchange was ot material. The increase in revenue is attributable to the businesses acquired over the last

five quarters and an increase in materials research system sales, other systems and aftermarket revenue.
Excluding acquisitions, the revenue growth rate was 20.3%. Other system revenue relates primarily to the
distribution of products not manufactured by Bruker AXS. X-ray and OES systems, other systems and
aftermarket revenue as a percentage of Bruker AXS’ product and service revenue were as follows during
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands):

2006
Percentage ul‘ .
Segment Product’

2005
Percentage of
Segment Product

Revenue and Service Revenue Revenue and Service Revenue
X-Ray and OES Systems.............. $124,635 694% ' $ 96457 70.2%
Other System Revenue . .........., ... 7,581 42% ! 6,792 5.0%
Bruker AXS Aftermarket............. 47,286 26.4% 34,108 - 24.8%
Total Product and Service Revenue ....  $179,502 .- $137.357 100.0%

100.0%

Bruker Optics

Bruker Optics’ revenue increased by $26.8 million, or 34.1%, to $105.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006 compared to $78.7 million for the comparable period in 2005. Included in this change
in revenue is approximately $1.6 miltion from the impact of foreign exchange Excluding the effect of
foreign exchange, revenue increased by 32.0%. The increase in revenue excludmg the effect of foreign
exchange is a result of an increase in molecular spectroscopy system reveiues especially in Europe and the
Pacific Rim, as well as the recognition of $8.7 million of revenue during 2006 under a new contract with the
Chinese State Food and Drug Administration (“SFDA™). Other system revenue relates primarily to the

- distribution of products not manufactured by Bruker Optics. Molecular spcctroscopy systems, other
systems and aftermarket revenue as a percentage of Bruker Optics’ product and service revenue were as
follows during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands):

‘2006 .
Percentage of |
Segment Product |

2005
Percentage of
Segment Product

. Revenue and Service Revenue Revenue and Service Revenue
Molecular Spectroscopy Systems. . ... ... $ 80,985 76.7% :  $57,023 72.4%
Other System Revenue . ............... 7.979 76% | 8560 10.9%
Bruker Optics Aftermarket . ........... 16,566 157% . 13,118 16.7%
Total Product and Service Revenue .. ... $105,530 ©1000% + $78,701 100.0%

[
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Cost of Revenue

The following table presents cost of pfoduct and service revenue and gross profit margins on product
and service revenue.by reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in
thousands):

2006 2005

Cost of Gross Profit Cost of Gross Profit

Revenue Margin Revenue Margin
Bruker Daltonics . ... i, $ 91,672 422% § 88,907 44.2%
Bruker AXS .. e e 103,616 42.3% 83,819 39.0%
BrukerOptics .......ooo i 50,497 52.1% 38,278 51.2%
Eliminations (a) ..... e e - (9,285) (4,730)
Total Costof Revenue ........ooveevvanenennnn s, $236,500 45.6%  $206,274 44.2%

{a) represents the cost of products and services between reportable segments.

Bruker Daltonics’ cost of product and service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 was
$91.7 million, resulting in a gross profit margin of 42.2%, compared to cost of product and service revenue
of $88.9 million, or a gross profit margin of 44.2% for the comparable period in 2005. The decrease in
gross profit margin is primarily attributable to lower CBRN detection sysiem revenues year-over-year.

Bruker AXS’ cost of product and service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $103.6
million, resulting in a gross profit margin of 42.3%, compared to cost of product and service revenue of
$83.8 million, or a gross profit margin of 39.0% for the comparable period in 2005. The increase in gross
profit margin is primarily attributabie to the higher margin businesses acquired over the last five quarters,
better capacity utilization as a result of increased revenue year-over-year and the realization of benefits
from various ongoing gross profit margin improvement programs, partially offset by lower gross profit
margins reatized on other system revenue.

Bruker Optics’ cost of product and service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $50.5 -
million, resulting in a gross profit margin of 52.1%, compared to cost of product and service revenue of
$38.3 million, or a gross profit margin of 51.2% for the comparable period in 2065. The increase in gross
profit margin is primarily attributable to higher margins realized on the Chinese SFDA systems and better
capacity utilization as a result of increased revenues year-over-year.

Sales and Marketing

The following table presents sales and marketing expense and sales and marketing expense as a
percentage of product and service revenue by reportable segment for the vears ended December 31, 2006
and 2005 (dollars in thousands):

2006 2005
Percentage of Percentage of
Sales and Segment Product Sales and Segment Product
. Marketing and Service Revenue Marketing and Service Revenue
Bruker Daltonics .................. $25,909 16.3% $23,849 15.0%
Bruker AXS ........ ey 35,321 19.7% 27,589 20.1%
Bruker Optics..................... 22,777 21.6% 19.020 24.2%
Total Sales and Marketing .......... $84,007 19.3% $70,458 19.0%

Bruker Daltonics’ sates and marketing expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased to
$25.9 million, or 16.3% of product and service revenue, from $23.8 million, or 15.0% of product and
service revenue for the comparable period in 2005. The increase in sales and marketing expense is
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attributable to incremental investments in various sales and marketmg initiatives, primarily headcount
related ; :

Bruker AXS’ sales and marketing expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased to $35.3
million, or 19.7% of product and service revenue, from $27.6 million, or 20.1% of product and service
revenue for the comparable period in 2005. The increase in sales and r'narketing expense is primarily
attributable to increased headcount related to the acquisitions over the past five quarters and incremental
mvestments in various sales and marketing initiatives.

Bruker Optics’ sales and marketing expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased to $22.8
million, or 21.6% of product and service revenue, from $19.0 million, or 24.2% of product and service
revenue for the comparable period in 2005. The increase in sales and marketing expense is primarily
attributable to increased headcount and higher commissions on increased revenues year-over-year. The
decrease in sales and marketing expense as a percentage of product and service revenue is attributable to
the leveraging of our sales and marketing infrastructure on higher revenues year-over-year.

t

, I
* The following table presents general and administrative expense an‘:d general and administrative
expense as a percentage of product and service revenue by reportable segment for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands): '

General and Administrative

i .
. |
2006 : | 2005

Percentage of . Percentage of
General and Segment Product v General and Segment Product
Administrative  and Service Revenue  Administrative _ and Service Revenue

Bruker Daltonics .............. $ 8,047 51% | $ 8,906 5.6%
Bruker AXS ... ....... ... ..., 12,856 7.2% ¢ 10,797 7.9%
Bruker Optics .. .............. - 4,392 4.2% . 3227 4.1%
Corporate .................... 3,687 L2671

Total General and Administrative $28,082 6.7% ) $25,601 6.9%
. N . I .

Bruker Daltonics’ general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2006
decreased to $8.0 million, or 5.1% of product and service revenue, from $§.9 million, or 5.6% of product
and service revenue for the comparable period of 2005. The decrease in general and administrative

expenses is primarily attributable to lower bad debt expenses year-over-year and benefits from ongoing
cost reduction initiatives. !

Bruker AXS’ general and administrative expenses for the year ended%December 31, 2006 increased to
$12.9 million, or 7.2% of product and service revenue, from $10.8 million,'or 7.9% of product and service
revenue for the comparable period in 2005. The increase in general and administrative expenses is
primarily due to increased headcount and intangible asset amortization related to the acquisitions
completed over the past five quarters.

. ; .
. Bruker Optics’ general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased

to $4.4 million, or 4.2% of product and service revenue, from $3.2 million, or 4.1% of product and service
revenue for the comparable period in 2005. The increase in general and administrative expenses is
primarily due to the expansion of the business and to allocated corporate general and administrative
expenses associated with being a public company: ;

Corporate general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased to
$3.7 million from $2.7 million for the comparable period in 2005. Corporate general and administrative
expenses represent expenses associated with being a public company not allocated to our reportable
segments, including legal fees, audit and consulting fees, salaries and filing fees. The increase in expenses is
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primarily attributable to stock-based compensation charges in 2006 not required to be recorded in 2005
and increased headcount year-over-year, partially offset by ongoing cost reduction initiatives.

Research and Development

The following table presents research and development expense and research and development
expense as a percentage of product and service revenue by reportable segment for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands): ’

2006 ’ 2005
Percentage of Percentage of

Research and Segment Product Research and Segment Product -

Development and Service Revenue Development and Service Revenue
Bruker Daltonics ............. . $24,681 15.6% $27.264 17.1%
Bruker AXS ... ... ... ... 17,687 9.9% 14,093 10.3%
Bruker Opncs ................... 7,591 7.2% 6,141 . 7.8%
Total Research and Development. . $49,959 11.5% $47.,498 12.8%

Bruker Daltonics’ research and development expense for the year ended December 31, 2006
decreased to $24.7 million, or 15.6% of product and service revenue, from $27.3 million, or 17.1% of
product and service revenue for the comparable period in 2005. The decrease in rescarch and development
expense is primarily attributable to a decrease in material purchases during the year ended December 31,
2006 compared to the comparable period in 2005 and to a reduction in headcount year-over-year.

Bruker AXS’ research and development expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased to
$17.7 million, or 9.9% of product and service revenue, from $14.1 million, or 10.3% of product and service
revenue for the comparable period in 2005. The increase in research and development expense is primarily
attributable to an increase in headcount resulting from the acquisitions completed over the past five
quarters, and increased material purchases during 2006 compared to 2005.

Bruker Optics’ research and development expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased to
$7.6 million, or 7.2% of product and service revenue, from $6.1 million, or 7.8% of product and service
revenue for the comparable period in 2005. The increase in research and development expense is primarily
attributable to development activities associated with our Dispersive Raman product line, enhanced
product development activities and an increase in material purchases and headcount during 2006
compared to 2005.

Acquisition Related Charges

On April 18, 2006, the Company announced that it had entered into a definitive agreement to acquire
all of the stock of molecular spectroscopy company Bruker Optics. The acquisition of Bruker Optics was
approved by the Company’s shareholders on June 29, 2006 and was subsequently completed on July 1,
2006. Since this acquisition represented a business combination of companies under common control due |
to a majority ownership by individuals in both the Company and Bruker Optics, this acquisition has been
accounted for in a manner similar to a pooling-of-interest. As a result, transaction costs were expensed as
incurred rather than being included in a purchase price allocation. During 2006, the Company incurred
and expensed acquisition related charges totaling $5.7 million, which consisted of investment banking, legal
and accounting fees, compensation earned by the specml committee of the Company s Board of Directors
and antitrust regulation filing fees.
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Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net . !

Interest and other income (expense), net, during the year ended December 31, 2006 was $3.8 million,
compared to $(0.8) million during the comparable period in 2005. During the year ended December 31,
2006, the major components within interest and other income (expense), net, were the appreciation of the
fair value of derivative financial instruments of $4.7 million, rental income of $0.2 million and losses on

‘foreign currency transactions of $(1.6) million. During the year ended December 31, 2005, the major

components within interest and other income (expense}, net, were the depreciation of the fair value of
derivative financial instruments of $(2.7) million, net interest income 01"l $0.5 million and gains on forelgn

currency transactions of $1.3 million. |

1

Provision for Income Taxes '

The income tax provision for the year ended December 31, 2006 W?:iS $15.9 million, or an effective tax
rate of 46%, compared to an income tax provision of $11.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2005,
or an effective tax rate of 55%. Our effective tax rate reflects our tax provision for non-U.S. entities only,
since no benefit was recognized for losses incurred in the U.S. We will maintain a full valuation allowance
for our U.S. net operating Yosses until evidence exists that it is more likely than not that the loss carry
forward amounts will be utilized to offset U.S. taxable income. Our tax rate may change over time as the
amount or mix of income and taxes outside the U.S. changes. Our effective tax rate is calculated using our
projected annual pre-tax income or loss and is affected by research and dcvelopment tax credits, the
expected level of other tax benefits, and the impact of changes to the valuation allowance, as well as
changes in the mix of our pre-tax income and losses among jurisdictions w:th varying statutory tax rates and
credits.

|
Minority Interest in Consolidated Subsidiaries :
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $8,000
compared to $40,000 in 2005. The minority interest in subsidiaries represents the minority shareholders’
proportionate share of net income of those subsidiaries for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.
For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the minority interest rélates to our two majority-owned

subsidiaries, Incoatec GmbH and Baltic Scientific Instruments Ltd.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 3 f, 2004
Revenue '
The following table presents revenue, changes in revenue and revende growth by reportable segment

for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 (dollars in thousands): :

I Percentage
2005 2004 . $Change Change
Bruker Daltonics . ....o.oovvnnn.. . $161,355 $152,592 , § 8,763 5.7%
Bruker AXS...................... 137,357 - 132,622 © 4,735 3.6%
Bruker Optics..................... 78,701 74,151 | 4,550 6.1%
Eliminations (a)................... (5,160)  {2,376) | l (2,784)
Total Revenue . ..............vun.. $372,253  $356,989 | $15,264 4.3%

L]

(a) represents product and service revenues between reportable segments.
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Bruker Dalfonics

Bruker Daltonics’ revenue increased by $8.8 million, or 5.7%, 1o $161.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 compared to $152.6 million for the comparable period in 2004 and the impact of
foreign exchange was not material. The increase in revenue is a result of increased demand for our CBRN
detection systems and increased demand for life sciences systems from some industrial customers, as well
as our academic, medical research and government agency customers, partially offset by a decrease in
demand from some of our pharmaceutical and biotechnology customers and by overall pricing pressures
due to increased competition. Revenues for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 include grant
revenues from various projects for early-stage research and development projects funded by the German
government. Life science systems, CBRN detection systems and aftermarket revenue as a percentage of
Bruker Daltonics’ product and service revenue were as follows during the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004 (dollars in thousands):

2005 2004
Percentage of Percentage of
Segment Product Segment Product
7 Revenue and Service Revenue Revenue and Service Revenue

Life Science Systems ................. $111,323 69.9% $107,369 71.4%
CBRN Detection Systems. . ........... ' 17,370 109% 12,839 8.5%
Bruker Daltonics Aftermarket......... 30,594 - 19.2% 30,195 20.1%

Product and Service Revenue ....... 159,287 100.0% 150,403 100.0%
GrantRevenue..............c.vune. 2,068 . 2,189

Total Revenue .............c.cvvut. $161,355 $152,592

Bruker AXS

Bruker AXS’ revenue increased by $4.7 million, or 3.6%, to $137.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 compared to $132.6 million for the comparable period in 2004, and the impact of
foreign exchange was not material. The increase in revenue is attributable to growth in our XRD materials
research systems and other systems revenue, partially offset by declines in SCD life science and XRF
elemental composition systems revenue. Other system revenue relates primarily to the distribution of
products not manufactured by Bruker AXS. X-ray systems, other systems and aftermarket revenue as a
percentage of Bruker AXS’ product and service revenue were as follows during the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004 (dollars in thousands):

2005 2004
Percentage of Percentage of
Segment Product Segment Product
Revenue and Service Revenue Revenue and Service Revenue
X-Ray Systems ... ................... $ 96,457 70.2% $ 97,059 73.2%
Other System Revenue . .............. 6,792 5.0% 1,679 1.3%
Bruker AXS Aftermarket............. 34,108 24.8% 33,884 25.5%
Total Product and Service Revenue ....  $137,357 - 100.0% $132,622 100.0%

Bruker Optics

Bruker Optics’ revenue increased by $4.5 million, or 6.1%, to $78.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 compared to $74.2 million for 2004. Included in this change in revenue is a favorable
effect of approximately $1.0 million from the impact of foreign exchange. Excluding the effect of foreign
exchange, revenue would have increased by 4.7%. Revenue growth was driven primarily by an increase in
our North American business across all markets and was offset partially by production and delivery delays
due to a the implementation of an ERP system in our German production site. Revenues for the years

58




1

ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 include grant revenues of $0.3 million and $0.2 million, respectively,
from various projects for early-stage research and development projeFts funded by the German
government, Molecular spectroscopy systems, other systems and aftermarket revenue as a percentage of
Bruker Optics’ product and service revenue were as follows during the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004 (dotlars in thousands): ‘ '

2005 7 2004
Percentage of Percentage of
Segment Product Segment Product
Revenue and Service Revenue Revenue and Service Revenue
Molecular Spectroscopy Systems. ........ $57,023 72.4% $57,111 77.0%
Other System Revenue s . .............. CR 8,560 - 10.9% 6,255 8.4%
Bruker Optics Aftermarket ............. 13,118 .  16.7% 10,785 14.6%
Total Product and Service Revenue ...... $78,701 100.0% $74,151 100.0%

Cost of Revenue :

The following table presents cost of product and service revenue and gross profit margins on product
and service revenue by reportable segmen[ for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 (dollars in

thousands): C

2005 . 2004

‘ ) ) ) ) _ Cost of Gross Profit Cost of Gross Profit

L Revenue Margin Revenue ‘Margin
Bruker Daltonics 7. .. oo e et $ 88907 1442% § 83,934 44 2%
Bruker AXS ... . e 83,819 + 39.0% 82,804 37.6%
Bruker Optics. . ... 38,278 51.2% 41,773 43.6%

“Eliminations (a) .............. [ PO (4,730) (2,376)

Total Cost of Revenue ........ PR, .. $206,274 442%  $206,135 419%

(b) represents the cost of products and services between reportable segments.

Bruker Daltonics’ cost of product and service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 was
$88.9 million, or a gross profit margin of 44.2%, compared to cost of product and service revenue of $83.9
million, or a gross profit margin of 44.2% for the comparable period in 2004. The consistent margins year-
over-year are a result of an increase-in the sales volume of high-margin CBRN detection systems, various
ongoing gross.profit margin improvement programs and better capacity utitization as a result of increased
revenues year-over-year, offset by pricing pressures on our life science systems due to increased
competition and additional inventory reserves required in 2005.

Bruker AXS’ cost of product and service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $83.8
million, or a gross profit margin of 39.0%, compared to cost of product and service revenue of $82.8
million, or a gross profit margin of 37.6% for the comparable period in 2004. The increase in gross profit
margins is primarily attributable to various ongoing gross profit margin improvement programs and
reduced warranty expenses as quality improvement initiatives impact certain products introduced during
2004 and 2005, partially offset by the lower margins derived from other system revenues, which increased
in 2005 compared to 2004, and additional reserves during 2005 required for excess service inventories.

Bruker Optics’ cost of product and service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 was
$38.3 million, or a gross profit margin of 51.2%, compared to cost of product and service revenue of
$41.8 million, or a gross profit margin of 43.6% for 2004, The increase in gross profit margin is primarily
attributable to increased sales of higher margin products, benefits realized from various ongoing gross
profit margin improvement programs and reduced warranty expenses as quality improvement initiatives

|
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favorably affected certain products introduced during 2004 and 2005. These improvements were partially
offset by additional reserves established for excess service inventories during 2005.

Sales and Marketing

The following table presents sales and marketing expense and sales and marketing expense as a
percentage of product and service revenue by reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004 (dollars in thousands):

2005 2004
Percentage of Percentage of

Sales and Segment Product Sales and Segment Product

Marketing  and Service Revenue Marketing  and Service Revenue
Bruker Daltonics ........covvnn.... $23,849 15.0% $27,000 18.0%
Bruker AXS ... .. ...l 27,589 20.1% 28,976 - 21.8%
BrukerOptics .. .............. ... 19,020 24.2% 16,740 22.6%
Total Sales and Marketing .......... $70,458 19.0% $72,716 20.5%

Bruker Daltonics’ sales and marketing expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 decreased to
$23.8 million, or 15.0% of product and service revenue, from $27.0 million, or 18.0% of product and
service revenue for the comparable period in 2004. The decrease in sales and marketing expense as a
percentage of product and service revenue is primarily attributable to increased revenue during the year
ended December 31, 2005 compared to the comparable period in 2004, and to benefits realized from cost
control initiatives implemented late in 2004, partially offset by increased commissions on higher revenues
year-over-year.

Bruker AXS’ sales and marketing expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 decreased to
$27.6 miltion, or 20.1% of product and service revenue, from $29.0 million, or 21.8% of product and
service revenue for the comparable period in 2004. The decrease in sales and marketing expense as a
percentage of product and service revenue is primarily attributable to increased revenue during the year
ended December 31, 2005 as compared to the comparable period in 2004, and to benefits realized from
cost control initiatives implemented late in 2004, partially offset by increased commissions on higher
revenues year-over-year.

Bruker Optics’ sales and marketing expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased to
$19.0 million, or 24.2% of product and service revenue, from $16.7 million, or 22.6% of product and
service revenue in 2004, The increase in sales and marketing expense as a percentage of product and
service revenue is primarily attributable {0 incremental sales and marketing investments in 2005 intended
to target future market opportunities for Bruker Optics’ products.
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Geneéral and Administrative

The foltowing table presents general and administrative expense ahd general and administrative
expense as a percentage of product and service revenue by reportable segment for the years ended
December 31 2005 and 2004 (dollars in thousands):

t

2005 ’ 2004
Percentage of ) Percentage of
General and Segment Product ' General and Segment Product
. Administrative and Service Revenue ' Admlnlstratlve and Service Revenue

Bruker Daltonics .............. $ 8,906 5.6% ©$ 7,544 5.0%
Bruker AXS ... ... ... 10,79_7 7.9% 9,419 1.1%
Bruker Optics................. 3,227 41% C 2,781 3.8%
Corporate .................... 2,671 . . 3,436

Total General and Administrative $25,601 6.9% v $23,180 6.5%

Bruker Daltonics’ general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2005
increased to $8.9 million, or 5.6% of product and service revenue, from $7 5 million, or 5.0% of product
and service revenue for the comparable period in 2004. The increase in generd] and administrative
expenses is primarily due to increased professional service fees associated with audit and Sarbanes-Oxley
requirements, and an increase in bad debt reserves during the year ended December 31, 2005.

Bruker AXS’ general and administrative expense for the year ended-December 31, 2005 increased to
$10.8 million, or 7.9% of product and service revenue, from $9.4 million, or 7.1% of product and service
revenue for the comparable period in 2004, The increase in general and admlmstratlve expenses is
primarily attributable to increased professional service fees associated with audit and Sarbanes- -Oxley
requirements, partially offset by cost control initiatives implemented late jn 2004.

Bruker Optics’ general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased to
$3.2 million, or 4.1% of product and service revenue, from $2.8 million, or 3.8% of product and service
revenue in 2004, The incredse in general and administrative expenses is prlmanly due to a general increase
in our business activities and presence around the globe.

Corporate general and administrative expenses represent expenses associated with being a public
company not allocated to our reportable segments, including legal fees, audit and consulting fees, salaries
and filing fees. Corporate general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2005
decreased to $2.7 million from $3.4 million for the comparable period in 2004. The decrease in expenses is
prlmarlly attributable to various salaries and accounting, audit and consulting fees classified as corporate

expenses during the year ended December 31, 2004 now being allocated to our reportable segments.
l

Research and Development

The following table presents research and development expense and research and development
expense as a percentage of product and service revenue by reportable segment for the years ended

December 31, 2005 and 2004 (dollars in thousands): |

2005 } 2004
Percentage of : . Percentage of
Research and Segment Product Research and Segment Product
Development and Service Revenue Development and Service Revenue
Bruker Daltonics ................ $27,264 17.1% $30,050 20.0%
Bruker AXS .................... 14,093 10.3% 13,169 9.9%
BrukerOptics ................... 6,141 7.8% . 5,145 6.9%

Total Research and Development. . $47,498 12.8% $48,364 13.6%

1
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Bruker Daltonics’ research and development expense for the year ended December 31, 2005
decreased to $27.3 million, or 17.1% of product and service revenue, from $30.1 miltion, or 20.0% of
product and service revenue for the comparable period in 2004. The decrease in research and development
expenses is primarily attributable to benefits realized from cost control initiatives implemented late in 2004
and a decrease in material purchases during the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to the
comparable period in 2004. ' -

Bruker AXS’ research and development expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased to
$14.1 mitlion, or 10.3% of product and service revenue, from $13.2 million, or 9.9% of product and service
revenue for the comparable period in 2004. The increase in research and development expense is primarily
related to the purchase of materials associated with completing a prototype for a potential new product
expected to be introduced within the next year, partially offset by increased revenue during the year ended
December 31, 2005 compared to the comparable period in 2004.

Bruker Optics’ research and development expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased to
$6.1 million, or 7.8% of product and service revenue, from $5.1 million, or 6.9% of product and service
revenue in 2004, The increase in research and development expense as a percentage of product and service
revenue is primarily related to the development activities in the United States associated with our
Dispersive Raman product line and enhanced product development activities in Germany during the year
ended December 31, 2005 compared to 2004.

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

Interest and other income (expense), net during the year ended December 31, 2005 was (30.8) million
compared to ($4.8) million during the comparable period in 2004. During the year ended December 31,
2005, the major components of interest and other income (expense), net, were the depreciation of the fair
value of derivative financial instruments of ($2.7) million, net interest income of $0.5 million and gains on
foreign currency transactions of $1.3 million. During the year ended December 31, 2004, the major
components of interest and other income (expense), net were the write-off of investments in the amount of
(82.3) million, losses on foreign currency transactions of ($1.4) million and net interest expense of ($1.1)
million.

« Provision for Income Taxes

The income tax provision for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $11.9 million compared to an
income tax provision of $5.5 million for the comparable period in 2004, During the year ended
December 31, 2005 the Company’s effective tax rate was approximately 55% and reflects our tax provision
for non-U.S. entities and U.S. entities that had taxable income and were not included in the consolidated
U.S. tax return for U.S. entities with operating losses. No benefit was recognized for losses incurred in the
U.S. For U.S entities with cumulative operating loss carry-forwards, we will maintain a full valuation
allowance for our U.S. net operating losses until such evidence exists that it is more likely than not that the
loss carry-forward amounts will be utilized to offset U.S. taxable income. Our tax rate may change over
time as the amount or mix of income and taxes outside the U.S. changes. Our effective tax rate is
calculated using our projected annual pre-tax income or loss and is affected by research and development
tax credits, the expected level of other tax benefits, the impact of changes to the valuation allowance as well
as changes in the mix of our pre-tax income and losses among jurisdictions with varying statutory tax rates
and credits. ’ :

Minority Interest in Consolidated Subsidiaries

The minority interest in subsidiaries represents the minority shareholders’ proportionate share of net
income of these subsidiaries. Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries for each of the years ended -
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December 31, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $0.1 million. For the ):rcars ended December 31, 2005 and
2004, the minority interest relates to our two majority-owned subsidiaries, Incoatec GmbH and Baltic

Scientific Instruments Ltd. |
. - l
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES "

We currently anticipate that our existing cash will be sufficient to support our operating and investing
needs for at least the next twelve months, but this depends on our proﬁltability and our ability to manage
working capital requirements. Future cash requirements could also be affected by potential acquisitions
that we may consider. Historically, we have financed our growth through a combination of debt financings
and issuances of common stock. Most recently, on February 12, 2007, w'e and a group of selling
stockholders completed a public offering which generated net proceeds of approximately $17.0 million to
us. In the future, there can be no assurance that additional financing alternatives will be available to us if
required, or if avanlab]e' will be obtained with terms favorable to us. - ‘:

During the year ended December 31, 2006, net cash provided by operating activities was $37.7 million
compared to net cash provided by operating activities of $49.7 million during the year ended December 31,
2005. The decrease in cash generated by operating activities was primarily attributable to an increase in
inventory balances partially offset by improved operating results in 2006'_, an increase in accounts payable
and customer depaosits. :

During the year ended December 31, 2006, investing activities provided $12.3 million in cash
compared to net cash used in investing activities of $12.0 million during the year ended December 31,
2005. Cash provided by investing activities during the year ended December 31, 2006 was attributable
primarily to $46.5 million from the sales of short term investments offset by appr0x1mately $26.4 miltion
used for acquisitions, net of cash acquired, and $7.6 million in capital expenditures. During 2007, we expect
to continue to make capital investments, focusing on enhancing the efficiency of our operations, our
internal controls and supporting our anticipated growth. .- !

L)

On January 17, 2006, we acquired Socabim SAS, a privately-held cor'ppany focused on advanced X-ray
analysis software for materials research based in Paris, France. The initial aggregate purchase price of
approximately $8.8 million was paid through the issuance of 267,302 restricted shares of our common stock
to Socabim’s two largest shareholders, which had an aggregate value of approximately $1.3 million as of
the date of issuance, and an aggregate of $7.5 million was paid to all of the Socabim selling shareholders -
from cash on hand. Additional cash consideration, in the amount of approximately $1.5 million in total,
may be paid through 2009 based on the future performance of Socabim. |

On July 18, 2006 we acquired ail of the capital stock of KeyMaster Téchnologies a Delaware
corporation located in Kennewick, Washington. In accordance with the stock purchase agreement, we paid
an aggregate of $10 million of cash consideration to the stockholders of KeyMaster

On September 6, 2006, we acquired all of the capital stock of Quantrqn, a spark-OES company based
in Kleve, Germany. In accordance with the stock purchase agreement, at the closing, we paid an aggregate
of approximately $6.3 million of consideration to the sellers, of which approximately $5.0 million was paid
in cash and approximately $1.3 million was paid in the issuance of an aggregate of 202,223 restricted
unreglstered shares of our common stock to Quantron’s two largest shareholders. Pursuant to the earn-out
provisions of the stock purchase agreement, up to an aggregate of $4.7 mllhon of additional cash
consideration may be paid through 2009 based on future performance of Quantron

In connection with our November 2005 acquisition of Roentec AG, addltlondl consideration, in the -
amount of approximately $2.0 million, may be paid to Roentec’s former managemcnt employee and
consultant sharcholders based on the 2006 and 2007 revenue performance ¢ of Roentec. If these payments
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are required, they will be comprised of either, at our option, 50% our restricted stock and 50% cash or
100% cash. For 2006, the Company intends to pay this additional consideration in cash.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, financing activities used $64.4 miilion of cash compared to
a use of $11.0 million of cash during the year ended December 31, 2005. The use of cash in 2006 was
primarily due to $74.0 million paid to certain shareholders in connection with the Bruker Optics
acquisition offset by $12.2 million in increased proceeds from short-term borrowings. Although the
$74.0 million was part of the Bruker Optics purchase price, the purchase accounting treatment for
companies under common control resulted in these payments being recorded within fmancmg activities as
a deemed dividend.

At December 31, 2006, we had a demand line of credit with Citizens Bank in the United States with a
maximum available amount of $40.0 million. The line of credit is secured by the pledge to the bank of
100% of the capital stock of each of the Company’s wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries, each of which also
pledged a portion of the stock of certain of their foreign subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2006, $29.0°
million under our U.S. line of credit was available. We also maintain revolving lines of credit totaling
approximately $35.3 million with various German, Japanese and French banks. The German, Japanese and
French lines of credits are unsecured and as of December 31, 2006, approximately $8.4 miliion, in the
aggregate, was outstanding on these lines of credit.

In addition to our lines of credit, we have both short-term and long-term notes payable with
outstanding balances aggregating $25.3 million as of December 31, 2006. The interest rates on these
obligations range from 1.8% to 8.01%. We entered into an interest rate swap to hedge the variability of
cash flows related to changes in interest rates on borrowings of variable debt obligations and pay a 4.6%
fixed rate of interest and receive a variable rate of interest based on the Securities Industry and Financial
Markets Municipal SWAP Index. The interest rate swap has a notional value of $1.7 million which
decreases in conjunction with the State of Wisconsin industrial revenue bonds (IRB) payment schedule
until the interest rate swap and IRB agreements terminate in December 2013.

. The following table summarizes maturities for our significant financial obligations as of December 31,
2006 (in thousands): . .

- Less than 1.3 4.5 More than
Contractual Obligations . Total 1 year Vears years 5 vears
Short-term borrowings ....................... $193% $1939% § — $§ — § —
Operating lease obligations ................... 14,659 3,614 5,940 4,815 290
Long-termdebt................coiiinit, 25,324 2,461 18,977 2,659 1,227
Pension..................... e 11,116 140 636 . 1,179 9,161
Total contractual obligations .. .. .............. $70,495 $25,611 $25553 $8,653 $10,678

In connection with some of our outstanding debt, we are required to maintain financial ratios and
meet other financial criteria. Additionally, we are subject to a variety of restrictive covenants that require
bank consent if not met. As of December 31, 2006, the latest measurement date, we were not in
compliance with the required debt service coverage ratio associated with the IRB. On January 30, 2007, we
received from the holder of the debt a limited waiver for the quarterly measurement period ending
December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately $10.9 million of net operating loss carryforwards
available to reduce future U.S. taxable income. These losses have various expiration dates through 2025.
We also had foreign tax credits of approximately $9.9 million that expire in 2016 and research and
development tax credits of approximatety $3.1 million available to offset future U.S. tax liabilities that
expire at various dates through 2025.
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES |

We are affiliated, through common shareholders, with several other entities which use the Bruker
name. We have entered into a sharing agreement with certain of these affiliates which provides for the
sharing of specified intellectual property rights, services, facilities and other related items.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had payables to related paities of $5.9 million and $6.2 million,
respectively. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had receivables fro']m related parties of $9.0 million
and $6.5 million, respectively. Payment terms on balances with related parties are similar as those with
third party customers. I

Sales to related parties which are not subsidiaries of ours are mcluded as revenues in the consolidated
financial statements. These related parties maintain sales offices in c0untr1es in which we do not have our
own distribution network. As such, these sales were primarily for resale'of our products only. These sales
amounted to $10.8 million, $14.2 million and $19.0 million for the years|ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. In addition, we purchased products and services which amounted to $19.4 million,
$15.8 million, and $12.7 million from affiliated entities in the year ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. ]

We share various general and administrative expenses for items inc!uding umbretla insurance palicies,
accounting services and leases with various related parties. These general and administrative expenses
amounted to $3.7 million, $2.8 million and $2.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. |

During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, we pald $1.3 million, $0.5 million and
$0.5 million to a law firm in which one of our directors is a partner.

|
During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, we patd'apprommdtely $147,000, $48,500
and $24,300 to a financial services firm in which one of our directors is a partner.

Bruker Optics rents various office space from a principal stockholder under lease agreements. During
each of the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, this stockholder was paid $0.3 million, which
was estimated to be equal to the estimated fair market value less the cost of capital improvements provided
by Bruker Optics in 2004. Bruker Optics subleased a portion of this office space to an affiliate during 2006,
2005 and 2004 and received $31,500, $31,500, and $0.1 million, in rental i mcomc which included charges
for utilities and other occupancy cost. This rental income is recorded as a|reduction of rent, utilities, and
building maintenance expenses. 1

!
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are potentially exposed to market risk associated with changes in‘foreign exchange and interest
rates for which we selectively use financial instruments to reduce related market risks. An instrument is
treated as a hedge if it is effective in offsetting the impact of volatility in our underlying exposure. We have
also entered into instruments which are not effective derivatives under the requirements of SFAS No. 133,
and therefore such instruments are not designated as hedges. All transactions are authorized and executed
pursuant to our policies and procedures. Analytical techniques used to manage and monitor foreign
exchange and interest rate risk include market valuations and sensitivity aﬁalysis.

The Company regularly invests excess cash in overnight repurchase agreements and interest-bearing
investment-grade securities that we hold for the duration of the term of the respective instrument and are
subject to changes in short-term interest rates. The Company believes that' the market risk arising from
holding these financial instruments is minimal. l

The Company's exposure to market risks associated with changes in 1nterest rates relates primarily to
the increase or decrease i in the amount of interest income earned on its 1nv$stment portfolio. The

|
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Company ensures the safety and preservation of invested funds by limiting default risk, market risk and
reinvestment risk. The Company mitigates default risk by investing in investment grade securities. Declines
in interest rates over time will, however, reduce the Company’s interest income.

Impact of Foreign Currencies

We sell products in many countries, and a substantial portion of sales and expenses are denominated
in foreign currencies, principally in the Euro and Japanese Yen. Fiuctuations in the rate of exchange
between the U.S. dollar and foreign currencies could adversely affect our financial results. Costs related to
these sales are largely denominated in the same respective currencies, thereby limiting our transaction risk
exposure. However, for sales not denominated in U.S. dollars, if there is an increase in the rate at which a
foreign currency is exchanged for U.S. dollars, it will require more of the foreign currency to equal a
specified amount of U.S. dollars than before the rate increase. In such cases, if we price our products in the
foreign currency, we will receive less in U.S. dollars than we did before the rate increase went into effect. If
we price our products in U.S. dollars and competitors price their products in local currency, an increase in
the relative strength of the U.S. dollar could result in our prices not being competitive in a market where
business is transacted in the local currency.

We have entered into option and forward currency exchange contracts, both having maturities of less
than twelve months with notional amounts aggregating $14.4. These contracts involve the purchase of
EURO currency at fixed U.S. dollar amounts. The notional amounts of the contracts are intended to
hedge receivables in U.S. dollars. These transactions do not qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS
No. 133. Accordingly, the instruments are marked-to-market with the corresponding gains and losses
recorded in other income (expense) in the current period.

At the end of each reporting period, we obtain third-party verification as to the fair value of these
instruments. As of December 31, 2006 and 2003, the currency exchange contracts had a favorable fair vatue
of $1.4 million and an unfavorable fair value of $2.7 million, respectively. The instruments’ fair market
values are recorded net of each other on the balance sheet. In connection with these instruments, we
recorded a net gain of $4.1 million and a net loss of $(2.8) million during the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

Realized foreign exchange gains (losses) were approximately $(1.6) million and $1.3 million for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. As we continue to expand internationally, we
evaluate currency risks and may enter into foreign exchange contracts on a more consistent basis or from
time to time as the circumstances require to mitigate foreign currency exposure.

We have entered into foreign-denominated debt obligations. The currency effects of the debt
obligations are reflected in interest and other income {expense), net, on the consclidated statement of
operations. We also have foreign-denominated intercompany borrowing arrangements with our Bruker
Daltonik GmbH subsidiary in Germany that affected accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). A
10% increase or decrease of the respective foreign exchange rate with our Bruker Daltonik GmbH
subsidiary in Germany would result in a change in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) of
approximately $2.9 million or $(2.4) million, respectively.

Impact of Interest Rates

Our exposure related to adverse movements in interest rates is derived primarily from outstanding
floating rate debt instruments that are indexed to short-term market rates and cash equivalents. Our
objective in managing our exposure to interest rates is to decrease the volatility that changes in interest
rates might have on our earnings and cash flows. To achieve this objective, we use a fixed rate agreement
to adjust a portion of our debt that is subject to variable interest rates.
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In the United States, we have entered into an interest rate swap arrangement to limit the interest rate
exposure on our $2.0 million industrial revenue bond to a'fixed rate of 4.6%. We pay a 4.6% fixed rate of
interest and receive a variable rate of interest based on the Securities Industry and Financial Markets
Municipal SWAP Index on a $1.7 million notional amount. Net interest;payments or receipts are recorded
as adjustments to interest expense. In addition, the instrument is recorded at fair market value on our
balance sheet, and changes in the fair market value are recorded in current earnings since the arrangement
is not considered an effective hedge. As of December 31, 2006, the fair value of the instrument was
approximately $0.1 million, net of tax, and is recorded as a liability on the balance sheet.

In 2002, we entered into two derivative financial instruments; a cross currency interest rate swap and
an interest rate swap. The cross currency interest rate swap is for 5.0 million Euro and we receive
semiannual interest payments in Euro based on a variable interest rate equal to the six-month EURIBOR
rate in exchange for semiannual payments in Swiss francs at a fixed rate of 4.97%. The interest rate swap of
3.0 million Euro reduces the 6-month EURIBOR rate by 1.80% per annum until January 4, 2007. We
entered into the financial instruments to manage our exposure (o interest rates and forelgn exchange risk.
Until the instruments become an effective hedge, the instruments are considered speculative and are
marked-to-market through interest and other income (expense), net, on the consolidated statement of
operations. As of Decémber 31, 2006 and 2005, the cross currency interest rate swap had a favorable fair
value of $0.2 million and an unfavorable value of $(0.3) million, respectively. As of December 31, 2006 and
2003, the interest rate swap had unfavorable fair values of approximately $((] 0) million and $(0.1) million,

respectively.
|

A 10% increase or decrease in the average cost of our variable rate debt would not resull in a material
change in pre-tax interest expense, .
L]

Inflation

We do not believe inflation had a material impact on our business or operatlng results during any of
the periods presented. |

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (“SFAS”) No. 159,
The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities, Including an amendment of FASB Statement
No. 115, (“SFAS 159”). This Statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments
and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. SFAS 159
is effective as of the beginning of fiscal 2008. We have not yet assessed the effect, if any, that adoption of
SFAS 159 wili have on our results of operations and financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans——which amends SFAS No. 87, Employers’ Accounting for Pensions, SFAS
No. 88, Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and Cuntailments of Defined Benef t Pension Plans and for
Termination Benefits, SFAS No. 106, Employers Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions
and SFAS No. 132(R), Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits. This
Statement requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of defined benefit
pension and other postretirement defined benefit plans, previously dlsclosed in the footnotes to the
financial statements, as an asset or liability in its statement of financial posmon and to recognize changes
in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive income, This
Statement also requires an employer to measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its year end
statement of financial position. In addition, this Statement will require disclosure of the effects of the
unrecognized gains or losses, prior service costs and transition asset or obligation on the next fiscal year’s
net periodic benefit cost. This Statement is effective for all financial statements issued for fiscal years

1
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ending after December 15, 2006 and retrospective application of this Statement is not permitted. We have
adopted SFAS No. 158 and as of December 31, 2006 we have incurred an incremental increase in benefit
obligation of $0.2 million. : ' '

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 157”). This
Statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007.
SFAS 157 provides a common fair value hierarchy for companies to follow in determining fair value
measurements in the preparation of financial statements and expands disclosure requirements relating to
how such fair value measurements were developed. SFAS 157 clarifies the principle that fair value should
be based on the assumptions that the marketplace would use when pricing an asset or liability, rather than
company specific data. We are currently assessing the impact that SFAS 157 will have on our results of
operations and financial position. S

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for .
Uncertainty in Income Taxes. This Interpretation sets forth a recognition threshold and valuation method to
recognize and measure an income tax position taken, or expected to be taken, in a tax return. The
evaluation is based on a two-step approach. The first step requires an entity to evaluate whether the tax .
position would “more likely than not,” based upon its technical merits, be sustained upon examination by
the appropriate taxing authority. The second step requires the tax position to be measured at the largest
amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. In
addition, previously recognized benefits from tax positions that no longer meet the new criteria would no
longer be recognized. The application of this Interpretation will be considered a change in accounting
principle with the cumulative effect of the change recorded to the opening balance of retained earnings in
the period of adoption. This Interpretation will be effective for the Company on January 1, 2007. We are
currently evaluating the Interpretation and the impact it may have on our results of operations and
financial condition.

68




ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DA TA

Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolldated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005

%

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2006 .2005 and 2004. .

Consolidated Statements of Shareholder’s Equity and Comprehenswe Income (Loss) for the years

ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 .

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

69

73
74
75




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm | o

The Board of Directors and Sharcholders
Bruker BioSciences Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Bruker BioSciences Corporatlon
(the Company) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity and compréehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2006. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the
Index at Item 15(a). These f1nanc1al statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these f1nanc1a] statements and schedule based
on our audits. : :

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Bruker BioSciences Corporation at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and
the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion,
the related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.,

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, on January 1, 2006, the Company
adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment,
which requires the Company to recognize expense related to the fair value of share-based compensation
awards.

We aiso have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Bruker BioSciences Corporation’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated March 14, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Boston, Massachusetts
March 14, 2007.
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BRUKER BIOSCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
* (in thousands, except share data) {

December 31,
2006 2005 .
. ‘ ASSETS H
Current assets: S f

Cash and cash equivalents .. .............ovvereeeieriieenienns. L. $ 52,147 $ 62,632
Short-term inVeStMENTs. 7. .. ... invie i e ! ........ — 46,419
Accountsreceivable, net. ... ... . i e, 79,604 - 67,913
Due from affiliated companies .......... ... i ll ........ 9,028 6,464
Inventories .. e e ASRTETS 134,504 117,(_555
Other CUITENE ASSEIS. + . v v o e ettt ts s nsenesasenasnrraarnaesas o 19,461 14,166

TOtal CUTTENE AS8EES . .\ v it st ee e eie st venanacmarianiasnn Lo 294,744 315,249
Property, plant and eqUIPMENt . ... ...t l ........ 90,349 85,313
Restricted Cash . .. ... oottt i e e e et e (P 1,167 1,010
GOOAWILL - . e e oot 39,777 17.516
Intangible assets. R PR Lo 5,579 1,533
Other assets. .. ........... USSP L 1,631 3,021

Total assets ........... e, ! ....... | $433187 $423,642

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities: o i :

Short-term bOTTOWINES .. ..o ovve et i e iaiaeas oo $ 19396 $ 7,323
Current portion of long-termdebt ...........o oo Lo 24601 | 2,241
Accounts payable.................. P ! AP 23,102 17,211
Due to affiliated COMPANIES . . . ...\ vvtteeaee et innraeeeeaaeadenaennn ~ 5901 6,175
CUSIOMET BAVANCES . .+ + v v s oes e e oo e e 49 461 38,175
Other current TADT IS, + o et e e v e e ee s ee s e et aaesnsnranenacnad Lo . 94,807 76,734

Total current Babilities . ... ... .. ..oetivraeeianeeenenen.] ..., 795128 147,859
Long-term debt. .. ...... e, e ] Lo 22,863 25070
Othér long-term liabilities . ........ ... ... ... o i ! ........ 12,375 11,675
Accrued pension. . .. ...t e e [ N 11,116 ' 8,518
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries. . ............. PRI P 239 1,113

Commitments and contingencies (Note 14}

Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized, none issued or
outstanding at December 31,2006 and 2005. .. ................. Lo —

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized, 102, 561 129
and 101,105,705 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2096 and
L2005, respectively. ..o e b 1,020 1,011
Aclditionalpaid-incapital.................................'.....l ........ 149,460 217,716
Retained earnings (accumnulated deficit). ................ 000t : ......... 17,467 (1,014)
Accumulated other comprehensive income ..................... oo 23,519 11,694
Total shareholders’ equity ..ot b 191,466 229407
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity................... ... ! ........ $433,187 $423,642

I
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

H
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BRUKER BIOSCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

- 2006 2005 2004
ProdUCt TEVEIUR . . . .\ s e et et e e e e e e et e e nes $384,548  $329452 $317,269
BT T Tor S ¢ 5341 V1 [V N 49,930 40471 - 37381
Otherrevenue. ........ccoiviiviinn. e 1,356 2,330 2,339
Total TeVenNUE . ..ottt e e e 435,834 372,253 356,989
Costof product revenue ........0 . .ooiiii i iaineanns 206,628 178,831 182,377
Costofservicerevenue . ................ e e 29,872 27,443 23,758
‘Totalcostofrevenue...........cooviiiiiiiiniiiin.., e 236,500 206,274 206,135
Grossprofit. . ...... ..o i e 199,334 165,979 150,854
Operating expenses: : ' . '
Sales and marketing......... e e e e e e, 84,007 70,458 72,716
General and administrative ...................... e 28982 25,601 23,180
Research and development ........... e e 49,959 47,498 48,364
Acquisition related charges ..............cooviiiii .. 5,724 SR —
Total operating expenses . .......oviiiieiniiiiiieareianien. 168,672 143,557 144,260
Operating inCome ... ...ttt it iiian i iinnnn 30,662 . 22,422 6,594
Interest and other income (expense),net ................. e 3,758 - (780) ° (4,847)
Income before provision for income taxes and minority interest in ‘
consolidated subsidiaries ... ... er o 34,420 21,642 - 1,747
-Provision for income taxes ................. [P N 15,931 11,855 5,533
Income (loss) before minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries . 18,489 9,787 (3,786)
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries.................... 8 40 69
Netincome (1088)........covvvvnenie L, e $ 18481 $ 9,747 § (3,855)
Net income (loss) per share—basic and diluted: $ 018 $ 010 § (0.04)
Weighted average commeon shares outstanding; .
BasiC. ... 101,512 100,823 99,797
Diluted. ..o e e 102,561 101,130 99,797 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

72




Balance at December 31, 2003 .
Issuance of common stock, net
of issuance costs .........
Stock options exercised. . . . ..
Stock compensation related to
stock options issued to non-
employees. . ............
Comprehensive loss:

Netloss..........oovunn '

Unrealized loss on
investments ...........
Foreign currency transiation
adjustments . ..........
Net comprehensive income. . .
Balance ar December 31, 2004 .
Shares issued in connection
with acquisition..........
“Stock options exercised. ... ..
Stock compensation related to
stock options issued to non-
.employees..............
Comprehensive loss:
Netincome .............
Untrealized gain on
investments ...........
" Foreign currency translation
-adjustments...........
Net comprehensive loss. . . . ..
Balance at December 31, 2005 .
Shares issued in connection
. with the purchase of
minority interest .........
Deemed dividend in
connection with the Bruker
Optics acquisition .. ......
Shares issued in connection
with acquisitions . ........
Stock options exercised. ... ..
Stock based compensation . . .
Issuance of restricted shares . .
Comprehensive income:
Netincome .............
Foreign currency translation
adjustments .. .........
Net comprehensive income. . .
Balance at December 31, 2006 .

i
i
|

t
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BRUKER BIOSCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(in thousands, except share data)

|
i
1
<
i

. . Retained Accumulated
Additional Earnings | Other Total
Paid-in  (Accumulated Treasury Comprehensive Shareholders’
Shares Amounl Capital Deficit) ‘Stock Income (Loss) Equity
97,764,660 § 978 3204313 $ (6,906) $l(2,332) $ 19,079 $215,134
' ’ i
2,992,800 29 12,019 — , 2332 — 14,380
14,853 1 48 — b= — 49
- — 38 —_ v — — 38
— — — (3,855) ’ — — (3,855)
— — — - .= (155) (155)
— — — - = 9,949 9949
_ ; ' 5,939
100,772,313 1,008 216,420 (10,761} M- 28,873 235,540
209,271 2 892 . — L= — 894
124,121 1 . 376 — | — — 377
i .
— — 28 — e — 28
P
—_ — — 9,747 bo— — 9,747
- — — - i — 12 12
— - — S - (17,191) (17.191)
: (7,432)
101,105,705 , $1,011  $217,715, $ (1,014) 5§ — $ 11,694 $229,407
|
:
73,475 1 360 — P — — 361
|
_ — (74,021) - ; — — (74,021)
469,525 5 2,605 — - — 2,610
290,224 3 1,326 — |. — — 1,329
— — 1,474 — . = — 1,474
622,200 — — — o= — —
— — — 18,481 - — 18,481
. |
i
— — — — o= 11,825 11,825
' 30,306
102,561,129  §1,020  §$149,460 3 17,467 $ — § 23,519 $191,466

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BRUKER BIOSCIENCES CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities:
Netincome (0SS} ... .r ittt e e e i $ 18481 § 9,747 § (3,855)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash flows from operating activities: ‘
Depreciation and amortization. . ... ..o vo v vt i i e e 13,289 10,506 11,201
Deferred IRCOME TAXES . . .. ...ttt e et oot ia it en e e iinaras 1,412 (1,315) 918
Write down of investments and other non-cashcharges ........................ . — — 2,422
Provision for doubtful accounts .. ... ... (368) 155 928
S1oCk COMPENSAION .. 0o .y i e e i 1,474 28 38
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiary. .. ......... ... ... o, 8 40 69
Gainondisposal of assets. ... ... i e {464) (513) (367
(Gain) loss on fair market value of derivative instruments ., ,................... {4.714) 2,783 94)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable. . ... e e (5.779) (2,253) (5,760)
IOVENEOTIES. o o e e (11,675) (835) 9,569
Other asseis and prepaid expenses. . ....... oo i (10,349) (3,728) (8,767)
Accountspayable. .. ... e 1,172 573 (298)
Income taxes payable ........... ... e (7,031) 9982 - (2,414)
ACCTUEd PEIS DM . ..ottt i e i it e 1,520 1,020 935
Other liabilities ... ... ... e 30,717 23,532 1,137
Net cash provided by operating activities. .. .. ... ... it 37,693 49,722 5,682
Cash flows from investing activities: - .
Purchases of property, plant and equipment .. ............ .o it (7,623) (4,791)  (10,051)
Purchase of short-term investments . ....... e e e e e — (1,276) (5,392)
Redemption of short-term investments . ... ... i iiiieniiiien 46,460 — 11,589
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired ........ . oo i (26,449) (5,605) —
Restricted cash ... .. o i it e (89) {357) {446)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities. . ......... ... ... ... i 12,299 {12,029) (4,300}
Cash flows from financing activities: '
Proceeds from (repayment of) short-term borrowings, net. . ..................., 12,179 (5,366) (8,477)
Repayment of long-termdebt. ........oov i e (6,709} (6,299) (854)
Proceeds from long-termdebt .. ... ... o e 2,583 313 984
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs. .. ............... 1,583 377 14,422
Cash paymentstoshareholders. .. ... .. ... . . it e {74,021) — —
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities . .............0ivieiirnnann, (64,385)  (10,975) 6,075
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash .......... ... .. o il 3,908 (5,506) . 3,251
Net change in cash and cashequivalents .. .......... ..., (10,485) 21,212 10,708
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year. ... ... ... . il 62,632 41,420 30,712
Cash and cash equivalentsatendofyear. .. ...... ... ... ... .. .o L, $ 52,147 § 62,632 $ 41,420
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: :
Cashpaid forinterest . ... .. .. o i i i e et 1,458 1,637 2,531
Cashpaid fortaxes ......o.iiiir i ittt aeenas PR 21,658 2,858 8,305
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Issuance of common stock for Bruker Optics acquisition ... .................... 55,853 — —
Issuance of common stock for otheracquisitions. . ......... ... ..o, 2,610 894 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Bruker BioSciences Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

i+

Note 1—Description of Business

4} “ "

Bruker BioSciences Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiaries (the “Company”, “we,” “us,” or
“our”) design, manufacture, service and market proprietary life science and materials research systems
based on mass spectrometry core technology platforms, X-ray technologies, optical emission spectroscopy
(OES), and infrared and Raman molecular spectroscopy technology. The Company also sells a broad
range of field analytical systems for chemical, biological, radiological and nuclear (CBRN) detection. The
Company maintains major technical and manufacturing centers in Europe, North America and Japan and
sales offices throughout the world. The Company’s diverse customer base includes pharmaceutical,
biotechnology and proteomics companies, academic institutions, advanceéd materials and semiconductor
industries and government agencies.

On July 1, 2006 the Company completed its acquisition of Bruker Optlcs Inc. (“Bruker Optics”). Both
the Company and Bruker Optics were majority owned by five affiliated stockholders prior to the -
acquisition. As a result, the acquisition of Bruker Optics by the Company is considered a business
combination of companies under common control, and has been accounted for in a manner similar to a
pooling-of-interests. Accordingly, the acquisition of Bruker Optics, as it relates to the portion under
common ownership (approximately 96%), was accounted for at historical carrying values at the date of the
acquisition. The portion not under the common ownership of the five affiliated stockholders
(approximately 4%) has been accounted for as a minority interest. The portion not under common control
primarily represented stock options to purchase shares of common stock outstanding at the date of the
acquisition. The excess purchase price of the interest not under common control over the fair value of the
related net assets acquired was accounted for as goodwill and intangible assets. The consolidated balance
sheets, statements of operations, statements of cash flows and notes to the consolidated financial
statements for all periods presented herein have been restated by combining the historical consolidated
financial statements of the Company with those of Bruker Optic's ‘ .

Since the integration of the Bruker Optics acquisition begdn we have been changing the way we
manage our business and consider ourselves as a provider of instrumentation and solutions to life sciences .
and industrial businesses throughout the world. We continue to focus more on addressing the markets we
serve and the needs of our various customers, mcludmg pharmaceutical, biotechnology, advanced and raw
materials companies, and academic and governmental institutions, and léss on selling individual products
and technologies. As a result of this change in the way we manage our business, we may change our
segment reporting in the future. The Company currently reports financial results on the basis of the
followmg three business segments: ‘

1. Bruker Dalionics is a leading developer and provider of life science tools based on mass
spectrometry and also develops and provides a broad range of field analytical systems for CBRN
detection.

2. Bruker AXS is a leading developer and provider of life science and advanced materials research
tools based on X-ray technology tools for advanced X-ray and spark-OES instrumentation used
in non-destructive molecular materials and elemental analysis in academic, research and
industrial applications. '

3. Bruker Optics is a leading developer and provider of research, a_rlaiytical and process analysis
instruments and solutions based on infrared and Raman molecular spectroscopy technologies.

1‘
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Note 2—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all majority and wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less at the date of acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents primarily inchude cash on hand,
money market funds and time deposits. Time deposits represent amounts on deposit in banks and
temporarily. invested in instruments with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase. Certain
of these investments represent deposits which are not insured by the FDIC or any other United States
government agency. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost, which approximates market value.

Restricted Cash

Certain customets require the Company to provide bank guarantees on customer advances. These
amounts are considered restricted cash and are classified as non-current. Generally, the lines of credit
facilitate this requirement. However, to the extent the required guarantee exceeds the available local line
of credit, the Company maintains current restricted cash balances. In addition, the Company is required to
maintain a restricted cash balance as a guarantee for the lessor of the building located in Delft,
Netherlands, throughout the lease term, which has also been classified as non-current. As of December 31,
2006 and 2003, restricted cash balances were approximately $1.1 million and $1.0 million, respectively.

Short-term Investments

The Company accounts for its short-term investments in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. -
The Company’s investments, which are carried at fair value, consist of funds comprised of auction-rated
securities and bond instruments and have been classified as available-for-sale at December 31, 2005. The
basis for the cost of securities sold was determined by the specific identification method. If the market
values of individual securities decrease below cost for a period of six to nine months, the Company deems
this indicative of an other than temporary impairment and writes down the carrying amount of the
investments to market value through other income (expense), net, in the accompanying statement of
operations. As of December 31, 2005, there were no material unrealized gains or losses. The Company had
no short-term investments as of December 31, 2006.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which subject the Company to credit risk consist of cash and cash equivalents,
short-term investments and accounts receivables. The risk with respect to cash and cash equivalents and
short-term investments is minimized by the Company’s policy of investing in short-term financial
instruments issued by highly-rated financial institutions. The risk with respect to accounts receivables is
minimized by the credit-worthiness of the Company’s customers. The Company performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and generaily does not require collateral. Credit losses
have been within management’s expectations and the allowance for doubtful accounts totaled $2.4 million
and $3.8 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004, no sales to or reccwables from any single customer exceeded 10% of the Company ]
revenue or accounts receivable.
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Inventories

|

Components of inventory include raw materials, work-in process, d:emonstration units and finished
goods. Demonstration units include units which are located in the Company’s demonstration laboratories
and at potential customer sites and are considered available for sale. Finished goods include in-transit
systems that have been shipped to the Company’s customers, but not yet installed and accepted by the
customer. All inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, cost determined principally by the first-
in, first-out, (“FIFO”) method for a majority of subsidiaries and by average-cost for a certain international
location. The Company reduces the carrying value of its inventories for differences between the cost and
" estimated net realizable value taking into consideration usage in the precedmg twelve months, expected
demand, technological obsolescence and other information including the physical condition of
demonstration and in-transit inventories. The Company records as a charge to cost of revenue for the
amount required to reduce the carrying value of inventory to net realizable value. Costs associated with the
procurement and warehousing of inventories, such as inbound freight charges and purchasing and
receiving costs, arc also included in the cost of revenue line item within'the statement of operations.
1
\ :

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Major improvements are capitalized while expenditures for maintenance, repairs and minor improvements
are charged to expense, When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the assets and related
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in the
statement of operations. Depreciation and amortization are calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: .

Property, Plant and Equipment

Buildings ... e 25-39 years ‘
Machinery and equipment ...........c.oieiiieae.. .. 3-10 years ‘
Computer equipment and software. . ................ '3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures ... ..........oovvneriniinnn. 3-10years |
Leaschold improvements . ................... ... ... Lesser of 15’ years or the remaining lease term

Depreciation expense associated with property, plant and cquipmept for the years ended -
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was approximatety $12.1 million, $10.0 million and $10.7 million,

respectively. '

Goodwill and Intangible Assets . i
The Company accounts for goodwill and other intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 142,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives not be amortized. Instead, these assets are tested for impairment on a reportable
operating segment basis annually, or on an interim basis when events or; changes in circumstances warrant,
The impairment test consists of a comparison of the fair value of goodwill or an intangible asset with its
carrying amount with any related impairment losses recognized in earnings when incurred. The Company
performs its annual test for indications of impairment as of December 3lst each year. In accordance with
SFAS 142, the Company tested for impairment as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and determmed that
|

goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets were not impaired. ’

Intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortized on a strdlght -line basis over their estlmated
useful lives, with periods ranging from 4 to 10 years.
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Investments in Other Companies

Investment in other companies consists of equity securities of privately held companies accounted for
under the cost method. The Company’s ownership interest in each of these companies is less than 20%.
The Company periodically evaluates the carrying value of these investments for potential impairment. If
the Company’s evatuation identifies an impairment charge is deemed to be other than temporary, the
investment is written down to its estimated fair value through a charge to current earnings. As of
December 31, 2004, the Company has written-off the carrying value of its investments in other companies
based on impairment testing performed. During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company
recorded charges for impairments on investments totaling approximately $2.3 million. No charges were
recorded during the years ended December 31, 2006 or 2005.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Impairment losses are recorded on long-lived assets used in operations when indicators of impairment
are present and the quoted market price, if available, or the estimated undiscounted operating cash flows
generated by those assets are less than the assets’ carrying value. Impairment losses are charged to the
statement of operations for the difference between the fair value and carrying value of the asset. No
impairment losses were recorded on long-lived assets during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004.

Warranty Costs and Deferred Revenue

The Company typically provides a one year parts and labor warranty with the purchase of equipment.
The anticipated cost for this one-year warranty is accrued upon recognition of the sale and is included as a
current liability on the accompanying balance sheets. The Company also offers to its customers extended
warranty and service agreements extending beyond the initial year of warranty for a fee. These fees are
recorded as deferred revenue and amortized ratably into income over the life of the extended warrarity
contract.

Minority Interest in Consolidated Subsidiaries

Mineority interest on the statement of operations of $8,000, $40,00D and $69,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, represents the minority common shareholders’
praoportionate share of the net loss of Incoatec GmbH and Baltic Scientific Instruments.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“SFAS 1097). SFAS 109 requires the asset and liability
approach to account for income taxes by recognizing deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected
future tak consequences of differences between the financial statement basis and the tax basis of assets and
liabilities, calculated using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to
be reflected in the tax return. The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets to
the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

Customer Advances

The Company typically requires an advance deposit under the terms and conditions of contracts with
customers. These deposits are recorded as a liability until revenue is recognized on the specific contract.
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Other Comprehensive Income (Loss).

Other comprehensive income (loss) refers to revenues, expenses, gains and losses that under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America are included in other
comprehensive income (loss), but are excluded from net income (loss) as these amounts are recorded
directly as an adjustment to stockholders’ equity, net of tax. The Company s other comprehensive income
(loss) is primarily composed of foreign currency translation adjustments. ’

- t

Fair Valué'of Frnancial Instruments ' ) :

The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash andl cash equivalents, available-for-sale
securities, accounts receivable, accounts payable, amounts due from/to ;affiliated companies and long-term
debt. The carrying amounts of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, available- for-sale securities,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and amounts due from/to affiliated companies approximate fair
value due to their short-term nature. The fair value of long-term debt i lS estimated based on current
interest rates offered to the Company for financing arrangements with srm:lar maturities. The recorded
value of these financial instruments approximates their fair value at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Derivative Financial Instruments . i
" |

The Company accounts for derivative financial instruments in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, (“SFAS 133™)
as amended. All derivatives, whether designated in-hedging relations orfnot are recorded on the balance
sheet at fair value, If the derivative is designated as a fair value hedge, the changes in the fair value of the
derivative and of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognlzed in the results of
operations. If the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge, the effectlve portions of changes in the fair
value of the derivative are recorded in accumulated other comprehensrve income (“OCI”) and are
recognized in the results of operations when the hedged item affects earnmgs Ineffective portions of
changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges are recognized in the results of operations. For derivative
instruments not designated as hedging instruments, changes in fair value are recognized in the results of
operations in the current period. ‘ i

i
Foreign Currency Translation ‘ |

Assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries, where the functional currency is the local
currency, are translated into U.S. dollars using year-end exchange rates! Revenues and expenses of foreign
subsidiaries are translated at the average exchange rates in effect during the year. Adjustments resulting
from financial statement translations are included as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Gains
and (losses) resulting from foreign currency transactions are reported in the statement of operations under
the caption interest and other income (expense), net, for all periods presented.

P
Revenue Recognition : - i

The Company recognizes revenue from system sales when persuaswe evidence of an arrangement
exists, the price is fixed or determinable, title and risk of loss has been transferred to the customer and
collectibility of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured. Title and l‘lSk of loss is generally transferred
to the customer upon receipt of a signed customer acceptance for a systém that has been shipped, installed,
and for which the customer has been trained. As a result, the timing of customer acceptance or readiness
could cause the Company’s reported revenues to differ materially from expectations. When products are
sold through an independent distributor, a strategic distribution partnerior an unconsolidated affiliated
distributor, which assumes responsibility for installation, the Company recogmzes the system as revenue
when the product has been shlpped and title and risk of loss has been transferred The Company

t
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distributors do not have price protection rights or rights to return; however, our products are warranted to
be free from defect for a period of one year. Revenue is deferred until cash is received when a significant
portion of the fee is due over one year after delivery, installation and acceptance of a system. For
arrangements with multiple elements, the Company recognizes revenue for each element based on the fair
value of the element provided when all other criteria for revenue recognition have been met. The fair value
for each element provided in multiple element arrangements is typically determined by referencing
historical pricing policies when the element is sold separately. Changes in the Company’s ability to
establish the fair value for each element in multiple element arrangements could affect the timing of
revenue recognition.

Revenue from the sale of accessories and parts is recogmzed upon shipment and service revenue is
recognized as the services are performed.

’

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Software Costs

Purchased software is capitalized at cost and is amortized over the estimated useful life, generally
three years. Software developed for use in the Company’s products is expensed as incurred until
technological feasibility is reasonably assured and is classified as research and development expense.
Subsequent to the achievement of technological feasibility, amounts are capitalizable, however, to date
such amounts have not been material.

Advertising

The Company expenses advertisihg costs as incurred. Advertising expenses were $2.7 million,
$2.3 million and $2.7 million during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company records costs incurred in connection with shipping and handling products as cost of
revenue, Amounts billed to customers in connection with these costs are included in revenues and are not
material for any of the periods presented in the accompanying financial statements.

Contingéncies

The Company is subject to proceedings, lawsuits and other claims related to-patents, product and
other matters. The Company assesses the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes to these
matters as well as potential ranges of probable losses. A determination of the amount of reserves required,
if any, for these contingencies are made after careful analysis of each individual issue. The required
reserves may change in the future due to new developments in each situation or changes in settlement
strategy in dealing with these matters.

Stock-Based Compenéatioﬁ

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Fayment, (“SFAS 123R”), using the modified prospective method
whereby prior periods are not restated for comparability. SFAS 123R requires recognition of stock-based
compensation expense in the statement of operations over the vesting period based on the fair value of the
award at the grant date. Previously, the Company used the intrinsic valug method under Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 257), as amended by
-related interpretations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”). Under APB 25, no
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compensation cost was recognized for stock options because the quoted market price of the stock at the
grant date was equal to the amount per share the employee had to pay t(:) acquire the stock after fulfilling
the vesting period. SFAS 123R supersedes APB 25 as well as Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, which permitted pro forma footnote disclosures to
report the difference between the fair value method and the intrinsic value method.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company’s primary types of share-based compensation were stock
options and restricted stock The Company recorded stock-based compensatlon expense for the year ended
December 31,2006 as follows (in thousands):

StOCKk OPHONS ..o e e e $1,090
Restricted stock . .. ...oo i e e 384
Total stock-based compensation, pre-tax ................... e 1,474
Taxbenefit . ... .o e e 387
Total stock-based compensation, netoftax ................. e $1,087

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model. Assumptions regarding volatility, expected term, dividend yield and risk-free interest rate
are required for the Black-Scholes model. Volatility and expected term assumptions are based on the
Company’s historical experience. The risk-free interest rate is based on a U.S. treasury note with a

yield and risk-freg interest rate are presented in the table below:

Risk-free interest rate. . .... e AP . 430%
Expected life. ... ... i : e 5 years

Volatility .. ..o s LI 82.0%
Expected dividend yield ... ........... ... ... ... . ... ..... A 0%

Had compensation expense for the Company’s stock option plans during the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004 been determined based on the fair value at-the grant date, consistent with the
methodology prescribed by SFAS 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensatzon—Transmon and
Disclosure, the Company’s net income (loss) and net income (loss) per common share for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004 would have approximated the following pr0 forma amounts {(in thousands,
except per share data):

- ! 2005 2004
Netincome(loss),asreported............................;. $ 9,747  (3,855)
Deduct: i
Total stock-based compensation expense determined using |
fair value based method for all awards, net of taxes . ..... 1. (4278) (2,609)
Net income (loss), proforma............... ... ... .c.oiiu.,. $ 5469 $(6,464)
Net income (loss) per common share: '
Basic and diluted, as reported......... eiireiiiie i §010 8 (0.04)
Basic and diluted, pro forma...... e ieeeeeaabs 8005 8 (0.06)
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The fair value of each stock option included in the preceding pro forma amounts was estimated usmg
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

_ 2005 2004
Risk-free interestrate...........ooviiiiiiiiinnnnnn.. 4.25%-4.30%  3.63%
Expected lifeof option............... ... i 4-5 years 5 years
Volatility . ... e 40.09%-80.0%  71.5%
Expected dividend yield ................ ... .. .o il 0% 0%

Earnings Per Share

Net income (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted-average shares
outstanding during the period. The diluted net income (loss) per share computation includes the effect of
shares which would be issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock options, reduced by the number of
shares which are assumed to be purchased by the Company from the resulting proceeds at the average
market price during the period.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted average shares outstanding for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Net income (loss), asteported ................ $ 18481 § 9,747 $(3,855)
Weighted average shares outstanding: '
Weighted average shares outstanding—basic. . .. 101,512 100,823 99,797
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stack options and restricted stock ............. 1,049 307 —
Weighted average shares outstanding—diluted. . 102,561 101,130 99,797

Net income (loss) per share—basic and diluted.. $§ 018 § 0.10 $ (0.04)

Stock options to purchase shares of common stock for the year ended December 31, 2004 were anti-
dilutive and were excluded in the computation of diluted earnings per share due to the net loss for this
period. The total anti-diluted shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 were
1,056,000 and 2,624,000, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Note 3—Acquisition of Bruker Optics

On July 1, 2006, the Company completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding stock of Bruker
Optics in accordance with the terms of the stock purchase agreement dated as of April 17, 2006. The
acquisition of Bruker Optics represented a business combination of companies under common control due
to the majority ownership of both companies by five related individuals as an affiliated shareholder group.
As a result, the acquisition, as it related to the shares owned by these affiliated shareholders
(approximately 96%), was accounted for in a manner similar to a pooling-of-interest, or at historical
carrying value. The acquisition of the shares of the non-affiliated shareholders (approximately 4%) was
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting, or at fair value, in a manner similar to the
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acquisition of a minority interest. The excess purchase price of the mterest not under common control over
the fair value of the related net assets was recorded as intangible assets, and goodwill.

Upon completion of the acquisition, the Company paid an aggregate of $135 million of consideration
to the Bruker Optics stockholders and holders of Bruker Optics stock options, of which approximately
$79 million was paid in cash and approximately $56 million was paid in restricted unregistered shares of
Company common stock. The fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the minority
interest was approximately $5.2 million, including cash of $4.8 million and common stock valued at
$0.4 million. The value of the shares of common stock issued to the non -affiliated shareholder in
connection with the merger was determined using a trailing average of t'he closing market prices of the
Company’s stock for a period of ten consecutive trading days ending three days prior to the closing of the
acquisition, which occurred on July 1, 2006. '

The Company engaged a third party valuation firm to assist management in appraising the fair vatue
of certain assets acquired. This valuation has not been completed as of December 31, 2006 and all
information presented below is subject to change upon completion of tlée third party valuation in the first
quarter of 2007. The following table summarizes the cstimated fair values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the date of acquisition of the minority interest (in thousands):

LT E g 1 1| BT =1 T $ 42,387

Property, plant and equipment ........... ... . i 13,174
Intangible assets. . ................ B RRRRRTDUIE SURTUT 53,922
(0 T = ST S 72
TOAl ASSEIS . . .« . v et eee ettt b 109,555
Current liabilities. . .. .. .ovvrviree i 34,488
Long-tcrmclebt...-......................................: ......... 3,463
Other Habillties . ...ttt e e et e et e 2,074
Total liabilities assumed. ... ...........................] T 40,025
Netassets ....... e e e T 69,530
Minority interest percentage . . ..:......oieiiiiianian. e 4.1%
Netas;etsacquired......................................T ......... 2,850
Goodwill ... e e 2,292
Total purchase price ... ... ..ovvr i vnninn.ns P D $ 5,142

The purchase price for the 4.1% minority interest acquired was allocated to the net assets acquired on
a pro rata basis in accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinan'oﬁs Accordingly, estimated
acquisition related intangibles total $2.1 million and are being amortized over four years. In addition,
approximately $2.7 million of acquired intangible assets were assigned to in-process research and
development projects of which the 4.1% minority interest, or appronmately $0.1 million, was written off at
the date of acquisition in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 4 Apphcabdny of FASB Statement
No. 2 to Business Combinations Accounted for by the Purchase Method. The projects that were estimated to
qualify as acquired in-process research and development projects were those that had not yet reached
technology feasibility and for which no future alternative uses existed. The value assigned to the in-process
research and development projects was determined using-estimates based on historical acqumuons since

the third party valuation was not complete as of December 31, 2006. ‘

The $2.3 million of goodwill acquired from Bruker Optics in connection with the acquisition was
assigned to the Company’s Bruker Optics subsidiary, currently a reportable operating segment, and will not
be deductible for tax purposes since the acquisition was a tax-free acquisition.
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The incremental effect, which represents the total contribution from Bruker Optics, of the change in
reporting entity for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 is as follows (in thousands, except per

share data):

’ 2005 2004
REVeIUE .. e e e e $78,701 $74,151
Income before income tax provision and minority interest in :
consolidated subsidiaries . .......... ... ... . .. 0,044 6,652
Nt IMCOMIE . oottt it et v ee e e e oot eaeaaaenns 6,251 3,976
Net income per share—basicand diluted .. ................... $ 006 § 0.04

Note 4—Other Acquisitions

On September 6, 2006, the Company acquired all of the capital stock of Quantron GmbH, a spark-
OES company based in Kieve, Germany (“Quantron”). In accordance with the stock purchase agreement,
at the closing, the Company paid an aggregate of approximately $6.5 million of consideration to the
Sellers, of which approximately $5.2 million was paid in cash and approximately $1.3 million was paid in
the issuance of an aggregate of 202,223 restricted unregistered shares of the Company’s common stock, par
value $0.01 per share, to Quantron’s two largest shareholders. Pursuant to the carn-out provisions of the
stock purchase agreement, up to an aggregate of $4.9 million of additional cash consideration may be paid
through 2009 based on future performance of Quantron, which will be treated as additional purchase
price. The results of Quantron have been included in the Bruker AXS segment from the date of
acquisition. -

On July 18, 2006, the Company acquired all of the capital stock of KeyMaster Technologies, Inc.
(“KeyMaster”), a Delaware corporation located in Kennewick, Washington. The aggregate purchase price
for KeyMaster was $10.0 million and was funded by incurring additional debt. The results of KeyMaster
have been included in the Bruker AXS segment from the date of acquisition.

On January 17, 2006, the Company acquired Socabim SAS, a privately-held company focused on
advanced X-ray analysis software for materials research based in Paris, France. The initial aggregate
purchase price of approximately $8.6 million was paid through the issuance of 267,302 restricted shares of
common stock of the Company to Socabim’s two largest shareholders, which had an aggregate value of
approximately $1.3 million as of the date of issuance, and an aggregate of $7.3 million was paid to all of the

. Socabim selling sharcholders from cash on hand. Additional cash consideration, in the amount of

approximately $1.5 million in total, may be paid through 2009 based on the future performance of
Socabim, which will be accounted for as additional purchase price. Prior to the acquisition, the Company
licensed from Socabim software that is used in various Bruker AXS systems. Bruker AXS was Socabim’s
principal customer before the acquisition which required the Company to evaluate the preexisting
relationship with Socabim in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force No. 04-1, Accounting for
Preexisting Relationships between the Farties to a Business Combination. EITF 04-1 requires an analysis to be
performed to determine whether there has been an effective settlement of a preexisting executory contract
that was either favorable or unfavorable to the acquirer. To the extent there was an executory contract that
was either favorable or unfavorable to the acquirer, a gain or loss is recognized. Management determined
there was no settlement of a preexisting executory contract in the acquisition of Socabim and, accordingly,
no gain or loss was recognized. The results of Socabim have been included in the Bruker AXS segment
from the date of acquisition.

The $19.5 million of goodwill acquired from Quantron, Key Master and Socabim in 2006 was assigned
to each individual subsidiary within Bruker AXS, which is currently a reportable operating segment.
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In November 2005, the Company acquired Roentec AG (“Roente(il”), an X-ray microanalysis
instrumentation company based in Berlin, Germany. The aggregate initial purchase price of $4.4 million
was funded with $0.9 million of restricted stock of the Company, and the reminder with cash on hand.
Additional consideration, in the amount of approximately $2.0 million, may be paid in the future based on
future revenue performance of Roentec. If these payments are required, they will be comprised of either,
at the option of the Company, 50% restricted stock of the Company and 50% cash, or 100% cash. The
allocation of the purchase price for Roentec has been made based upon management estimates and third
party review of such estimates. The results of Roentec have been included in the Bruker AXS segment
from the date of acquisition. ‘ '

In November 2005, the Company acquired the X-ray microanalysis-'business of Princeton Gamma-
Tech Instruments, Inc. (“PGT”), a company located in Rocky Hill, NewiJersey. The aggregate purchase
price for PGT was $2.0 million and was funded with cash on hand. The results of PGT have been included
in the Bruker AXS segment from the date of acquisition. |

|
Pro forma information to reflect the Quantron, KeyMaster, Socabim, Roentec and PGT acquisitions
has not been presented as the impact on revenues and net income and net income per common share
would not have been material. - |
. {

Note 5—Accounts Receivable

The following is a summary of trade accounts receivable at Decemb;er 31, (in thousands);

{ 2006 2005
Gross accounts receivable .. ... ... . oo L. $82,014 $71,723
Allowance for doubtful accounts ......_................... L. (2,410)  (3,810)
Accounts receivable, net ... . i i I - $79604 $67913
Note 6—Inventories T
Inventories consisted of the following as of December 31, (in thousands):
i 2006 2005
-Raw materials. . . . . .. e e ! 45,361 §$ 34,916
Work-in process. ..ot X 42,269 33,367
Demonstration Units . . ... vvui i 14,678 18,450
Finished goods....... J | 32,196 30,922

Total inventories

$134,504 $117,655

f
i
"

Demonstration units include systems located in the Company’s demonstration laboratories and at
potential customer sites and are considered available for sale. Finished goods include in-transit systems
that have been shipped to the Company’s customers but not yet installed and accepted by the customer. As
of December 31, 2006 and 2003, inventory-in-transit was $24.1 and $25.2 'Imillion, respectively.

!
|
|
!
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Note 7—Property, Plant and Equipment

The following is a summary of property, plant and équipment ijy major class of asset as of ‘
December 31, (in thousands):

2006 2005
Land. .. ..o e SR ... $ 10437 § 9,529
Building and leasehold improvements...................... 88,530 80,554
* Machinery and equipment............... ... or e 72,967 60,617
171,934 150,700
. Less accumulated depreciation.............. A . (81,585)  (65,387)
Property, plant and equipment,net ........................ $ 90,349 § 85,313

Note 8—Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The following is a summary of other intangible assets subject to amortization as of December 31, (in
thousands): : :

2006 2005

Useful Gross Net Gross Net |

Lives Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying

in Years _Amount  Amortization _Amount Amount  Amortization _Amount
‘ Existing technology and related '

patents . ...l 4-5  $6,172  $(1,916) $4256 $2,095 § (950) $1,145
‘ Customer relationships........ 5 1,108 (288) 820 310 (156) 154
Trade names................. 5-10 718 (215) 503 310 (76) 234
Total amortizable intangible ' . '
ASSLIS ..ot 0 $7,998 $(2419) $5579 $2,715  $(1,182) $1,533

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded amortization expense
of approximately $1.2 million, $0.5 million and $0.5 million, respectively, reldted to other amortizable
intangible assets.

The estimated future amortization expense related to other amortizable intangible assets is as follows
{(in thousands):

For the year ending December 31, ) : (in thousands}

2007 L e $1,483
2008 o e e e 1,260
2000 . e e 1,231
2000 ...l s P, 1,095
2011 and thereafter......... AP e, 510

The carrying amount of goodwill as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $36.2 million and
$17.5 million, respectively. The Company performs its annual test for indications of impairment as of
December 31st each year. The Company completed its annual test for impairment as of December 31,

|
‘ Total........ SUTTTOTRRRR PR PP URON $5,579
2006 and 2005 and determined that goodwill was not impaired at that time,
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Note 9—Other Current Liabilities

The following is a summary of accrued and other current liabilities ajs of December 31 (in thousands):

; 2006 2005
Accrued compensation............. e Lo $24,449  $17,832
Deferred revenue . .. .. e et e L T .. 16,661 10,396
Accrued Warranty . ..........o.iiiiiiiia i . 13,274 9,326
Current portion of deferred tax liability ..................... L 12,563 6,998
Income taxes payable .......... . = 7,010 12,079
Accrued professional services ...... ... o i i iie e 4,213 3,363
Accrued VAT and sales and US€ taXeS. ... ..vuvnerenrnennnn.. L 4199 7 2,611
Fair value liability of derivative instruments. ................. s — 2,988
Accrued eXpenses . ... ... L. 12,438 © 11,141
Total other current Liabilities. . ... .o et erents ] $94,807 $76,734

The Company typically provides a one-year parts and labor warranty{ with the purchase of equipment.
The anticipated cost for this one-year warranty is accrued upon recognition of the sale and is included as a
current liability on the balance sheet. The Company also offers to its customers warranty and service
agreements extending beyond the initial year of warranty for a fee. These fees are recorded as deferred
revenue and amortized into income over the life of the extended warranty contract.

Warranty accrual at December 31,2004 . .................... PR : $ 10,657
Accruals for warranties issued during the period. . ............ e 10,969
Settlements of warrantyclaims ... ..................0.oe.... heeieenens (11,498)
Foreign currency impact. ... ...t ienranienass : ......... ' (802)
Warranty accrual at December 31,2005 . .................... (T 9,326
Accruals for warrantics issued during the period.............. b, 12,145
Settlements of warrantyclaims ....c...... ... .. ... . PO - (9,019)
FOreign Currency impact. . .....o.c...uuuuneeueunsnnsinennnn, 822
Warranty accrual at December 31,2006 . .................... ’ ......... $ 13,274
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Note 10—Debt

The Company’s debt obligations consist of the following as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in

thousands):

2006

2005

Two Euro bank loans at fixed rate of 4.65%, collateralized by land and buildings of
Bruker Daltonik GmbH, monthly interest payments, due and payable through ‘
2008 L e P < $10,115

Euro bank loan at fixed rate of 3.05%, collateralized by land and buildings of
Bruker Daltonik GmbH, monthly interest payments, due and payable through

2008 ..\ evt e e TP 4,616

Euro bank loan at fixed rate of 2.95%, collateralized by land and buildings of
Bruker Daltonik GmbH, monthly principal and interest payments due and
payable through 2008 ... ... 2,282

Japanese Yen bank loan at fixed rate of 1.19%, uncollateralized, quarterly principal
and interest payments due and payable through June 2006.................... —

Euro mortgage loan at 6-month European Interbank Offered Rate (EURIBOR)
(3.85% at December 31, 2006) plus.1.00%, collateralized by a building located in
Karlsruhe, Germany, biannual principal and interest payments due and payable
through October 2012, .. .o i i et 3,033

Euro mortgage loan at 6-month European Interbank Offered Rate (EURIBOR)
(3.85% at December 31, 2006) plus 0.75%, collateralized by a building located in
Ettlingen, Germany, biannual principal and interest payments due and payable
through October 2011 . ... .. e e 422

State of Wisconsin industrial revenue bonds at variable interest rate based on the
Securities Industry and Financial Markets Municipal SWAP Index (3.91% at
December 31, 2006), collateralized by an irrevocable letter of credit, annual
principal payments and monthly interest payments, due and payable through
December 2003, i e e e e 1,660

Japanese Yen bank loan at a fixed rate of 1.7%, uncollateralized, quarterly principal
and interest payments due and payable through2009.................. ... 629

Japanese Yen bank loan at a fixed rate of 2.03%, uncollateralized, quarterly
principal and interest payments due and payable through 2011 ................ 2,268

Two Euro bank loans at fixed rate of 4.65% and 8.01%, respectively, collateralized |
by certain Bruker AXS accounts receivables, biannual principal payments and
quarterly interest payments, due and payable through March 2013 .7........... 299

$ 9.353

4,145

2,647

287

3,067

4,784

1,850

8493

285

Total long-termdebt ... ... . . e 25,324
Less: current portion of long-termdebt..... ... .ol (2,461)

27,311
(2,241)

Total long-term debt, less current portion. ...........ooviiiiiiineiee.a.. $22,863

$25,070
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2007 .+ e $ 2,461
2008 .o\t TP 16,912
2000 . . e et TP 2,065
D000 . e e e U 1,567
213} RS 1,092
Theteafter. . ..ottt et e et b, 1,227
1 I U .$25.324

The State of Wisconsin industrial revenue bonds (IRB) were entered into in 1999 in connection with
the construction of Bruker AXS’ building in Madison, Wisconsin. Bruker AXS has an interest rate swap
associated with the IRB which is not designated as a hedge. Bruker AXS pays a 4.60% fixed rate of interest
and reccives a variable rate of interest based on the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Municipal
Swap Index. The contract has a $1.7 million notional value which decreases in conjunction with the IRB
payment schedule until the swap and IRB agreements terminate in December 2013. The fair value of the
swap, obtained from dealer quotes, resulted in a loss of $0.1 million during each of the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005. Interest payments receivable and payable under the terms of the swap are
accrued over the period and are treated as an adjustment to interest expense. The letter of credit is
renewable upon mutual agreement of Bruker AXS and the financial institution. If the letter of credit is not
renewed and Bruker AXS is unable to obtain a similar letter of credit with another financial institution, the
IRB may be cailable at the option of the bond trustee. The Company’s outstanding letter of credit expires
in December 2008 and is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of Bruker AXS, The letter of credit
contains various financial and other covenants. As of December 31, 2006, the latest measurement date, the
Company was not in compliance with the required debt service coverage ratio associated with the IRB. On
January 30, 2007, the Company received from the holder of the debt a limited waiver for the quarterly
measurement period ending December 31, 2006 . '

The Company maintains lines of credit at financial institutions in the United States, Germany, Japan
and France with an aggregate maximum credit amount of approximately $75.3 million and $42.7 million at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had
outstanding borrowings of approximatety $19.4 million and $7. 3 million, respectively, and availability
taking into consideration outstanding letters of credit of approximately $46.8 million and $25.2 million,
respectively. For the line of credit in the United States, the Company 1ssued a demand promissory note to
Citizens Bank for $40 million in July 2006. The note bears interest at the bank’s prime rate, LIBOR plus
1%, or a LIBOR advantage rate plus 1% at the request of the Company. All of the Company’s obligations
under the line of credit are secured by the pledge to the bank of 100% of the capital stock of each of the
Company’s wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries, each of which also pledged a portion of the stock of
certain of their foreign subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2006, $29.0 mllllon of the United States line of
credit was available. For the lines of credit in Germany, which are unsecured interest is paid monthly on
outstanding borrowings based on the banks’ variable interest rates, which were between 6.50%-9.25% at
December 31, 2006. For the lines of credit in Japan, the interest rates were between 1.37% and 1.48% at
December 31, 2006, and these lines of credit have no maturity date and are uncollateralized. For the line of
credit in France, which is unsecured, interest is paid monthly on outstanding borrowings based on the
floating rate used by French institutions (TMM) of TMM plus 0.75%, wh:ch was 4.32% at December 31,
2006.

Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $2.2 million, $2.1 million
and $2.8 million, respectively. : .

i

".
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Note 11—Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities \

The Company is party to interest and cross currency rate swaps in order to minimize the volatility that
changes in interest and foreign currency rates might have on earnings and cash flows. The Company has
also entered into foreign exchange rate contracts in order to minimize the volatility that fluctuations in
currency exchange rates will have on the Company’s cash flows related to purchases and sales denominated
in foreign currencies.

The Company has an interest rate swap arrangement to pay a 4.60% fixed rate of interest and receive
a variable rate of interest based on the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Municipal Swap Index on
a $1.7 million notional amount. This contract was considered to be an effective hedge against changes in
the amount of future cash flows associated with the Company’s interest payments related to its variable
rate debt obligations until December 31, 2002 and, accordingly, changes in the fair value of this contract
were deferred in sharcholders’ equity as a component of comprehensive income (loss). Effective January |1,
2003, the Company determined that this interest rate swap was no longer effective (as defined by SFAS
No. 133) in offsetting the change in interest cash flows being hedged and, accordingly, the changes in the
swap’s fair value are being recorded in current earnings in interest and other income (expense) in the
consolidated statements of operations. The amount to be recognized in earnings within the next twelve
months is not expected to be significant. The fair value of the instrument was a liability of $(0.1) million as
of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the fair value was obtained from dealer quotes.

In 2002, the Company entered into a cross currency interest rate swap with a notional value of EURO
5.0 million. Under this agreement, the Company receives semiannual interest payments in EUROs based
on a variable interest rate equal to the six-month EURIBOR rate in exchange for semiannual payments in
Swiss francs at a fixed rate of 4.97%. The instrument is considered a speculative derivative financial
instrument, and as such, does not qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133. Accordingly, the
instrument is marked-to-market with the corresponding gains and losses recorded in other income
(expense) in the current period. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the cross currency interest rate swap
had a favorable fair value of $0.2 million and an unfavorable fair value of $0.3 million, respectively. In
2002, the Company also entered into an mterest rate swap, which is currently not designated as a hedge.
The interest rate swap of 3.0 million Euros reduces the 6-month EURIBOR rate by 1.80% per annum-until
January 4, 2007. The Company entered into the financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest
rates and foreign exchange risk. Fluctuations in the fair value of these instruments are recorded in interest
and other income (expense), net.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had option and forward currency exchange contracts, both
having maturities of less than 12 months, with notional amounts aggregating $14.4 million. The contracts
involved the purchase of EURQO currency at fixed U.S. dollar amounts. The notional amounts of the
contracts are intended to hedge receivables in U.S. dollars. These transactions do not qualify for hedge
accounting under SFAS No. 133. Accordingly, the instruments are marked-to-market with the
corresponding gains and losses recorded in other expense in the current period. At the end of each
reporting period, the Company obtains third-party verification as to the fair value of these instruments. As
of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the currency exchange contracts had a favorable fair value of $1.4 million’
and an unfavorable fair value of $(2.7) million, respectively. The instruments’ fair market values are
recorded net of each other in the accompanying balance sheets. The favorable net value of $1.0 million is
recorded in other current assets as of December 31, 2006. The unfavorable net value of $3.0 million is
recorded in other current liabilities as of December 31, 2005. In connection with these instruments, the
Company recorded a net gain of $4.1 mitlion and a net loss of $(2.8) million during 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The net gain and loss were recorded in other income (expense), net.

The notional amount of the financial instruments not designated as hedges was approximately
$26.7 million and $34.5 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Financial instruments not
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designated as hedges are considered speculative and fluctuations in the fair value of the instruments are
recorded in interest and other income (expense), net. The fair value of the instruments appreciated
(depreciated) $4.7 million, ($2.7) million and $0.1 million during the yedrs ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. The aggregate fair value of speculative derivative instruments was an asset of

$1.1 million and a liability of $(3.0) million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Note 12—Income Taxes

The domestic and foreign components of income (loss) before income taxes are as follows for the
years ended December 31 (m thousands):

{ __2006 2005 2004
DOMESHC . - e e et ettt e e e b $(5,712) $(5,850) $(10,949)
O, et e e 40,132 27,492 12,696

: $34.420 $21,642 § 1,747

The components of the income tax provision (benefit) are as follows for the years ended December 31
(in thousands}:

. 2006 2005 2004
Current income tax expense: ' _
FeAeral. ..ottt et e e e e -~ % (656) § 130 § 34
) = PP 350 81 71
FOreign. ..o iei e e . 14,825 12,959 4,510
Total current incOmME (AX EXPENSE . [ ..t vvtvrenreiiriaraineaennss 14,519 13,170 4,615
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense
Federal, .. ..o e e . 83 (316) 16
State........... e e e W 14 (93) 5
Foreign.... ... ... ... . . i e : 1,315 (906) 897
Total deferred. ............ 0o PP 1,412 (1,315) 018

InCome tax Provision ... .. ..oveeer i aierennannns tieeveereeaaooot 815931 $11,855  $5,533

A reconciliation of the United States federal statutory tax rate to the effcctlve income tax rate is as
follows for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004

] E T AT10) 3 G 723 =S (P 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
(T s T 1 AN e — = -
Foreign subsidiary dividends ... P 1.8 3.6 —
State income taxes, net of federal benefit . ............ccoiveveeaeeen... N 0.6 (0.3) 2.9
Research and developmentcredits. ...t e 45y (3.9 (16.0)
Foreign tax rate differential .. .......... ... oo L. 103 6.2 8.6
Tax COMLINEENCY - o vt ee ettt et et et e et e aaaa e iaaiarianannas e — 05 (244
Permanent differences .......... A S O 09 (0.3) 8.6
L2131 R (0.1 0.6 0.4
Effective tax rate before valuation allowance ............ oo it 43.0 404 141
Change in valuation allowance for unbeneflted losses ....vuvieiia i 33 144 3026
Effective taxrate ........ .. . o SN 46.3% 54.8% 316.7%
[
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The tax effects of temporary items that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and

liabilities are as follows as of December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets: : _
Accountsreceivable . ... $§ 277 § 459
Investment write-down. . ....... ...t iiin s, 5,300 5,300
Inventory. . ... 5,802 6,232
COmMPEnSAtioN ... ..o.utiiittt e et ianeareneanenens 2,002 1,078
Intangible @assets . ......... .ot 1,467 1,525
WATTANLY TESEIVE . . oo i ettt e ee e aieeaaee e 1,135 907
R & D and other tax credit carryforwards ................ 13,511 3,512
Net operating loss carryforwards . ....................... 4,611 12,843
Accrued eXpenses . .. ... ... . 117 258
Other . . e 1,907 1,978
Grossdeferredtaxassets . .............................. 36,129 34,092
Less valuationallowance ......................oeiu.. (28,095) (25,662)
Total deferred tax assets ..........c.ooiiimninnnnn... 8,034 8,430
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fareign statutory 1eserves .......vveie ot ieieannn.. (12,304  (10,537)
Excess tax over book depreciation....................... (3,234) (3,231)
Purchase accounting intangibles. ........................ (450) (450)
Other. ... e (1,763) (1,258)
. Total deferred tax liabilities .......................... (17,751)  (15476)
Net deferred tax liability. .. ................ s $ (9,717) $§ (7,046)

The valuation allowance was determined in accordance with the provision of SFAS No, 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes, which requires an assessment of both positive and negative evidence when
determining whether it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets are recoverable. Such assessment is
required on a jurisdiction-by-jurisdiction basis. The Company fully reserved all U.S. net deferred tax assets,
which are predominantly net operating losses and tax credit carryforwards. Cumulative losses incurred in
the U.S. jurisdiction as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, represented sufficient negative evidence to record
a valuation allowance under SFAS 109. The Company intends to maintain a full valuation allowance until
sufficient positive evidence exists to support the reversal of the valuation allowance.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company has approximately $10.9 million of U.S. net operating loss
carry-forward available to reduce future taxable income; which expire at various times through the year
2025. The Company also has tax credits of approximately $13.5 million available to offset future tax
liabilities that expire at various dates. These credits include foreign tax credits of $9.9 million expiring in
year 2016; research & development tax credits of $3.1 million expiring through 2025; and an alternative
minimum tax credit of .5 million with no expiration. These operating losses and tax credit carry-forwards
may be subject to limitations under provisions of the Internal Revenue Code.

The Company has permanently reinvested the earnings of its subsidiaries in the cumulative amount of
approximately $72 million as of December 31, 2006, and therefore has not provided for U.S. income taxes
that could result from the distribution of such earnings to the U.S. parent. If these earnings were ultimately
distributed to the U.S. in the form of dividends or otherwise, or if the shares of the subsidiaries were sold
or transferred, the Company would likely be subject to additional U.S. income taxes, net of the impact of

_any available foreign tax credits. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of unrecognized deferred U.S.
income taxes on these undistributed earnings.

92




On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act (AJCA) was 51gned into law and includes a
deduction of 85% of certain foreign earnings that are repatriated, as defmcd in the AJCA. Bruker Optics
repatriated approximately $1.2 million in 2005 and $0.6 million in 2004 and recognized a related tax
expense of $0.1 million in 2005. I

The Company acquired $1.4 million of net operatmg losses with its acqulsmon of Roentec in 2005. A
full valuation aillowance was provided for in the purchase price allocation as the utilization of the net
operating loss could not be assured. If this tax benefit is subsequently realized, it will be recorded as an
adjustment to goodwill. !

. L]
Note 13—Employee Benefit Plans 1‘

The Company maintains or sponsors various defined contribution plans and a defined benefit
retirement plan that cover certain domestic and international employees. The Company may make
contributions to these plans at its discretion. Retirement benefits earned are generaily based on years of
service and compensation during active employment. Eligibility is generally determined in accordance with
local statutory requirements. However, the level of benefits and terms of vesting may vary among plans.
The Company contributed approximately $1.6 million, $1.3 million and $l 3 million to such plans in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. :

Substantially all of the Bruker AXS GmbH employees, who were employed by the Company on
September 30, 1997, participate in a defined benefit pension plan. The plan provides pension benefits
based upon average salary and years of service. The Company has electe’d to recognize the impact on the
projected benefit obligation when actual experience differs from actuanal assumptions on an immediate
basis. The Company recogmzed actuarial losses (gains) of dpprommately $3,000 during the year ended
December 31, 2004 and no gains or losses were recognized during the years ended December 31, 2005 and

2006. | . ,

The changes in benefit obligations and plan assets under the defmed benefit pension plans,
accumulated benefit obligations and funded status of the plan were as follows at December 31 (in

thousands):

2006 2005

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginningof year ...................... § 8689 § 8,082

Servicecost. ...t e i 686 820
Interest COSt . ... ovvr i e PR 381 381
T Benefits PAIQ. .. ...t 3 (116) (29)
Actuarial loss (gain) ........... ... ... il P o 370 330
Currency translation adjustment and Other................ ;e 1,106 (895)
Benefit abligation atend ofyear. . ............... ... L ' . 11,116 8,689
Change in plan assets ‘
Fair value of plan asscts at beginning of year............... . — —
Employer contribution. . .......... ... o e L. 116 29
Benefits paid. .. ... s i (116) (29)
v Fairvalue of plan assetsatendofyear .................... . — —
Funded status:................ooo.n.. e . (11,116)  (8,689)
Hi Accumulated benefit obligation .. ... ... S . $(10,926) $(8,518)
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the projected benefit obligations for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Discountrate .........coiiiiiiti i 450% 4.25% 5.00%
Expected return on assets ......... S 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Rate of compensation increase.......................... 250% 250% 3.00%

The net periodic pension benefit cost includes the following components for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004

Components of net periodic benefit cost

Servicecost................ R $ 686 $632 $626
Interestcost .........ooviuvininn, e 381 381 351
Recognized actuarial loss (gain).......... e —_ —_ 3
AMmOrtization ... ... i e e (15 (15 (15
Net periodic benefitcost .. ......oovvivniriariinninann... $1,052 $998 $965

To date, the Company has not funded the plan and is not re(juired to make contributions during 2007.
The Company expects to pay the following in benefits under the plan (in thousands):

200 . e e e e § 140
0 250
2000 . e e e e 386
7.0 L 591
1 A 588
Thereafter. . ... ... i e §,161
0 - $11,116

Note 14—Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases

Certain vehicles, office equipment and buildings are leased under agreements that are accounted for
as operating leases. Total rental expense under operating leases was $3.2 million, $2.6 million and
$2.5 miilion during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Future minimum
lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases at December 31, 2006 for each of the next five years
and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

2 $ 3,614
2 0 3,147
2000 L e e 2,793
7 1) L 2,374
2§ 2,441
B 11153 {711 £ SN 290
Total minimum lease payments .......outerieiinir i rreineiennannans $14,659
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License Agreements ]

The Company has entered into hcense agreements allowing it to utlllze certain patents. If these
patents are used in connection with a commercial product sale, the Company pays royalties ranging from
0.15% to 5.00% on the related product revenues. Licensing fees for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004 were approximately $1.6 million, $1.0 million and $0.9 million, respectively.

- ‘ f
Grants , C . ‘ |

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Bruker Daltonik GmbH, is the recipient of grants from
German government authorities. The grants were made in connection wrth the Company’s development of
specific spectrometers and components of spectrometers. Total grants awarded to date amount to
$10.1 million and the agreements under which these grants were awarded expire through 2008. Amounts -
received under these grants during 2006, 2005 and 2004 totaled $0.7 million, $2.0 million and $1.8 million,
respectively, and are classified in other revenue. Total expenditures related to these grants were
approximately $2.1 million, $3.9 million and $4.0 mrlhon in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respecuvely

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Brukcr Daltonics, is the recrplent of a grant from an agency
of the United States government. The grant was made in direct connectlon with the Company’s
development of a standalone monitor for chemical agents. Total grants a:warded to date amount to
$0.9 million, of which $0.4 million was awarded in 2006 and $0.5 million in 2005, and the agreement under
which this grant was awarded was completed in 2006. Total expendllures related to thls grant approximate-
grant revenues received. :

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Bruker Optik GmbH, is the recipient of certain grants from
the German government. The grants were made in connection with the Gompany’s development of specific
advanced vibrational spectroscopy equipment. Total awards granted to date total $1.5 million. Amounts
received under these grants during 2006, 2005 and 2004 totaled $0.1 million, $0.3 million and $0.1 million,
respectively; and are classified in other revenue. Total expenditures related to these grants approximated
the grant revenues received. i
!

Legal . X

Lawsuits, claims and proceedings of a nature considered normal to its businesses may be pending from
time to time against the Company. The Company believes the outcome of these proceedings, if any, will
not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations. As of
Décember 31, 2006 and 2005, no accruals have been recorded for such p::)tential contingencies.

Letters of Credit and Guarantees . | o

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had bank guarantees of $9.1 million and $10.2 million,.

respectively, for its customer advances. These guarantees affect the avallablllty of its lines of credit.

. }
Indemnifications ] . }

The Company enters into standard indemnification arrangements in the Company’s ordinary course
of business. Pursuant to these arrangements, the Company indemnifies, holds harmless, and agrees to
reimburse the indemnified parties for losses suffered or incurred by the indemnified party, generally our
business partners or customers, in connection with any patent, or any copynght or other intellectual
property |nfr1ngement claim by any third party with respect to our products. The term of these
indemnification agreements is generally perpetual anytime after the exerzutron of the agreement. The
maximum potentlal amount of future payments the Company could be requ1red to make under these
agreements is unlimited. The Company has never incurred costs to defend lawsuits or settle claims related

|
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to these indemnification agreements. As a result, the Company bellevcs the estimated fair value of these
agreements is minimal.

“The Company has entered into indemnification agreements with its directors and officers that may
require the Company to: indemnify its directors and officers against liabilities that may arise by reason of .
their status or service as directors or officers, other than liabilities arising from willful misconduct of a
culpable nature; advance their expenses incurred as a result of any proceeding against them as to which
they could be indemnified; and obtain directors’ and officers’ insurance if available on reasonable terms,
which the Company currently has in place.

Note lS;ShafehoIders’ Equity.
Public Offerings of Common Stock

1.

In April 2004, the Company and a group of selling stockholders completed a public offering of
17,250,000 shares of its common stock, of which 2,992,800 were sold by the Company and 13,800,000 were
sold by four selling stockholders, at $4.50 per share, generating net procceds of approximately
$14.4 million to the Company and approximately $58.2 million to the selling stockholders, in the aggregate.

Issuance of Restricted Stock .

In September 2006, the Company issued 202,223 shares of restricted stock in connection with the
acquisition of Quantron. The restrictions are time based and will expire ratably as the shares vest over a
period of three years.

In January 2006, the Company issued 267,302 shares of restricted stock in connection with the
acquisition of Socabim SAS. The restrictions are tlme based and will expire ratably as the shares vest over a
period of three years. :

In November 2005, the Company issued 209,271 shares of restricted stock in connection with the
acquisition of Roentec AG. The restrictions are time based and will expire ratably as the shares vest over a
period of three years. '

Restricted shares of the Company’s common stock are periodically awarded to executive officers,
directors and certain key employees of the Company under the Company’s Amended and Restated 2000
Stock Option Plan. See the section “Stock Plans” for information about restricted stock awarded durmg
the year ended December 31, 2006. )

Blank Check Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2006, 5,000,000 shares of Blank Check Preferred Stock with a stated par value of
$0.01 per share have been authorized, none of which have been issued.

Redeemable Preferred Stock

In 2001, the former Bruker AXS Inc. authorized and sold 5,625,000 shares of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value per share, at a price of $4.00 per share (“Series A Preferred™). Gross
proceeds which totaled $22.5 million were used to pay down related party debt and third party lines of
credit in full.

Upon élosing of the former Bruker AXS Inc.’s initial public offering in December 2001, all the
Series A Preferred was converted into common stock and an additional 1,298,077 shares were issued due
to a beneficial conversion feature resulting in total conversion shares of 6,923,077
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In addition, in connection with the completion of the former Bruke;r AXS Incs initial public offering,
the preferred shareholders were entitled to certain rights with respect to registration of their 6,923,077
shares of common stock. Under the terms of these rights, if the Company proposes to register any of its
securities under the Securities Act, either for the Company’s own account or for the account of other
security holders exercising registration rights, the holders of the 6,923,077 common shares are entitled to
notice of the registration and to include their shares of common stock in the registration at the Company’s
expense. Addltlonally, the holders of these shares are entitled to demand registration rights pursuant to
which they may require the Company to file a registration statement under the Securities Act at the
Company’s expense with respect to their shares of common stock. Furthier, the holders of these shares may
require the Company to file additional registration statements on Form 'S-3 at the Company’s expense. All
of these registration rights are subject 1o the right of the underwriters of an offering to limit the number of
shares included in such registration. These registration rights terminate five years after the'closing of the
initial public offering. In connection with the 2004 public offering, no registered rights were exercised.
Accordingly, as of December 31, 2006, all registration rights for the 6,923,077 shares had terminated
without being exercised. ' [

|
Stock Repurchase Programs :

In August 2002, the Board of Directors of the former Bruker Daltomcs Inc. approved a stock *
repurchase program authorizing the repurchase of up to 1,000,000 shares of its common stock. Such
purchases may be made from time to time in the open market, through prlvately negotiated transactions or
through block purchases. Pursuant to this program, in 2002, the Company repurchased 457,200 shares of
its common stock at an average price of $5.10 per share. In April 2004, these shares were sold as part of the
public offering of the Company’s common stock. |

Dividends g :

The terms of some of the Company’s indebtedness restrict its ablllty to pay dividends to its
shareholders. i

Stock Plans f

In 2000, the Board of Directors adopted and the stockholders applroved the 2000 Stock Option Plan.
The 2000 Stock Option Plan provides for the issuance of up to 2,200,000 shares of common stock in
connection with awards under the Plan. The 2000 Stock Option Plan allows a committee of the Board of
Directors (the “Committee”) to grant incentive stock options, non—quahﬁed stock options, stock
appreciation rights and stock awards (including the use of restricted stock and phantom shares). The
Committee has the authority to determine which employees will recewe the rewards, the amount of the
awards and other terms and conditions of the award. Awards granted by the Committee typically vest over
a period of three-to-five years. ‘

On July 1, 2003, the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment and restatement of the 2000
Stock Option Plan to change the plan name and increase the number of shares available for issuance. The
name of the amended plan is Bruker BioSciences Corporation Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option
Plan. The amendment authorized 4,132,000 additional shares of common stock of the Company issuable
pursuant to the plan. On June 29, 2006, the Company’s stockholders approved an increase in the number
of shares available for issuance under the plan from 6,320,000 shares to 8,000,000 shares, an increase of
1,680,000 shares. i

|
The total number of shares issuable under the Plan is 8,000,000, all of which have been registered on
Form S-8s (Reg. No. 333-47836, 333-107294 and 333-137090).
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Restricted shares of the Company’s common stock are periodically awarded to executive officers,
directors and certain key employees of the Company subject to a service restriction which expires ratably
over a period of three-to-five years. The restricted shares of common stock may not be sold or transferred
during the restriction period. Stock compensation for restricted stock is recorded based on the stock price
on the grant date and charges to expense ratably through the restriction period. The following table
summarizes information about restricted stock activity during the year ended December 31, 2006:

Weighted

Shares Average
Subject to Grant Date
Restriction Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31,2005 ..........c...ve..... — $ —
Granted. ...t e e e 632,900 . 5.28
Vested . oo e — —_
Forfeited.................. SUUUTURNUORRNI _(4700) 500

Outstanding at December 31,2006 ....................... 628,200 $5.29

Unrecognized pretax expense of $2.5 million related to restricted stock awards is e}-cpected to be
recognized over the weighted average remaining service period of 4.3 years for awards outstanding at
December 31, 2006. o ’

Stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average Aggregate
Shares :  Average Reinaining Intrinsic
Subject to Option Contractual Value
Options Price Term {Yrs) (§'s in 000’s)
QOutstanding, December 31,2003 .................... 3,095,002  $6.77
Granted . . ... oo e e 835,500 4.69
Exercised .. ... it e {14,853) 3.82
Forfeited .. .. ... ..o i e {136,404  5.37
Qutstanding, December 31,2004 .................... 3,779,245 6.39
Granted . . ... .o e 18,250 3.83
Exercised........covviiiieiinii e (124,121)  3.04
Forfeited .. ... ... i et (96,506) 6.95
Outstanding, December 31,2005 .................... 3,576,868 6.43
Granted . ... . i e e e 696,250 5.23
Exercised. ... ...t e (290,224) 457
Forfeited . ...coiori i e e (311,469) 7.55 _
Outstanding, December 31,2006 .................... 3,671,425 $6.25 4.9 $8,171
Exercisable at December 31,2006. . .................. 3,038,869  $6.74 45 $5.648
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The following table summarizes information about stock options outstandmg and exercisable at .
December 31, 2006: ,

{ . N
Qptions Outslandmg i Options Exercisable

Weighted
Average Weighted Aggregate Weighted Aggregate
Remaining Average Intrinsic Average Intrinsic
- Number Contractual  Exercise Value ! Number Exercise Value

Range of Exercise Prices Outsianding  Term (Yrs) Price ($’s in 000°s) Exercisable Price ($'s in 000’s)
$212t0 $4.00 ....... 760,357 47 $ 3.20 $3,403 565,676 § 3.14 $2,471
$4.01t0 $6.00 ....... 1,825,364 53 5.15 4311 1,131,064 s 2,719
$6.01 1031000 ...... 502,105 42 6.69 © 4571 502,105 6.69 458
$10.01 to $13.00 ..... 215,099 5.2 11.05 — | 215,099 11.05 =
$13.01 and above . ... 338,500 43 15.59 — 338,500 15.59 —

3,671,425 49 $ 6.25 $8,]71I 2,752,444 § 6.74 $5,648
!

The intrinsic values above are based on the Company’s closing stock price of $7.51 on December 31,
2006. The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted durmg the year ended December 31,
2006 was $3.74. Unrecognized pretax expense of $2.4 million related to stock options is expected to be
recognized over the weighted average remaining service period of 1.1 y'ears for awards outstanding at
December 31, 2006. . :

The Company has recorded compensation expense of $0, $27,500, ‘and $37,052 during the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, for stock options granted to non-employees.
Compensation expense is amortized on a straight-line basis over the underlylng vesting terms. The fair
value of each option granted was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model.

Accelerated Vesting of Unvested Stock Options . I

On October 3, 2005, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company
approved the acceleration of vesting of all unvested options to purchase shares of common stock of the
Company that were held by current employees, officers and directors of the Company, which had an
exercise price per share equal to or greater than $4.64 (the closing market price of the Company’s common
stock on October 3, 2005). The primary purpose of the accelerated vesting is to enable us to avoid
recognizing in our income statement non-cash compensation expense ¢ associated with these options in
future periods, upon the adoption of FASB Statement (“SFAS”) No. 123R (“SFAS 123R”), Share-Based
Payment, as of January 1, 2006. Options to purchase 857,923 shares of icommon stock were subject to this
acceleration. Because these options had exercise prices in excess of current market values, or are
“underwater,” they were not fully achieving their original objectives of| incentive compensation and
employee retention. The Company believes that the acceleration of these underwater options may have a
positive effect on employee morale and retention. Under the accounting for stock options in accordance
with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and FASB
Interpretation No. 44 Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation, the acceleration
of the vesting of these options did not result in a compensation charge because the exercise prices of the
affected options, which have not been modified, was greater than the closmg price of the Company’s
common stock on the date the event occurred. The Company has estlmated the pre-tax charge to be
eliminated from future accounting periods was approximately $3.7 million.

Note 16—Business Segment Information !

SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, establishes
standards for reporting information about operating segments in annual financial statements of public

f
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business enterprises. It also establishes standards for related disclosures about products and service,
geographic areas and major customers. The Company evaluated its business activities that are regularly
reviewed by the Chiel Executive Officer for which discrete linancial information is available. As a result of
this evaluation, the Company determined that each of its subsidiaries, Bruker Daltonics, Bruker AXS, and
Bruker Optics, is a reportable operating segment.

" Bruker Daltonics is in the business of manufacturing and distributing mass spectrometry instruments
that can be integrated and used along with other analytical instruments. Bruker AXS is in the business of
manufacturing and distributing advanced X-ray and spark-OES instrumentation used in non-destructive
molecular and elemental analysis in academic, research and industrial applications. Bruker Optics is a
leading developer and provider of research, analytical and process analysis instruments and solutions based
on infrared and Raman molecular spectroscopy technologies. Bruker BioSciences Corporation, the parent
company of Bruker Daltonics, Bruker AXS and Bruker Optics, is the corporate entity that holds excess
cash and short-term investments and incurs certain public company costs.

Selected business segment information for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is
presented below (in thousands):

Revenue Operatihg Income (Loss)

2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Bruker Daltonics ................. $159,744 $161,355 $152,592 $10,000 $12430 $ 4,063
Bruker AXS ..o 179,502 137,357 132,622 10256 1,059 - (1,744)
Bruker OpLicS . ........ooveenn.. 105530 78,701 74,151 17,944 12,035 . 7,712
Eliminations ..................... (8942)  (5160) (2376) 74 (251) —
COrporate ................ceo... — — —  (1612) (2851) (3437
Total. . vt $435,834 $372,253 $356989 $30662 $22422 $ 6,594

Total assets, capital expenditures and depreciation and amortization by segment for the years ended '
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows (in thousands):

Assets : Capital Expenditures Depreciation and Amortization

2006 2005 - 2004 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Bruker Daltonics. ... § 274,423 § 189,790 § 195,995 $2,355 $1,622 § 4,887 § 4,926 § 5025 § 5,733
Bruker AXS........ 170,610 129,113 131,476 3,990 1,590 2,377 6,194 3,583 4,060
Bruker Optics . ..... 86,726 64,592 57,607 1,278 1,579 2,787 2,169 1,898 1,408
Corporate.......... 316,985 235,529 229841 —_ — — — —_ . =
Eliminations. . ... ... (415,557) (195382) (186,202) —  — - — — —

Total ............ $ 433,187 § 423,642 § 428,717 $7,623 $4,791 $10,051 513,289 $10,506 $11,201

Long-lived assets and revenue by geograp'hical arca as of and for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004 is as follows (in thousands):

Revenue )
: 2006 2005 2004
North America.. ...t $107,454 § 92,548 § 88,718
Germany .. ...ttt e 162,994 153,012 142,461
Japan... ... ...l P 44311 45,546 43,005
Other. ... e e 121,075 . 81,147 '82,805.
Total ... $435,834 $372,253  $356,989
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. Long-Lived Assels

2006 2005
NOFE AIMETICA . « .+ v v v ettt e ettt e e e e e eeans ' $19,280 $19,699
GETMANY .+ v v eveeeeeeseeeeenens BRI T | 6598 61,661
JAPAN . oottt e [ 1,227 1,121
OtEr . .ot S L 3856 2,832
TOtAL © ottt et et et e e b $90,349  $85,313

Other locations primarily include, among others, the United Kingdom:, France, Italy, Spain, Belgium,
The Netherlands, Scandinavia, Poland, Russia, Hungary, Slovenia, Switzerlland, Austria al_1d Hong Kong.
Note 17—Income Statement Components ',
Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

The components of interest and other income (expense), net for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004 were as follows (in thousands): I

2006 2005 2004

IOEETESE IMCOMIE . « vt ittt ettt et e ie et ine v ean e aaeanean %218 $2566 $ 1,694
INTEIESt EXPENSE . . o\ttt sttt ei et ar e eseanas (2,159) (2,059) (2,751)
Exchange gains (losses) on foreign currency transactions. ............. ¢ (1,613) 1,308 (1,392)
Appreciation (depreciation) of the fair value of derivative flnanmal R :
INSIFUIMENES . .. i ottt e e et iaiia e a e iaeas L 4714  (2,675) 60
Gain (loss) on disposat of equipment. . ....... ...l 202 - 3
Rental iNCOmME. . ..ot e et . 247 -150 147
Other EXPENMSE. ..\t v et eer et eieeieeeeeaeeaeenn SR , 184 (70) - (280)
Write- off Of INVESIMENES « .. ..\ oottt e iieearianens i — v — (2,322)
Interest and other income (expense), net .........:........ e oo 1 $3758 § (780) $(4,847)

!

Affinium Pharmaceuticals, Inc

In 2001, the Company acquired 738,008 shares of Series I[IA Preferreé Stock of Affinium
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (formerly Integrative Proteomics, Inc.) in exchange for approximately $1 million in
cash and 64,650 shares of the Company’s common stock. The acquired securities were included-in
investments in other companies and were accounted for under the cost method. Due to the uncertain
outlook of Affinium Pharmaceuticals, management conctuded that the 1nvestment suffered an impairment
that was deemed to be other than temporary. As such, the Company recorded charges of $0.7 million to
earnings in 2004 to write-off the investment in Affinium Pharmaceuticals. ;

.
Cengent Therapeutics

In 2001, the Company acquired 666,667 shares of Series C Preferred Stock of Cengent Therapeutics
(formerly GeneFormatics, Inc.) in exchange for approximately $1 million i in cash and 61,742 shares of the
Company’s common stock. The acquired securities were inclided in mvestments in other companies and
were accounted for under the cost method. Due to the uncertain outlook of GeneFormatics, management
concluded that the investment has suffered an impairment that was deemed to be other than temporary.
As such, the Company recorded charges of $0.7 million to earnings in 2004 to write-off the investment in
Cengent Therapeutics. - . . : |

t
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GeneProt, Inc.

In 2000, the Company acquired 909,091 shares of Series B Preferred Stock of GeneProt, Inc. in
exchange for $7.0 million in cash and 79,218 shares of the Company’s common stock. The acquired
securities were included in investments in other companies and were accounted for under the cost method.
Due to the uncertain outiook of GeneProt, management concluded that the investment suffered an
impairment that was deemed 1o be other than temporary. As such, the Company recorded charges of
$0.9 million to earnings in 2004 to write-off the investment in GeneProt.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company has written-off the carrying value associated with all of the
investments identified above based on impairment testing performed during the periods presented in these
financial statements and prior periods. '

Note 18—Related Parties

The Company is affiliated, through common shareholders, with several other entities which use the
Bruker name. The Company and its affiliates have entered into a sharing agreement which provides for the
sharing of specified intellectual property rights, services, facilities and other related items.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company has payables to related parties of $5.9 million and
$6.2 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company has receivables from related
parties of $9.0 mitlion and $6.5 million, respectively. Payment terms on balances with related parties are
similar as those with third party customers. ‘

Sales to related parties which are not subsidiaries of the Company are included as revenues in the
consolidated financial statements. Such related parties represent affiliated sales offices in countries in
which the Company does not have its own distribution network. As such, these sales were primarily for
resale of the Company’s products only. These sales amounted to $10.8 million, $14.2 million and
$19.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In addition, the
Company purchased products and services which amounted to $19.4 million, $15.8 million, and
$12.7 million from affiliated entities in the year ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The Company shares various general and administrative expenses for items including umbrella
insurance policies, accounting services and leases with varicus related parties. These general and
administrative expenses amounted to $3.7 million, $2.8 million and $2.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The Company had investments in three non-affiliated companies. The Company recognized sales to
these companies, GeneProt, Inc., Cengent Therapeutics and Affinium Pharmaceuticals Inc., of $-0-, $-0-
and $-0-, respectively in 2006, and $-0-, $-0- and $-0-, respectively in 2005, and $-0-, $-0- and $40,000,
respectively in 2004. These sales were recorded at arm’s length terms and conditions and in the normal
course of business. There were no purchases from any of these companies during the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 or 2004,

During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company paid $1.3 million,
$0.5 million and $0.5 million to a law firm in which one of its directors is a partner.

During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company paid approximately
$147,000, $48,500 and $24,300 to a financial services firm in which one of its directors is a partner.

Bruker Optics rents various office space from a principal stockholder under lease agreements. During
each of the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, this stockholder was paid $0.3 million, which
was estimated to be equal to the estimated fair market value less the cost of certain capital improvements
provided by Bruker Optics in 2004. Bruker Optics subleased a portion of this office space to an affiliate
during 2006, 2005 and 2004 and received $31,500, $31,500 and $0.1 million, in rental income, which

102




|
|
|
|

included charges for utilities and other occupancy cost. This rental income is recorded as a reduction of

rent, utilities, and building maintenance expenses. . !

Note 19—Recent Accounting Pronouncements i

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounttng Standard (“SFAS”) No. 159,
The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities, Including an amena'ment of FASB Statement
No. 115, (“SFAS 159”). This Statement permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments -
and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. SFAS 159
is effective as of the beginning of fiscal 2008. The Company has not yet assessed the effect, if any, that
adoptton of SFAS 159 will have on its results of operations and financial posmon

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers Accounting for Defmed Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—which amends SFAS No. 87, E}nployers Accounting for
Penisions, SFAS No. 88 Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension
Plans and for Termination Benefits, SFAS No. 106 Employers Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other
Than Pensions and SFAS No. 132(R), Employers’ Disclosures about Pensrons and Other Postretirement
Benefits. This Statement requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of
defined benefit pension and other postretirement defined benefit plans, prewously disclosed in the
footnotes to the financial statements, as an asset or liability in its statement of financial position and to
recognize changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive
income, This Statement also requires an employer to measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of
its year end statement of financial position. In addition, this Statement w1ll require disclosure of the effects
of the unrecognized gains or losses, prior service costs and transition asset or obligation on the next fiscal
year’s net periodic benefit cost. This Statement is effective for alt f1nanc1al statements issued for fiscal
years ending after December 15, 2006 and retrospective application of thlIS Statement is not permltted We
have adopted SFAS No. 158 and as of December 31, 2006 we have incurred an incremental increase in
benefit obligation of $0.2 million.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 1577). This
Statemecnt is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years begmnmg after November 15, 2007.
SFAS 157 provides a common fair value hierarchy for companies to fO“O\lV in determining fair value
measurements in the preparation of financial statements and expands disFlosure requirements relating to
how such fair value measurements were developed. SFAS 157 clarifies the principle that fair value should
be based on the assumptions that the marketplace would use when pricing an asset or liability, rather than
company specific data. The Company is currently assessing the impact IhE;lt SFAS 157 will have on its
results of operations and financial position. '

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes. This Interpretation sets forth a recognition threshold and valuation method to
recognize and measure an income tax position taken, or expected to be taken, in a tax return. The
evaluation is based on a two-step approach. The first step requires an entity to evaluate whether the tax
position would “more likely than not,” based upon its technical merits, be sustained upon examination by
the appropriate taxing authority. The second step requires the tax posmo'n 10 be measured at the largest
amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being reahzed upon ultimate settlement. In
addition, previously recognized benefits from tax positions that no longer meet the new criteria would no
longer be recognized. The application of this Interpretation will be cons:dered a change in accounting
principle-with the cumulative effect of the change recorded to the openmg balance of retained earnings in
the period of adoption. This Interpretation will be effective for the Company on January 1, 2007. The
Company is currently evaluating the Interpretation and the impact it may have on its results of operations
and financial condition.
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Note 20—Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The Company’s common stock is trading under the symbol BRKR. A summary of operating results
for the quarterly periods in the two years ended December 31, 2006 is set forth below (in thousands, except
per share data): '

Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31

Year ended December 31, 2006

Netrevenue...............c..o..... e L. $94.856 $100,483  $104,870 $135,625
Grossprofit. ... ... i 43,756 46,223 46,183 63,172
Operating inCome. .. ... .ovutvrriiaerner e 4,866 2,874 6,984 . 15,938
NetinCOMIE ..o ottt et eeneaannns 3,259 2,538 2,976 9,708
Net income per share—basic...................... % 003 $§ 003 $ 003 $ 010
Net income per share—diluted .................... $ 003 $ 002 $ 003 § 009
Year ended December 31, 2005 '

Net teVemUC. ..ottt e e iei e re s $90,361  § 89,230 § 85,885 $106,777
Grossprofit..... .. ... i 39,456 40,348 38,710 47,375
Operating INCOMEe. .. ..o v ittt eiia e s, 4,046 3,744 4,937 9,697
NELINCOME vttt e e e et e e 1,310 1,451 2,086 4,900 -
Net income per share—Dbasic and diluted ........... $ 001 § 001 $ o002 § 005

Note 21—Subsequent Events

On February 12, 2007, the Company and a group of selling stockholders completed a public offering -
of 11,960,000 shares of its common stock, of which 2,530,000 were sold by the Company and 9,430,000 were
sold by four selling stockholders, at $7.10 per share, generating net proceeds of approximately
$17.0 million to the Company and approximately $63.2 million to the selling stockholders, in the aggrepate.
The Company anticipates using the net proceeds from this offering for the repayment of debt, general
corporate purposes and potential acquisitions. C
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FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

|
I
1
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNT. ziilNTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
i
|
ITEM 9A. .CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 1‘

|

|

Dtsclosure Controls and Procedures

.We have established disclosure controls and procedures that are ldesrgned 1o ensure that material
information relating to us, including our consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer by others within our organization. Under the supervision
and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures
as of December 31, 2006. Based on this evaluation, our principal execﬁtive officer and principal financial
officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effectlve as of December 31, 2006, to .
ensure that the information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summanzed and reported within the time periods
specifi ied in the SEC’s rules and forms. ‘

a

Management’s Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reportmg '

Our management is responsxble for establishing and maintaining adcquate internal control over
financial reporting, Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our
principal executive officer'and principal finaficial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness
of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on the criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Commitice O;f Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on this evaluation, our management concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2006. i

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company molude the results of Bruker Optics
Inc., a provider of research, analytical and process analysis instruments and solutions based on infrared
and Raman molecular spectroscopy technologies, Quantron GmbH, a spark OES company based in Kleve,
Germany and KeyMaster Technologies, Inc., a handheld XRF technology company focated in Kennewick,
Washington. Upon consideration of the date of the acquisition, and the time constraints under which our
management’s assessment would have to be made, management determmed that it would not be possible
to conduct a sufficiently comprehensive assessment of the acquired bus‘mess controls over financial
reporting. Accordingly, these operations have been excluded from the scope of management’s assessment
of internal controls. The Company’s consolidated sales for the year ended December 31, 2006, were
$435.8 million, of which the combined results of Bruker Optics, Quantron and KeyMaster represented
$110.9 million. The Company’s total assets as of December 31, 2006 were $433.2 million, of which Bruker
Optics, Quantron and KeyMaster represented $107.8 million, 1ncludmg $21.7 million of intangible assets
and goodwill resulting from the acquisitions.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006, has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an mdependent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.

!

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting :

As described in the section below, there were changes in the Company s internal control over financial
reporting during the quarterly period ended December 31, 2005 that effrectlvely remediated the material
weaknesses identified by management as of December 31, 2004. |

!
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The statements contained in Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 should be considered in light of, and read together
with, the information set forth in this Item 9A.

Remediation Steps Which Addressed the Material Weaknesses Identified in 2004

As of December 31, 2004, management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s inteinal control
over financial reporting and identified material weaknesses at one significant subsidiary. The weaknesses
identified by management related to lack of financial resources in the accounting function, insufficient
controls over the application of labor and overhead to end of period inventory balances and insufficient
controls over the reconciliation of the physical existence of certain units and systems to the related -
inventory balance in the books and records. To remediate the material weaknesses in the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting identified in 2004, the Company evaluated the roles and functions
within the significant subsidiary’s accounting department and added additional permanent resources
during 2005. These additional resources enabled the Company to identify and impiement additional
transactional level and financial statement close procedures and controls, which were effective in
remediating the material weaknesses identified by management as of December 31, 2004.

In addition to augmenting the Company’s accounting personnel, management also implemented a
more integrated Manufacturing Resource Planning (MRP) system to automate and enhance certain
preventative controls. This implementation was completed during the second quarter of 2006 and will .
further improve the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Management believes that these
measures remediated the material weaknesses identified. :

~ There were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter ended
December 31, 2006 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal
controls over financial reporting. : ' :
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on lntemal Control over Financial Reporting
. Report of Independent Reglstered Public Accountmg Firm

The Board of Dlrectors and Shareholders A o |
Bruker BioSciences Corporation (

u

We have audited management’s assessment, included in Managem!em’s_‘ Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting, included at Item 9A., that Bruker BioSciences Corporation maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, base@i on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Bruker BioSciences Corporation’s mtanagqmeng is responsible for .
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for ifs assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting. OQur responsibility is to expresé an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s mternlal control over financial reporting
based on our audit. _ : j

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Pli;blic Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan ;anAd perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reportiig was maintained in
all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financiat
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures {as we considered necessaty in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

. A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting prmczples A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that lransaction';s are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements. '

i
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial rcborting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk
that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. i

As indicated in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting, management’s assessment of and conclusion on the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting did not inctude the internal controls of Bruker Optics lnc Quantron GmbH, and
KeyMaster Technologies, Inc. which were included in the 2006 consolldated financial statements of Bruker
BioSciences Corporation and constituted $107.8 million and $53.6 mllhon of total and net assets,
respectively, as of December 31, 2006 and $110.9 million and $13.8 m:lllon of revenues and net income,
respectively, for the year then ended. Our audit of internal control over fmancnal reporting of Bruker
BioSciences Corporation also did not include an evaluation of the mternal control over financial reporting
of Bruker Optics Inc., Quantron GmbH, and KeyMaster Technologies, Inc.
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In our opinion, management’s assessment that Bruker BioSciences Corporation maintained effective:
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects,
based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, Bruker BioSciences Corporation maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the
COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Over51ght
Board {United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Bruker BioSciences Corporation as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operation, shareholders’ equity
and comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2006 of Bruker BloSCIences Corporation and our report dated March 14, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
March 14, 2007
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION ..

None.
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PART III o

In accordance with General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K, except as set forth below, the information

called for by Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 is incorporated by reference from the registrant’s definitive proxy
statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be. hcld on May ]6 2007,

A

{
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORA TE GOVERNANCE

A copy of the company’s code of ethics, which applies to its principal executive officer, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer, controller and board of dn"ectors may be obtained free of
charge by requesting them from us in writing or by telephone at Bruker BlOSClences Corporation,

40 Manning Road, Billerica, Massachusetts, 01821, Attn: Investor Relatnons (978) 663-3660, ext. 1411.

The additional information required by this Item 10 pursuant to ltems 401 405 and 407(c)(3),
{d)(4) and (d)(5) of Regulation $-K is contained in the proxy statement. for our annual meeting of
stockholders 1o be held on May 16, 2007 and is incorporated in this annual report on Form 10-K by
reference. |
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION j ‘
The information required to be disclosed by this Item 11 pursuant to Items 402 and 407(e)(4) and
{e)(5) of Regulation S-K is contained in the proxy statement for our anr;lual meeting of stockholders to be
held on May 16, 2007 under the captions “Summary of Executive Compensation”, “Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Compensation Committee Report”, respectively,
and is incorporated in this annual report on Form 10-K by reference. |
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
REILATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities
Remaining Available
for Future Issuance

1 Under Equity

Number of Securities Compensation

to be Issued Weighted-Average Plans (excluding
Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of securities
Qutstanding Options, Outstanding Options, reflected in column
Warrants and Rights Wurranls and Rights (a))
PLAN CATEGORY (a) : (b} (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by i
security holders. ...................... 4,299,625 r 8611 3,700,375
Equity compensation plans not approved by |
security holders. . ... ................. N/A | NA - N/A
TOTAL ...t 4,299,625 : $6.11 3,700,375

|
The additional information required by this Item 12 pursuant to Iiems 403 of Regulation S-K is
contained in the proxy statement for our annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 16, 2007 under
the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and is incorporated in
this annual report on Form 10-K by reference.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required to be disclosed by this Item 13 pursuant to [tems 404 and 407(a} of
Regulation S-K is contained in the proxy statement for our annual meeting of stockholders to be held on
May 16, 2007 under the captions “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and “Board
Composition, Meetings and Committees” and is incorporated in this annual report on Form 10-K by
reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required to be disclosed by this Item 14 pursuant to liem 9(e) of Schedule 14A is
contained in the proxy statement for our annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 16, 2007 under
the caption “Report of the Audit Committee” and is incorporated in this annuval report on Form 10-K by -
reference. ' ‘ -
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PARTIV .. |
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES |
(a) Financial Statements and Schedules i

{1) Financial Statements i

The following consolidated financial statements of Bruker'BioScienlces Corporation are filed as part
of this report under Item 8.—Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm® 1

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 l

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31 2006, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Inicome (loss) for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 3] 2006, 2005 and 2004
Notes to Financial Statements

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

l
|
S . FPage
Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts ‘ 114
R ' ¢
(3) Exhibits l
~ See (b) below. i
(8) List of Exhibits ‘
Exhibit
No. Title i

2.1 Share Transfer Deed dated as 0f August 13, 2005(1) O

+2.2 Purchase and Transfer Agreement for Shares in Rontec AG dated October 10, 2005 between
Bruker AXS GmbH and the Sellers as defined therein(2)

+2.3  Asset Purchase Agreement dated October 21, 2005 between Bruker AXS Inc., Princeton
Gamma-Tech Instruments, Inc., Princeton Gamma-Tech (UK) Ltd., Finn-Partners, Inc. and
Third Letter Corporation(2) : |

2.4 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated April 17, 2006, by and among Bruker B:oScnenccs
Corporation, Bruker Optics Inc. and the stockholders of Bruker Optics Inc.(3)

+2.5 Purchase and Transfer Agreement for Shares in Rontec AG dated October 10, 2005 between
Bruker AXS GmbH and the Sellers as defined therein(4) !

+2.6  Asset Purchase Agreement dated October 21, 2005 between Bruker AXS Inc., Princeton
Gamma-Tech Instruments, Inc., Princeton Gamma-Tech (UK) Lid., Finn- Partners Inc.and
Third Letter Corporation(5) -

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registram(6)
] .
3.2  Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant(6) '

4.1 Specimen stock certificate representing shares of common stocr:k of the Registrant(7)
10.1 Amended and Restated 2000 Stock Option Plan(8) . |

i
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10.2

+10.3

+104

+10.5

+10.6

+10.10

+10.11

+10.12

+10.13

+10.14

+10.19

10.21

+10.22

10.25

10.26
+10.27

10.28

1029

10.30

+10.31

Sharing Agreement dated as of February 28, 2000 among the Reglstrant and 13 affiliates of the
Registrant(6) : .

License Agreement dated August 10, 1998 between the Registrant and Indiana University’s
Advanced Research & Technology Institute(6)

ITMS Collaboration Agreement by and between Hewlett-Packard, the Registrant and Bruker
Daltonik GmbH, dated April 28, 1999(6)

Collaboration Agreement dated December 4, 1997 between Bruker-Franzen Analytik GmbH
and Sequenom Instruments GmbH(6)

Agreement by and between the Bruker Daltonik GmbH Bruker deonla Analytik GmbH and
Bruker Optik GmbH dated March 31, 2000(6)

Supply Agreement dated March 30, 1998 between the Registrant and Falrchlld Imaging Inc.,
formerly known as Lockheed Martin Fairchild Systems(9)

Suppiy Agreement dated October 1, 1998 between Bruker AXS GmbH and GKSS
Forschungszentrum Geesthacht GmbH, as amended(9)

Development Agreement dated July 31, 1997 between Bruker AXS GmbH and Siemens
Aktiengesellschaft Berlin und Munchen Bereich Medlzmlsche Technik(9)

Development Agreement (Agreement 99.06) dated May 5 1999 between Bruker AXS GmbH
and Baltic Scientific Instruments(9)

Development Agreement (Agreement 99.10) dated October 7, 1999 between Bruker AXS
GmbH and Baltic Scientific Instruments(%)

Agreement on Development, Supply and Marketing dated August 2, 2001 between Bruker
AXS GmbH and Siemens Medical Solutions Rontgenwerk Rudolstadt(9)

Lease for Office Space in Delft, The Netherlands dated October 12, 2001 between Bruker
Nonius B.V. and Van Haaren Beheer B.V.(9)

Memorandum of Agreement for St;zitegic Collaboration dated October 16,' 2001 between the
Registrant and Fairchild Imaging, Inc.(9) .

Employment Offer Letter dated as of September 27, 2004 from Bruker BioSciences
Corporation to William J. Knight(10)

Company’s form of Incentive Stock Optlon Agreement(10)

Amendment to ITMS Coltaboration Agreement and OEM Agreement between Agllent
Technologies, Inc. and the Registrant, effective February 25, 2005(11) .
Company’s form of Restricted Stock Agreement(12)

Compensation and Indemnification Agreement, dated April 18, 2006, by and among the
Company, William A. Linton, M. Christopher Canavan, Jr., Taylor J. Crouch and Daniel S.
Dross(3)

Demand Promissory Note, dated as of July 5, 2006 in the amount of $40,000,000, payable to
Citizens Bank of Massachusetts(13)

Exclusive Distribution Agreement dated January 1, 2002 between Brucker BioSpin GmbH and
Bruker Optics Inc., as amended April 17, 2006(14)
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21.1  Subsidiaries of the Registrant(14)
23.1  Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Publlc Accountmg Firm(12)
24.1 Power of attorney (included on stgnature page hereto)

31.1  Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002(14) ‘

31.2  Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Sectlon 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002(14)

-32.1  Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002(15)

32.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.IC. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002(15)

(1) Incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed on August 16, 2005,

(2) Incorporated by reference from our quarterly report on Form 10- Q for the period ended
September 30, 2005. !

|
(3) Incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed on April 18, 2006.

(4) Incorporated by reference from our quarterly report on Form 10- Q for the period ended June 30,
2006.

(5) Incorporated by reference from our quarterly report on Form 10-@ for the period ended
September 30, 2006.

(6) Incorporated by reference from our registration statement on Fonln S-1, Registration No. 333-34820,
declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on ;August 3, 2000.

(7) Incorporated by reference from our registration statement on Form S-3, Registration No. 333-113774,

declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 23, 2004.

(8) Incorporated by reference from our registration statement on Form S-4, Registration No. 333-104885,

declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 19, 2003.

. Lo . .
(9) Incorporated by reference from the Bruker AXS Inc. registration statement on Form $-1, Registration
No. 333-66066, declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 13, 2001.

}
(10) Incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K filed on October 12, 2004.
|

(11) Incorporated by reference from our quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31,
200s.

{12) Incorporated by reference from our annual report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31,
2003,

(13) Incorporated by reference from our current report on Form 8-K fil:ed on July 7, 2006.
(14) Filed herewith.

(15) Furnished herewith. t

+ Confidential treatment requested as to certain portions, which portlons have been omitted and filed
separately with the Commission
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{c) Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule 1I—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (in thousands)

Balance at Additions
Beginning of  Charged to
Period Earnings

Deductions
Amounts Balance at
Written Off End of Period

Allowance Deducted in Balance Sheet from'the assets

to which they apply:
For the year ended December 31, 2006 o ‘

Allowance for doubtful accounts. ............... $3,810 $ 327
For the year ended December 31, 2005 :

Allowance for doubtful accounts. ............. . $2,988 '$1,060
For the year ended December 31, 2004 ' ‘

Allowance for doubtful accounts. ............... $2,313 $1,037

$(1727)  $2410
$ (238)  $3810

$ (362)  $2,988

All other schedules have been omltted since they are either not applicable, not required or the

information is included elsewhere herein.
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SIGNATURES !

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the .

registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the unders:gned thereunto duly
authorlzed |

|
BRUKER BIOSCIENCES CORPORATION

Date: March 15, 2007 By: /s FRANKH. LAUKIEN, PH.D.
: Name: Frank H. Laukien, Ph.D.
Title: Preszdent Chief Executive Officer and
Chﬁmnan

We, the undersigned officers and directors of Bruker BioSciences Cl)rporation, hereby severally
constitute and appoint Frank H. Laukien, Ph.D. to sign for us and in ourllnames in the capacities indicated
below, the report on Form 10-K filed herewith and any and all amendmepts to such report, and to file the
same, with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, in each case, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, and generally to do all such thmgs in our names and on our behalf in
our capacities consistent with the provisions of the Securities Act of 1934 as amended, and all
requirements of the Securitics and Exchange Commission. |

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed

. below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
A

Name Title \ Date
/s/ FRANK H. LAUKIEN, PH.D. Premdent Chief Executlve Officer and March 15, 2007
Frank H. Laukien, Ph.D. Chairman of the Board (Prmmpal
Executive Officer)
/s/ WILLIAM J. KNIGHT Chief Financial Officer (Principal
William J. Knight Financial and Accounting Officer) March 15, 2007
/s M. CHRISTOPHER CANAVAN, JR. Director March iS, 2007

M. Christopher Canavan, Jr.

/sif TAYLOR J. CROUCH Director March 15, 2007

Taylor J. Crouch

/s/ DANIEL §. DROSS Director March 15, 2007

Daniel S. Dross

/s/ COLLIN D'SILVA Director March 15, 2007
Collin D’Silva
/s/ RICHARD D. KNISS Director March 15, 2007

e e — i A ———

Richard D. Kniss

/s/ JOERG C. LAUKIEN " Director March 15, 2007

Joerg C. Laukien i
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/si WILLIAM A. LINTON

William A. Linton

/s/ RICHARD M. STEIN

Richard M. Stein

s/ BERNHARD WANGLER

Bernhard Wangler

Director

" Director

R}

Director
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Name of Subsidiary b
Bruker AXSInC. . ... e e l ......
Bruker Daltonics INC. .. .. ... i e |
Bruker Optics Ine., . .......... P e et Lo
Bruker BioSciences Security COTP.. . ..o o ittt Lo
Bruker AXS GMbBH .. ...t e .
BrUKEr AXS K K2} .ttt e ettt e e NP :
Bruker AXSBVA2) ..ot U . .
Bruker do Brasil LIda.(1) . ..o oo e vrt et et IS
Bruker AXS L1} . oottt ettt e et beiiis
Bruker AXS SAS(LY ..\ttt ettt e e |
S R o 0 U S
Bruker Austria GmbH(1) . . ...ttt e Lo,
Bruker South Africa (Pty) Ltd{1). .. ..o oo e
Bruker AXS Pte Ltd (Singapored(1). . ..o\ iviri e e b
Bruker Polska SP. Z 0.0.(1) -+« <ottt e s
Brukcrf’\}(sMin::manalysisGmbH(l)..........................................I ......
R L Bt T B
Baltic Scienctific Instruments Ld. (4 .. .. . ... ..o eee it
I0C0aTec GMBH (5] . ..ottt ittt e e e e e e e b
KeyMaster Technologies .. ... ... .o e it
BmkchuamronGmbH(l).................................................: ......
Bruker AXS Analytical Instruments Pvt. Ltd.(1) .. ..o oo e s
Bruker Daltonics NBC Detection Corp.. ... ...ttt i i iiiiaeeeanasd l ......
Bruker Daltonics Korea Co, Ltd.. ................... [ ...
Bruker BioSciences Espanola S.A. ... ... ... . i s .
Bruker Daltonics Ltd. . . .. ... o e Lo
Bruker Daltonique S A, ... i oo,
Bruker Daltonics KK .. .. oo e Lo
Bruker Daltonics GmbH. . ... ... e o
Bruker Daltonics Scandinavia AB. . ... ... ... oo o 1 ......
Bruker Daltonik GmbH . ... ... i e e
Bruker Daltomics LTD .. oo v e e et e e e bl
Bruker Daltonics S.r.L. . ... e L
Bruker Daltenics Pte Ltd {Singapore} . ... ... i b,
Bruker Daltonics BioSciences Pry. Lt .. ..ttt ee et e e ieeiiniaaianerennnss S
Bruker Daltonics B.V .. .. ... et
Bruker Daltonics SPRIBVBA. . ...ttt eae e aaaa, L
Bruker Daltonics Inc. Taiwan Branch, ... ... . . . . e ! ......
Bruker Optik GmbH. . .. ... i e ...,
BruKer OPtqUe SA(6) ... vttt ettt e e e e et e .
Bruker Optics AB(6). . ... ...t s .
Bruker Optics S l{B). . ...t e levevns
Bruker Optics GmbH . ... ... e i ......
Bruker Optics Ltd, . .. ... e e eaenn
Bruker Optik Asia Pacific Limited(6). . ... ... .. ouureriinit e, Lo
Bruker Instrumenis Ltd.(6). - . . ... oo oL e (R
Bruker Opties Taiwan Led{7). . . oo oo i e ! ......
Bruker Optik Southeast Asia(7) . .. ..ottt i et e ia e .
Bruker Optics Lid. .. ... it i e e e et Loo...
Bruker Optics K. K. .. .. i i e e { ......

Bruker Optics B.V.(6)

Bruker Optics Korea(8)
Interspectra OU(9). .. ... ..

(1) These entities are indirect subsidiaries of Bruker AXS Inc. (“BAXS"). Each is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bruker AXS
GmbH; Bruker AXS GmbH, in turn, is a 90% owned subsidiary of BAXS and a 10% owned subsidiary of Bruker BioSciences

Corporation.

[
1

Subsidiaries of Bruker BioSciences Corporation

i

(2) These entitics are wholly-owned subsidiaries of BAXS. !

(3) Roentec UK Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bruker AXS Microanalysis GmbH

|
!
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Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction of Incorporation
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Germany
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Baltic Scientific Instruments (“BSI”) is an indirect subsidiary of BAXS. BSI is 75.5% owned by Bruker AXS GmbH.
InCoaTec GmbH (“InCoaTec") is na indirect subsidiary of BAXS. InCoaTec is 51% owrned by Bruker AXS GmbH.

These entities are indirect subsidiaries of Bruker Optics Inc. (“BOPT”). Each is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bruker Optik
GmbH; Bruker Optik GmbH is, in turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOPT. -

These entities are indirect subsidiaries of BOPT.-Each is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bruker Optik Asia Pacific Limited; . ‘
Bruker Optik Asia Pacific Limited is in turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bruker Optik GmbH.

Bruker optics Korea is an indirect subsidiary of BOPT. It is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bruker Optics K.K. Bruker Optics
K.K is, in turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BOPT.

Interspectra OU is an indirect subsidiary of BOPT. Interspectra is 76% owned by Bruker Optik GmbH.




Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Reglstratlon Statements on Form S-8 (File Nos.
333-137090, 333-107294 and 333-47836) pertaining 1o the Bruker BioSciences Corporation Amended and
Restated 2000 Stock Option Plan of our reports dated March 14, 2007 with respect to the consolidated
financial statements and schedule of Bruker BioSciences Corporat1on Bruker BioSciences Corporation
management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, and the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Bruker B108c1enccs Corporation, included in
the Annual Report (Form 10-K)) for the year ended December 31, 2006.

/s! Ernst & Yolung LLP

Boston, Massachusetts l

March 14, 2007 '
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Comparison of Five—Year Cumulative Total Returns

Performance Graph for
BRUKER BIOSCIENCES CORP

Produced on 03/26/2007 including data to 12/29/2006
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1273172001 12312002 12/31/2003 12/31/2004 12/30/2005 12/29/2006
Legend
Symbol CRSP Total Returns Index for: 1272000 122002 122008 1272001 122006 122006
B BRUKER BIOSCIENCES CORP 1000 297 278 2486 207 459
_____ * Nasdaq Stock Market (US Companies) 1000 691 1034 125 149 1262
mToToTfmo- A NASDAQ Stocks (SIC 3800-13899 US Companies) 1000 722 13 1218 1257 1357
Measuring instruments; phote, med & optieal goods;timepieces
Notes
A, The fines represent monthly index levels derived from compounded daily returns that include all dividends.
B. The indexes are reweighted daily, using the market capitalization on the previous trading day.
C. If the monthly interval, based on the fiscal year —end, is not a trading day, the preceding trading day is used.
). The index level far all series was set to $1000 on 12312000

Prepared by CRSP (wwwerspuchicago.edu), Center for Research in Security Prices, Graduate School of Business,
The University of Chicago. Used with permission. All rights reserved. ©Copyright 2007




e Worldwide Subsidiaries

Australia

Bruker BioSciences Pty. Ltd.
Tel: +61 (2) 9550-6422

Tel: +61 (418) 119 094
sates@bruker-daltonics.com.au
haxs@bruker-axs.com,au

Austria

Bruker Austria GmbH
Tel: +43 (1) 8047881
office@bruker.at

Belgium

Bruker Belgium SA/NV
Bruker Daltonics SPRL/BVBA
Tel. +32 (2) 726 76 26
daltonics@bruker.be
bruker@bruker.be

Brazil

Bruker do Brasil, Lida.
Tel; +55 (11} 5594-5030
Tel: +55 {11) 5052-5537
Tel :+55 (11} 5594-4901
info@bruker.com.br

Canada

BDAL: Bruker Daltonics Ltd.
Tel: +1 (604) 581-7299
BOPT: Bruker Optics Ltd.
Tel: +1 {905} 876-4641
infe@bruker.ca
info@brukeroptics.com
BAXS: Bruker AXS

Tel: +1 {608} 276-3000

Tel. {8001 234-XRAY
info@bruker-axs.com

France

BDAL: Bruker Daltonique S. A.
Tel: +33 {3) 88 06 60 40
infomasse@bruker.{r

BAXS: Bruker AXS S.A.

Tel: +33 {1) 60 95 80 00
secret@pruker-axs.fr

BOPT: Bruker Ontics S.a.r.l.
Tel. +33 01 64 618110
Bruker@bruker.fr

Gearmany

Bruker Daltonik GmbH, Bremen
Tel: +49 (421} 2205-0
sales@bdal.de

www.bdat.de

Bruker Daltonik GmbH, Leipzig
Tei: +49 (341) 2431-30
sales@bdal.de

Bruker AXS GmbH, Karlsruhe
Tel: +49 (721) 595 28 88
info@bruker-axs.de
www.bruker-axs.de

Bruker Optik GmbH

Tel. +49{7243) 504 600
info@brukeroptics.de
www.brukeroptics.de

India

Bruker AXS Analytical Instruments
Pvt Ltd. (New Delhi)

Tet. +91 (11) 24861 0123

Italy

BDAL: Bruker Daltonics S.r.l.
Tel: +39 (01733 283141
bruker@bdal.it

BAXS: Bruker AXS S.rl,

Tel: +39 (02} 7063-6370
axs@bruker.it

Bruker Optics Srl
optics@bruker.it

Japan

BDAL: Bruker Daltonics K.K.
Tel : +87 {45) 440-0471
info@bruker.co.jp

BAXS: Bruker AXS K.K.
Tel. +81 (45} 453-1560
service@bruker-axs.jp
www.bruker.co.jp

BOPT: Bruker Optics K.K.
Tel. 81-3-5816-2125

Tel. 81-6-6394-8989
Info@bhruker-optics.jp

Latvia

Baltic Scientific Instruments Ltd.
(A Bruker AXS company)

Tel. +371 7383947

bsi@bsi.lv

www.bsi.lv

Malaysia

Bruker Malaysia SDiN Bhd
Bruker Optics Malaysia

Tel. +60 (3) 5621 8303
tak@bruker.com
malay@brukeroptics.com.hk

Mexico

Bruker Mexicana, SAds CV
Tel: +52 (65) 5601-2617
ventasmexico@bdal.com
info-axs@bruker.com.mx
mexico@brukeroptics.com

The Netherlands

Bruker Daltenics BY
Tel: +31 (75) 628-5251%
daltonics@bruker.nl
Bruker AXS BV.

Tel: +31 (15) 2152 400
info@bruker-axs.n
Bruker Optics BV

Tel. +31 1521524 30
Optics@brukeroptics.nl

New Zealand
BDAL: Asia-Pacific
Area Headquariers
Tel: +64 (21} 640 801
chs@bdal.com

The Nordic Countries

Bruker Daltonics Scandinavia AB
Tel: +46 (B) 446-3630 |
ms-sales@bruker.se !
Bruker Optics Scandinavia AB
optics@bruker.se ‘

|
People’s Republic of China

Bruker AXS Beijing Office|

Tel: +86 (10) 6848 6946 |
info@bruker-axs.com.cn i
Bruker Galtonics Inc. Beijing
Representative Office |
Tet: +86 (10) 6847 4093 (5)
hank.wang@bruker.com.cn
www.bruker.com.cn |
Bruker Optics |

Hong Kong Tel. 852-2796 6108
Shanghai Tel, 86-21-6243-9060
Beijing Tel. 86-10-6847-2060
Asiapacific@brukeroptics.com.hk
optics@bruker.com.cn |

Poland !
Bruker Polska Sp. z.0.0. '
Tel.+48 (61) B68-9008
Secretariat@bruker.poznan.pl

Russia and the CIS

Bruker Russia Lid.

Tel: +7 (495) 502-90-06
info@bruker.ru
ir@bruker.ru
www . bruker.ru

Singapore 1
Bruker Qptik :
Tel : +65-B63-4461 |
Sales@bruker-optics.com.sg
Bruker Daltonics & AXS |
Tel: +65 {6774) 7702
sales@hruker.com.sg !

South Africa
Bruker South Africa (Pty) Lid.
Bruker Daltonics SA (Pty) Ltd.
Tel: +27 (11) 463 6040 }
Pari.antalis@bruker.co.za
www.bruker.co.za !

South Korea |

Bruker BioSciences Korea Co.Ltd.

Tel: +82 (2)596-3232 |
info@bdal.co.kr )
Bruker Optics Korea Ltd.
Tel. 82 (2) 34 76 86G0
Tel. 82 (2) 586-3232 !
Brukeroptics@brukeroptics.g:o,kr
!
Spain !
Bruker BioScignces Espancla SA
Tel; +34 (91) 499 4080 |
Tel. +34 {91) 6559013
Tel: +34 {91) 449 3812
bruker@bruker.es

!
|

Sweden

Bruker Daltonics Scandinavia AB
Bruker Optics Scandinavia AB
Tel: +46 (8) 446-3630
ms-sales@bruker.se
optics@bruker.se
www.bruker.se

Switzerland

Bruker Daltonics GmbH
Bruker Optics GmbH
Tel: +47 (1) 825-9111
daltonics@bruker.ch
optics@bruker.ch
Bruker AXS GmbH

Tel: +49 {721) 695 2888
info@bruker-axs.de

Taiwan

Bruker BioSciences Inc.

Tel: +886 (2) 8982-3710
Taiwan_service@bruker.com.tw
Bruker Optics Taiwan Ltd.

+886 22278 7358
Info@brukeroptics.com.tw

Thailand

Bruker Southeast Asia

Tel: +66 (2) 642-6900

BDAL: neukbsea@bruker.co.th
BAXS: bv@bruker.comn

Bruker Optik Thailand

Tel. 66-2-632-2882
Info@brukeroptics-thai,com.hk

United Kingdom

Tel: +44 {2476) 855-200
Bruker Daltonics Lid.
sales@daltonics.bruker.co.uk
Bruker AXS Lid.
into@bruker-axs.co.uk
Bruker Optics Limited
sales@optics.bruker.co.uk
www.bruker.co.uk

United States

Bruker AXS Ing., Madison, Wi
Tel: +1 (608) 276-3000
Tel, {800) 234-XRAY
info@bruker-axs.com
www.bruker-axs.com
Bruker Daltenics Inc.,
Bitlerica, MA

Tel: +1 {978} 663-3660
ms-sales@bdal.com
Bruker Daltenics Inc.,
Fremont, CA

Tel: +1 {5101 683-4300
ms-sales@bdal.com
www.bdal.com

Bruker Optics Inc.

Tel, +% (978) 439-989%
info@brukeroptics.com

For specific contact information in other countries, please visit www.brukerjbiosciences.gom



Worldwide Locations

Germany

Bruker Daltonik GmbH

FAHRENHEITSTRASSE 4
28359 BREMEN

TEL +491421122050
FAX: +481421) 2205104
sales@bdal de

www . bdal de

Bruker Daltonik GmbH

PERMOSERSTRASSE 15
04318 LEIPZIG

TEL +49341}2431 30
FAX +4913411 2431 404
salesihdal de

www bdal.de

l!,ilr&m‘f
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Bruker AXS GmbH

OESTLICHE RHEIN-
BRUECKENSTR. 49
76187 KARLSRUHE
TEL. +491721)595-2888
FAX +49 (7211 595-4587
info@bruker-axs de
WWW.Bruker axs.de

Bruker Optik GmbH

ARUDOLF-PLANK-STR. 27
76275 ETTLINGEN

TEL.: +45 7243 504600
FAX: +4% 7243 503-698
into@hrukeroptics.de
www brukeroplics de

Bruker-Quantron GmbH

KASTELLSTRASSE 31-35
A7546 KALKAR

TEL. +492829}9 77 08-0
FAX, +49 (28217977 08-10
wio@bruker-guanwon.com
wWaw bruker-gquaniren.com

Bruker AXS ;
Microanalysis GmbH

SCHWARZSCHILDS R, 30-12
12488 BERLIN - ADLERSHOF
TEL. +49{0}30 670 990-1 ¢
FAX 28 (£380 670 §80-3

United States

“ Headquarters

® Worldwide Offices
and Distributors

Bruker Biosciences
Corporation
Bruker Daltonics inc.

40 MANNING ROAD
BILLERICA, MA 01821

TEL +) {878} B63-36G0

FAX. +11978)663-2471
r@bruker-biosciences com
www bruker-biosciences.com
www hdal com

Bruker Optics Inc.

19 FORTUNE DRIVE,
MANNING PARK
BILLERICA, MA 01821-399%
TEL - +1(978)439-9899
FAX +11978)663-0177
mio@brukeropiics com
www brukeroptics.com

United Kingdom

Bruker AXS Inc.

5465 EAST CHERYL PKY
MADISON, WI53722-5375
TEL. +1{608! 276-3000
FAX: +1 (608) 276-3006
info@bruker-axs com

www Druker-gxs.com

Bruker Optics inc.

2700 NGRTH CRESCENT
RIDGE DRIVE

THE WOODLANDS
TEXAS 77381

TEL, ] (2811 292-2447
FAX. +§ (281} 292 5855
www. BrukBrgplCS com

Bruker AXS Ltd.
Bruker Daltonics Lt

BANNER LANE
COVENTRY CV 4 9GH
TEL. +44 12476} 855-20
FAX. +44(2476) 485-31
sales@dalionics.oruket.
nfo@brut.er-axs.co.uk
www. bruker.co.uk

Bruker AXS KK
Bruker Daltonics K

3-9-4, MORIYALCHO
KANAGAWA-KL,
YOKGHAMA-SHI
KANAGAWS 221-0022
TEL: +81 (4B} 463 198!
FAX: +81 (4O 3

vewarbiuker.co.jp




